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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Strategic report
for the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their annual report on-the affairs of Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc (the ‘Company’) and the audited fi nancral statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company is a member of the RSA Insurance Group plc group of companies (the ‘Group’ or ‘RSA’), headed by RSA Insurance Group plc
(‘RSAIG’). The Company is a subsidiary of Royal Insurance Holdings Limited. The Group provides the Company with access to-all central resources .
that it needs and provides policies in all key areas including finance, risk, human resources and environment. The Company transacts the majority
of the Group’s UK business, as described in the Annual Report and Accounts of the Group. The directors of the Company have concluded that the
Group approach to strategy, risk management, performance review and custody of assets fully meets the needs of the Company as a separate
regulated entity. '

The‘Company is authorised by the Prudential. Regulation Authority (PRA') and regulated by the PRA and the Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA’).
Principal actrvrty

The principal activity of the Company. its subsidiaries and overseas branches is the transaction of insurance and related financial services in the
United Kingdom and overseas. During 2020, the Company had active overseas insurance branches in Dubai International .Financial Centre (Dubai,
UAE) and Ireland. The subsidiary undertakings of the Company, and its branches, are listed in note 46 of the Accounts. .

Business review '

The Company reports a profit on ordinary activities before tax of £15m (2019: £525m) for the year, due principally to £90m (2019:; £62m) of -
investment income, net of investment expenses, charges and interest, offset by a'loss on the technical account of £(59)m (2019: £(29)m loss). Profit
on ordrnary activities before tax of £525m in 2019 included £547m of drvrdend income from subsidiary undertakings net of impairments (2020: £1m). -

Gross premrums written were £3,560m (2019: £3,771m). The funds attributable to equity holders of the Company were £8, 909m as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: £8,199m).

During 2020, RSA received a cash offer by a consortium of Ganadian insurer Intact and Danish provider Tryg (‘the offer’) which was approved by
the shareholders of RSAIG on 18 January 2021. Further steps are required to complete the transaction and the Group, and the Company, continue
to operate on an independent basis until the sale is complete Further information on the offer can be found in the Strategrc Report of the 2020
Annual Report and Accounts of the Group .

Key performance indicators (‘KPIs’)
The most releyant KPIs to the financial performance of the Company are as follows:

e ‘Underwriting performance’; the Company aims to achieve an underwriting performance that is as sustainably high as possible - that is .-
without uncompetitive pricing or compromising reserves. The Company targets further.improvements to its underwriting performance.

»  Profit before tax; the Company seeks to maximise its profit.before tax, which is a key statutory measure of the earnings of the Company.
. The Company targets continued growth in its profit before tax as performance actions take further effect.

"Underwriting performance for the Company can be measured using the balance on the technical account for general business.

The directors of RSAIG. and the Company, manage the Group's operations on a divisional basis as descnbed in the Annual Report and Accounts of
the Group. For this reason, the Company’s directors believe that analysis using KPIs for the UK business in aggregate is also relevant to the
Company. Further information“on KPIs can be found in the Strategic Report of the 2020 Annual-Report and Accounts of the Group (KPlIs for the UK
regional review of the Group Strategic Réport combines both statutory and alternative performance measures).

Strategic review
- Our operations .

RSA operates in both Personal and Commercial Lines in the UK. Personal insurance is offered to our customers through MORE TH>N and affinity
partners, which include major retailers and large banks. RSA has a strong presence in the motor, home and pet markets and Personal Lines .
accounts for 46% of our business. Commercial lines forms 54% of our business in the UK, principally serving the UK domestic market as well as
operating in the London Market. Commercial lines insurance is offered to our customers through the RSA brand via brokers or directly.

Our customers

We strive to provide tailored products to meet the evolvrng needs of our consumers by analysing trends and keeping pace with digital
developments

The insurance industry is increasingly focussed on embedding processes to ensure that customer conduct leads to good customer outcomes. The
FCA, is increasing its focus on conduct toward customers, especially with regard to treatment of vulnerable customers and pricing within General
Insurance. Qur Customer Policy outlines steps our business must take to ensure that all customers are treated fairly, that products and service
continue to meet their needs, and that we monitor customer outcomes to understand our performance.

Exit portfolios
The technical account loss from these portfolios was £37m (2019: £47m loss) for the 'period Net written premiums were-negligible (2019: £10m),

while net earned premiums were £11m (2019: £77m) reflecting the ongorng un- -off of exposures. The portfolios have materially run-off with de
- minimis premiums left to earn in 2021. .
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Cowd 19: our response

The majority of our workforce has been working from home during the Covnd 19 pandem|c reﬂectmg guidelines set by local governments.
Significant resource has been deployed to ensure our people have received the appropriate support regarding physical and mental well-being
during remote worklng

RSA quickly put in place digital solutions for. customers whose lives and financial situations were impacted by Covid-19. Customers were able to
flex their policies free of usual administrative charges, and make a number of changes to make sure their cover remained appropriate for them
throughout the pandemic. Additionally, MORE TH>N, our personal insurance brand, gave customers who work for the National Health Service
(NHS) extended insurance cover to say thank you for their efforts in battling coronavirus. NHS workers received priority service, free courtesy cars
and extended cover for home emergencies, giving them extra peace of mind and helping them focus on saving lives. in the UK we were proud to be
a significant contributor to the insurance and long-term savings industry’s Covnd 19 Support Fund whlch launched in May 2020 and has now raised
over £100 million.

Our strategy

Our aim is to further improve the underwriting result of the UK Business. We will achieve this by stabilising and then strengthening our Commercial
Lines business, growing our direct channel in Personal Lines and continuing to improve our productivity. We are therefore focused on simplifying
our business, equipping it with the tools and digital capabllltles required to serve customers efficiently and well, and bunldlng a culture that values
high performance and develops tafent. :

Outlook

Digital investment to support Personal Lines growth and continued portfolio actions to reshape our Commerclal Lines business will help us to
achieve consnstent and sustainable profits in competitive markets. :

Post-Brexit transmon
The Company recognises that Ieaving the European Union (EU) could bring unexpected challenges and extend economic uncertainties.

The creation of RSA Luxembourg has insulated the Company from the main regulatory impacts of Brexit. The transfer of risk underwritten through
- the European branch network to RSA Luxembourg has ensured a smooth transition for our customers and brokers following the UK’s departure
~ from the EU. : .

.As the Company moves into anewera between the UK and the EU, there remains some potentiat for economic shocks, claims inflation and supply
chain disruption but the Company believes it is well placed to respond to and mitigate any impacts.

The Company continues to monitor the new relationship between the UK and the EU closely.
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company’s principal risks and uncertainties are integrated within and managed together with the principal risks ot the Group .The principal risks
and uncertainties of the Group, which include those of the Company, are set out in the Risk management note on pages 31 to 37 of the Company's
Accounts and the Strategic report of the 2020 Annual Report ‘and Accounts of the Group. .

‘ Employment policy

RSA'’s vision is to create an inclusive workplace where everyone can bring their best selves to work.. RSA does this by building diversity across all
levels of the organisation and creating an inclusive culture which attracts, encourages and is strengthened by diverse perspectives, establishing the
best foundation to serve its customers.

The Company is committed to the promotion of equal opportunities for all employees and the only acceptable form of discrimination is on the basis
of an individual's ability to do the job. The Company aims to ensure that no employee or job applicant or leaver receives less favourable treatment
on the grounds of sex, sexual orientation, gender re-assignment, marital status, race - mc!udlng colour and nationality, disability, religion and belief,
age or pregnancy and maternity. . .

Equal Opportunities and Dignity at Work policies support these commitments and the Company welcomes applications from all sections of the
community. The Company has a close working réelationship with trade unions and employee associations in all parts of the business where they
exist and consults with employees and representatives on relevant matters taking their views into consideration. There is also a European Works
Council (EWC’) which consults with employee representatives on transnational matters across UK, Ireland, Sweden, Norway, Denmark, France,
Spain, the Netherlands, Belgium and Germany. The annual meeting of the EWC, scheduled to take place in March 2020 was cancelled due to the
Covid-19 pandemic. Regular consultations with employee representatives took place throughout the year.

Anti-bribery and Corruptlon

The Company takes its commitments to preventing bribery and corruption risk very seriously.: Bribery and corruption are not tolerated anywhere in
the business and this standard, led by the Board and Group Executive, applies globally

The Anti-Corruption, Conflicts of Interest Gifts and Hospitality policies apply Group-wide and are supported by extensive resources and guidance,
including an anti-bribery toolkit, which is available to all our businesses. Mandatory Group-wide Anti-bribery and Corruption training is supplemented
by targeted training for staff in higher risk roles, and all employees are required to complete training on whistleblowing. As a result, employees are -
equipped to identify and escalate issues and behaviours which may constitute corruption. The Company seeks to malntaln the right culture by.
regular reminders of expectations. Anti-Corruption processes are subject to review by internal audit.

All operating countries, must complete regular anti-corruption risk assessments covenng aII aspects of their businesses, including procedures and
HR matters and the high expectations we have of our partners. Operating countnes are all given guidance to support them to contlnuously improve
their anti-corruption controls
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- The Company strongly encourages our people to speak out if they have concerns about Anti- Bribery and Corruption. An annually-reviewed Group-
wide whistleblowing policy, available on the intranet, sets out the procedure for colleagues to confidentially raise concerns about suspected
wrongdoing and malpractice. :

Information on policy compliance is escalated to management. The board receives updates on the anti-corruption controls at least annually. Where
a breach is material or not in compliance with regulations, it will be reported externally.

Human rights

As signatories of the UN Global Compact, the Company is committed to protecting human rights and eliminating discrimination, and the Human
Rights policy outlines the expectations placed on employees, business partners and suppliers in this regard to ensure the Company is taking
appropriate steps to address the risk of modern slavery in its supply chains. The Company has updated its Third Party Contracts Policy and
Supplier Code of Conduct to set a clear expectation of compliance. In addition, the Company has updated its due diligence processes to enable it to
assess a supplier's position on human rights and environmental and social issues more effectively. .

Greenhouse gas emissions

Information on.the Company’s greenhouse gas emission reporting can be found in the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts of the Group.

Sectlon 172 Companies Act 2006

The Board recognises the importance of positive relationships between the Company, its ultimate shareholder and other stakeholders, and is
committed to fostering and maintaining strong engagement with them. Open and collaborative dialogue and interaction is in the best interests of the
Company and helps us to make a positive contribution to society. Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires directors, in making their
decisions and choices, to have regard to a non-exhaustive list of factors to ensure that, in promoting the success of the Company for the benefit of
its shareholders, broader implications of decisions are consudered

In 2020, the directors and senior management engaged with key stakeholder groups across the business. These engagements were adapted as
external and internal demands on our business evolved, particularly in light of Covid-19 restrictions on operations and travel. :

The below table sets out some highlights from the Board's engagement with key stakeholders during 2020; together with details of the actions taken

as a result of the engagemenit.

Stakeholder group and why |t is important

Form of engagement and consideration of

Outcomes and actions

| Good business starts with our customers and
we strive to keep them at the heart of what we
do. To ensure that we offer the right products at
[ the right price and on the right terms, we work
hard to increase our understanding of our
customers’ risks and their evolving needs.

Customer satisfaction” and ‘customer retention
is critical to the long-term sustainable prospects
of the Company.

One of the Company's strategic goals is the
ambition of delivering improvements . in
customer service.

While the type of customer we serve ranges
from individuals through to large corporations,
our ambition to provide support and excellent
service remains the same and it'is vital that we
engage with our customers to ensure that we
are meeting their expectations.

customer and conduct matters, as well as
receiving quarterly updates from the UK
Customer Committee, which has been
established to support good customer

outcomes and ensure that decisions are taken

with the impact on customers at front of mind.

Given the challenges of 2020, the Board
ensured that it had visibility of the interim|
governance set up by management to oversee
the hundreds of management - decisions that
impacted on the way. we dealt with customers
in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

The directors also receive insight from the
Group on feedback from our customers, which
suggests that their areas of priority include not
only ‘efficient underwriting and responsive
customer service,.. but also corporate
responsibility, use of technology, innovation
and new and changing areas of risk such as
cyber and climate change.

In response to. Covid-19 and its effect on
businesses holding Business Interruption (“Bl”)
policies, the FCA announced its' intention to
obtain a court declaration on contractual
interpretation of certain Bl policies in the UK
market. The FCA identified a representative
sample of 17 policy wordings and invited a

.| subset of 8 insurers, including RSA, to. assist

by participating in the test case. The Board
agreed that it was important to resolve ongoing
uncertainty for businesses facing "questions
around the validity of their Bl claims, and
therefore determined that it was appropriate for
RSA to participate in the test case,

Throughout the year, the Board received
periodic - updates on the test case and
associated activity, including in relation to

RSA’s potential exposure, and following the}

to engage interests
Customers The Board receives regular updates on|Our aim to be a best-in-class insurer means an

intense focus on’improving customer service
and our underwriting and claims techmcal
skills.

The Company aims to be proactive, digitally
enabled whilst providing tailored products that
address evolving customer demands and
needs.

The regular updates received by the Board |
have helped- ensure the Company promotes
and secures positive outcomes for its
customers and enabled the Board to focus on
all areas which are important to its customers.

The Board also acknowledges an increased
focus from all stakeholders on corporate
responsibility and  sustainable - business
practices. Therefore, the Board has ‘sought to
ensure that these are relevant considerations jn
all Board decisions.

The Supreme Court handed down its judgment
on 15 January 2021 and the Board welcomes
the clarity that this brings for both customers
and the insurance industry.

4
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Stakeholder group and why it is important

Form of engagement and con5|derat|on of

| interests

Outcomes and actions

to engage

judgment of the High Court considered in detail
whether or not it was appropriate to seek
permission (alongside other insurers and the

|FCA) to appeal the court’s findings to the}.

Supreme Court. Given the questions of law of
general public importance that were raised by
the test case, and taking into account the
interests - of stakeholders including
policyholders, shareholders and regulators in
achieving maximum clarity, the Board
considered that it was appropriate to seek
permission to appeal.

Shareholders

The Company is wholly-owned by Royal
Insurance ‘Holdings Limited and part of the
RSA Insurance Group plc group of companies.
Its ultimate shareholder is RSA Insurance
Group plc, a company listed on the London
Stock Exchange.

An update on the Company’s performance, its
governance arrangements. and other key
aspects of the business is provided at each
board meeting of RSA Insurance Group pic.
This engagement ensures ongoing two-way
dialogue with the ultimate shareholder on
business performance and the Company's

| strategy.

The two-way dialogue with the ultimate
'shareholder over the course of 2020 was
positive, engaging  and beneficial with UK
financial performance being a key topic of
discussion. The directors of the Company and
RSA .Insurance Group plc are the same,
ensuring alignment between the Company and
the ultimate shareholder.

Workforce

RSA is a people-centred business, with an
ambition to perform at best-in-class levels. The
Board recognises the key role of the workforce
in delivering the strategy and values time spent
with these individuals.

RSA aims to be a place where fulfilling careers
can be built. We can achieve this through
success in our business goals and living our
People Principles: building a culture of high
performance, working together effectively, and
sustaining the diverse capabilities we require to
succeed.

We engage with our workforce to ensure that
we are fostering this environment and meeting
the needs of our workforce.

Although we engage with different members of
the workforce in different ways, the Board
acknowledges that the entire workforce can be
affected by Board decisions and that
engagement with all sections of the workforce
will ensure that the widest possible range of
_{ views are taken into account.

Activities in the year provided a meaningful and
regular dialogue between the Board and' the
workforce and allowed for all members of the
Board to be involved directly in workforce
engagement matters.

During the course of 2020, members of the
Board attended ‘town hall’ meetings remotely
so they can hear directly from employees.
These ‘town hall' meetings are supplemented
by internal communications, including emails,
internal social collaboration tools and intranet
postings, which provide our entire workforce
with relevant updates and further information
on key issues.

The Board has had virtual sessions with its
Diversity and Inclusion (D&!) councils and
representatives. The sessions were very well
received and considered. to be a valuable
exercise by both the Board and the
representative attendees.

The UK CEO communicated with the workforce
about the recommended offer for RSA. The
Board requested information resources, with
Q&As for the workforce to be operated by
management using content cascaded from the
Board. These resources included information
about the offer, next steps, the impact on
strategy and employees as well -as ‘pensions
and other employee benefits.

We  also regularly undertake employee
engagement . and cultural surveys to gain
insight into the opinions of our employees.
These surveys address the medium and long-
term aspects. of employment relationship
growth and are therefore targeted at people we
directly employ. Other members of our
workforce who may be with us on a shorter-
term, contingent basis are encouraged to share
their views at any time through their line
managers or various online feedback tools.

The Board reviewed papers relating to D&l with
a particular focus on actions relating to race
and ethnicity. The Board.received an update on
the multiple jnitiatives in_place .across the
regions that aim 'to make RSA an inclusive
workplace, and received feedback on our
successes as weII as progress against stated
targets.

The Board also analysed and compared the
results of workforce surveys to gauge -the
sentiment on the effect of Covid-19 on work
conditions. The Board learned that continued
communication about plans going forward and
increased “interest .in remote working were
priorities for our w9rkforce, and about those

Direct engagement with.the workforce has |
been particularly challengmg during 2020 due
to the Covid-19 pandemic, and the Board has
risen to this challenge. The Board had
particular focus on the practical implications of
Covid-19 for the workforce, including enabling
employees to balance = “their  caring
responsibilities with work, and making available
various. well-being initiatives and resources. |
While we believe that the Board ~has
successfully achieved a meaningful dialogue
virtually with employees, we have included
even more opportunities for workforce
engagement in our Stakeholder Engagement
Plan for next year, including non-executive
director dialogue with regional D&! councils.
The Board has reconfirmed its preference for
all Board members to engage in a direct
dialogue with the workforce.

The Board has reflected on the actions and
precautions being taken to accommodate our
workforce's priorities and concerns, and has
confirmed that management is appropriately
considering and protecting the well-being of our
people. The Board ‘- continues to monitor
initiatives and policies in response to
challenging business conditions that impact our
people and, consistent with our values, this is
approached with sensitivity and support as far
as is practicable.

D&l updates have allowed the Board to monitor
its compliance with the recommendations in
several reviews -and charters, such as the
Women in Finance Charter. The Board has
endorsed actions and policies designed to
support the increased representation of women
in senior leadership roles.

5
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Stakeholder group and why it is important
to engage

Form of engagement and consideration of
interests

Outcomes and actions

areas where employees needed continued
support. These priorities and the outcome of
the regional workforce surveys, including focus
areas going forward, were discussed by the
Board with managers from the business.

Regulators and ratings agencies

RSA is committed to working with all- of its
regulators in an -open, ~cooperative and
transparent manner. We seek to ensure a
strong regulatory compliance  culture
throughout the Company in order to pre-empt
and,” where necessary, resolve regulatory
issues and to avoid or minimise business
impact and surprises.

The Board continues to have constructive
engagement with our regulators, ensuring that
they gain a comprehensive view of the
Company's governance priorities and that we
understand the issues of interest to them.

.Given the-importance of our creditworthiness to
our customers, investors -~ and other
stakeholders, the -Group also engages on a
regular basis with our.two key ratings agencies.

‘| The directors engage regularly’ with the FCA

and PRA, and Board members have met
directly with the FCA and PRA.

The .Board receives periodic ubdates from the
business on regulatory matters and priorities,

Covid-19 and the offer to buy RSA have been
the focus of. discussions in 2020. The
regulatory capital requirements of the Group
and the UK standalone capital measures are
also monitored and discussed with the relevant
reguiators.

Senior management “interacts regularly with

Standard & Poor's and Moody’s, our two key

.| rating agencies. Board members are kept

informed of the current credit views of debt
investors and the rating agencies through
regular commentary and financial - metric
reporting at Board meetings. :

We receive positive feedback from -our
meetings with our regulators. The open and
regular dialogue has promoted transparency |.
between the Company and the regulators and
ensures that we are in a position to reflect the
views of our regulators when setting strategy.

The outcomes of our engagement with our
regulators influences the priorities and focus for
the year set out in the Group’s regulatory
compliance plan which is considered -and

approved by the Group Audit Committee.

Pension schemes

RSA is committed to fully supporting the pension schemes, and the Board continues to view the pension trustees as a key stakeholder group. In
2020, the pension trustees were provided with quarterly updates on the Group's performance and offered meetings with other RSA senior
executives. The Board also continued to’engage with and support the development of investment strategy in the Company’s pension schemes
(noting that this i |s ultimately controlled by the trustees).

The Board approved the funding agreements for the Company s two large defined benefit pension schemes designed to provide a more stable,
lower-risk future for the plans -themselves and for RSA as sponsor. The Company has committed to pay.contributions at this level until the

: By order of the Board

(luristopluer Smtle

C Smyth .|
For and on behalf of Roysun Limited
Secretary

Approved by the board of directors on 25 February 2021

schemes are fully funded on a lower-risk basis. Quarterly business updates are provided to the pensxon trustees
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Dlrectors report
for the year ended 31 December 2020
Directors /

The names of the current directors are listed on bage 1. From 1 January 2020 to date the following changes have taken place:

Director . Appointed
- Clare Bousfield 1 April 2020

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors’ responsibilities statement appears on page 10 and is incorporated by reference into this fepon.
None of the directors have any interest in the shares of the Company.

Dividends o

No interim dnvndends were declared or paid during the year (2019: £350m). The directors do not recommend payment of a final dlwdend (2019:
£nil). .

Information included wnthm the Strateglc repon

Informatlon relating to overseas subsidiaries. and branches of the Company, financial nsk management likely future developments and the
Company's employment policy is contained within the Strategic report on pages 2 to 6 and is incorporated into ;hls report by reference. -

Political donations
The Company did not make any political donations during the financial year (2019: £nil).
Auditor '
Each of the persons who is a diréctor at the date of approval of this report confirms that:
) ,o" so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit informaiion of which the Company's auditor i$ unaware; and .
e the director has takenall reasonable steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of
any relevant audit information, and to establish that the Company'’s auditor is aware of that information. .

This conﬁrmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of $418 of the Companies Act 2006.

KPMG LLP were deemed re- apponnted auditors of the Company at its Annual General Meetlng on 7 May 2020 and a resolution. for their
reappointmient will be proposed at the 2021 Annual General Meeting. .

"Directors’ indemnity.

Article 118 of the Articles of Association provides that, among other things and insofar as permitted by law, the Company may indemnify its
directors against any liability and may purchase and maintain insurance against-any liability. The directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries have the benefit of Directors’ and Officers’ insurance which provides cover in respect of legal actions brought against them.

Post balance sheet events

'_ Post balance sheet events are set out in note 45 on page 67 of the Accounts.
Going concern

The Board has made an assessment of going concern covering a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial
statements. The Board’s assessment included the review of the Company’s strategic plans and updated forecasts, capital position, liquidity
including credit facilities and investment portfolio, which are based on the Company continuing to operate on a standalone basis and reflects the
Company's assessment of the impact of the current challenging economic environment. The review included significant stress testing, including
extreme downside scenarios and a reverse stress test. Scenarios considered include significant deteriorations in market and credit conditions, and
severe claims events from catastrophe losses. In making their assessment, the Board have considered the impact of the recent UK Supreme Coun
decnsnon on business interruption losses, |nclud|ng the availability of reinsurance to recover incurred claims. .

- The assessment also consndered the impact of the offer to buy the Company s ultimate parent undertaklng RSA Insurance Group Plc should the
deal complete or fall away. If the deal completes the Board expects .restructuring of the Group to occur, but considers that the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern will not be adversely affected.

Based on this review no material uncertainties that would require disclosure have been identifi ed in relation to'the ability' of the Company to remain-
a going ‘concem for at least the next twelve months, from both the date of the balance sheet and the approval of the financial statements.

Corporate governance
- For the year ended 31 December 2020, under The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulatlons 2018, the Company has applied the Wates

Corporate Governance Pnncnples for Large Private Companies .(published by the Financial Reporting Council in December 2018 and available at
- www.frc.org.uk). Detalls of how the Company has complled with the principles and suppomng gundance are set out below.
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Principle 1 = purpose and Ieadershig ‘

Purpose
.The Company's purpose is to protect customers against risk and to serve its shareholder.

Values and culture
The Company’s valiies are embedded throughout the business. They seek to guide employees on what is expected of them whilst.they build their
career at RSA. The Company aims to be a place where fulfilling careers can be built. We can achieve this through success in our business goals
and living our People Principles: building a culture of high performance, working together effectively, and sustaining the diverse capabilities we
require to succeed. The Company's values underpin how the Company seeks to deliver for its customers and its other stakeholders. RSA is a
people-centred business which aims for a culture of high performance, where working together as a team is valued and the business invests in its

-people. There are various mechanisms in place to monitor and assess culture, including a cultural mini survey and cultural health update.

The Company seeks to fulfil its purpose, ambition and strategy by consistently building on its core business values: i) strong custom'er éewice; ii)
great technical know-how; iii) focus and determination; iv) a cuiture of openness and transparency; and v) the power of teamwork.

Principle 2 — Board composition

The directors of the Company are named on page 1, and their biographies can be found on the Group's website www.rsagroup.com. The Board is
composed of the Group Chairman, three executive directors and six independent non-executive directors. The non-éxecutive -directors provide
independent challenge to the executives: There is a clear division of responsibility between the Chairman, Martin Scicluna and the Group Chief
Executive, Stephen Hester. . '

The Group Nomination and Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and committees.
As the Company’s board is composed of the same directors as the RSAIG board, the Group Nomination and Governance Committee identifies and
proposes candidates to the Board. It ensures appropriate succession plans are in place for the Board and revrews executive succession planning.
Further mformatlon can be found in the Annual Report and Accounts of the Group.

The Board recognises the importance of diversity, including gender, social and ethnic backgrounds, and of cognitive and personal strengths. The
Board values the breadth of perspective that such diversity can bring and the beneficial effect it can have on the Board's effectiveness. As at the
date of this report, the Board is composed of 40% women. The Company will continue to seek out opportunities to further improve diversity and -
inclusion on the Board and across the Company while always seeking to appoint the most appropriate candidates based on merit.

The Board considers that six members of the Board are independent. The independent directors, fed by the chainnan ‘'seek to- challenge the
executive on their execution of the Company’s operating -plan and strategy. The mdependent directors ensure there is objective judgement in all
Board decisions. The chairman encourages a culture of openness and debate. . . .

Effectiveness

The Board of the Company is composed of the same directors as that of RSAIG. The performance and effectiveness of the Board of RSAIG and its -
committees was conducted internally, following the externally facilitated review last year. The Board of the Company has chosen to rely on the
findings of the performance and effectiveness review of RSAIG. The evaluation was conducted using online surveys completed by the Board and
regular management attendees to Board and committee meetings, complemented by individual interviews with each director conducted by the
Senior Independent Director and the Company Secretary. Respondents unanimously concurred that the Board had performed well over the year
and was operating effectively. with positive dynamics and a well-balanced composition. Further information can be found in the Governance section
of the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts of the Group.

Principle 3 - director responsibilities

Accountability

The Board is committed to effective governance, sound risk management and a robust control environment. We consider the foundation of an -
effective risk management framework to be the cultivation of a risk culture that promotes accountability and openness_(a willingriess to admit
mistakes and learn from the past). At RSA, the senior management team has been instrumental in setting the right ‘tone from the top’, and we gain

_insights from culture health reviews and periodic workforce surveys. A key part of our cuiture is ensuring that our customers are at the heart of all
we.do, and our staff are passronate about achieving good customer outcomes. We give considerable attention to ensuring our customers are
treated fairly. .

Committees

In order that it can operate efficiently and give the right level of attention and consideration to relevant matters, the Board delegates certain activities
to the Group Audit Committee. It also relies on the RSAIG board's committees for relevant matters. The Board shares these committees with the
Group Board. Further information on the work of the committees can be found in the Annual Report and Accounts of the Group. :

|ntegrity of information

The Board receives regular and timely information on all aspects of the Company's business. This includes financial performance, strategy,
performance against the operational plan, internal audit, risk and compliance, and governance. Intemal processes and systems are robust which
ensures that management information is accurate and timely. The Company'’s financial statements are audited by KPMG LLP on an annual basis.
Principle 4 — opportunity and risk '

Opportunity

The long-term opportunities for the Company are outtined in the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts of.the Group.
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Risk ' '

The Company’s principal risks and uncertainties are integrated within and managed together with the principal risks of the Group. The principal risks
and uncertainties of the Group, which include those of the Company, are set out in the Risk management note on pages 31 to 37 of the Company's
Accounts.and the Strategic report of the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts of the Group. .

Responsibilities : : S A - -

Group Internal Audit's (GIA) primary purpose is to ‘keep RSA safe and improving'. Specifically, GIA helps the Board and executive management to
protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of the Group and the Company. GIA does this by assessing whether all significant risks are
identified and appropriately reported by management and the second line of defence to the Board and executive management; assessing whether
they are adequately controlled and by challenging executive management to |mprove the effectiveness of governance risks management and
internal controls. .

"~ GlA is an independent and objective function reporting to the Board. The Group Chief Auditor is a member of the Group Executive Committee ‘and-
has a primary reporting line to the Chairman of the Group Audit Committee, with a secondary reporting line to the Group Chief Executlve Regional
Chief Audrtors report directly to the Group Chief Auditor, while recognising local legislation or regulation. .

GIA’s scope of activities is unrestricted, and-its audit universe extends to all legal entities, joint ventures and other business partnerships,
outsourcing and reinsurance arrangements. It includes first line of defence control validation and second line of defence assurance actlvmes and
the system of governance as set out under Solvency I .

Principle 5 = remuneration
Setting remuneration

The Group’s Remuneration Committee reviews and challenges the Company’s remuneration policy and ensures this promotes the Iong -term
sustainable success of the Company. This includes challenging and setting the remuneration of executive directors and the Chairman of the Board.
The Committee also reviews workforce remuneration and related policies. It also ensures alignment between incentives and culture, and takes
.these into account when setting the policy for executive director remuneration. Further lnformatlon on the work of the Group Remuneratlon
Commlttee can be found in the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts of.the Group. :

. The Remuneration Committee’s remit is defined in its terms of reference which may be found on the Group's website' www.rsagroup.com.

Principle 6 — stakeholder relationships and enqg,qement

Information on the’ Company's stakeholder relationships and engagement can be found in"the section 172 statement on p‘aées 4 to 6. of the
Company'’s Strategic report. . . )

Signed by order of the Board

UA/ViSllOF(ALV Swu,?f'(b

'C Smyth
For and on behalf of Roysun lelted
Secretary

Approved-by the board of directors on 25 February 2021



~ DocuSign Envelope ID: EA9F4FBZ-8EEB-4275—BD4B-152534784671 .

Royal & Sun Allrance Insurance plc ’
.Statement of directors’ responsrblhtres in respect of the Strategic report the Drrectors _report and the Financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparlng the Strateglc report Directors’ report and the Flnanmal statements in accordance wrth applicable law
and regulations. .

Company law requires the directors to prepare such financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, they have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable taw (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practlce) including FRS
101 Reduced Dlsclosure Framework

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the' Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these f nancial statements, the directors are requrred
to: . .
’ e  select suitable accounting poI|C|es and then apply them con5|stently.
«  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; :
. state whether applicable UK Accountrng Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explamed in the
financial statements;
-« assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gorng concern; and
¢ use the going concern basis of accounting unfess they either intend to liquidate the Company or to ceasé operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so. S

The directors are responsrble for keeping adequate accountmg records that are sufficient to show and explain the Companys transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as-they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other lrregularrtles

- Under applicable law and regulatrons the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strateglc report and a Directors’ report that comphes with that law
and those regulations. . . .
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Independent audltor s report to the members of Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

1 Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc (‘the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 which comprise the
Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Comprehensuve Income and Statement of Changes in Equity, and the related notes, lncludmg the
accounting policies in note 3.

In our opmlon the financial statements: :

e  give a true and fair view of the state of Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its profit for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework, and
e  have been prepared in accordance with the requlrements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opmlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described .
below. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion is consistent with our
report to the audit committee. . :

We were first appointed as auditor by the directors on 13 May 2013. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is for the eight financial years ended 31
December 2020. We have fulfilled our -ethical responsibilities under, and we remain independent of the Company in-accordance with, UK ethical .
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to. public interest entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided.

2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key-audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements and include the
most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters,
in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as
required for public interest entities, our results from those procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, *

in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are
incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. )

Valuation of clalms outstanding
adjustment expenses

Risk vs 2019 A

Refer to page 27 (accounting policy) and pages 61-64 (fi nanc:al disclosures)

Claims outstanding 2020: £4,432 million gross, £3,182 m|II|on net, 2019: £4,327 m||||on gross, £3,135 million net, relating to provrsron for losses and loss

The risk

Our response

Subjective valuation

Valuation of claims outstanding is highly judgmental because it
requires a number of assumptions to be made with high estimation
uncertainty such as loss ratios, estimates of the frequency and
severnty of claims and, where appropriate, the discount rates for
longer tail classes of business, by temitory and line of business. The
determination and application of the methodology and performance
of the calculations are also complex.

A margin is added to the actuarial best estimate of claims
outstanding .to make allowance for specific risks and uncertainties
that are not specifically allowed for in establishing the actuarial best
estimate. The appropriate margin to recognise is a subjective
judgment and estimate taken by the directors, based on the
perceived uncertainty -and potential for volatility in the undenylng
claims.

Certain lines of business have greater inherent uncertainty, for
example those where claims emerge more slowly over time, or
where there is greater variability in claim settlement amounts and
potential exposure to large losses due to the effect of uncertain or
unknown future events. This includes UK Professional and Financial
Risk classes. Additional uncertainty in the valuation of -claims
outstanding has arisen as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the estimation of resulting claims, particularly for Business
Interruption classes and the impact of the FCA Test Case ruling, and
reductions in claims frequency experienced for some classes of
business.

Reinsurance recoveries are inherently linked to gross claims
outstanding. The extent of recoveries from the ‘Group Volatility
Cover (‘GVC') reinsurance contract is a key area of uncertainty due

eligible for the GVC and aggregatlon of eligible claims required to
trigger a recovery.

to the judgement applied in determining the value of individual claims |

With the assistance of our own actuarial specnalrsts including component audit
teams, our procedures included:

Controls .design and observation: We evaluated the govemanoe
around the overall Company reserving process. We assessed the
qualifications and experience of those responsible and examined the
output of the reviews to assess the scope and depth of these processes.
We also evaluated key controls designed to ensure the integrity if the
data used in the actuarial reserving process (including both current and
prior year case reserve data). The controls included .reconciliations
between data in the actuarial reserving systems and data in the policy
administration systems.

Data comparisons: We inspected reconciliations between the claims
data recorded in the policy administration systems and the data used in
the actuarial reserving calculations to test the completeness of the data
used in the actuarial reserving process.

Independent re-performance: We perfoormed independent re-
projections of reserve balances using our own models for certain classes |
of business. The detemination of which classes to re-project was based
on risk assessment and. consideration of the evidence available from
other altemative data analysis procedures.

. Our sector experience and benchmarking assumptxons We

ccompared assumptions, reserving methodologies and estimates of
losses to expectations based on the Company's historical experience,
current trends, extemnally-derived data and benchmarking against
industry trends including information relating to COVID-19 claims that
may affect claims settliement speed or amount.

. Sensitivity analysis: We evaluated sensitivity analy5|s over key

judgments and assumptions, such as large claims and the dlsoount rates
for longer tail classes of business.

Margin evaluation: We evaluated the appropriateness of the Reserve
Committee’s recommended margin to be applied to the actuarial best
estimate. In order to do this- we assessed the Directors’ approach to
setting the margin. In particular we considered the allowance for

" uncertainties inherent in the data and assumptions in developing the

actuarial best estimate through inquiry with the Directors and with respect
to our understanding of any changes in the Company’s risks and our own

1"
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The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the valuation of claims outstanding has a high
degree of estimation uncertainty, with a potential range of reasonable
outcomes greater than our materiality for the financial statements as
a whole, and possibly many times that amount. The financial
statements (note 34) disclose the sensmvny estimated by the
Company.

Data capture

The valuation of claims outstanding depends on complete and
accurate data about the volume, amount and pattemn of current and
historical claims since they are often used to form expectations about
future claims. If the data used in calculating claims outstanding, or
for forming judgments over key assumptions, is not complete and
accurate then material impacts on the valuation of claims outstanding
may arise.

sector experience of approaches to setting the margin and the level of
margin held by the Company’s peers.

— . Assessing principles: We inspected a sample of Business Intenuptwn
policy documents, other policyholder and external information to verify
assumptions in the modelling of exposure to claims as a resuit of the |
FCA Test Case outcome and the Company’s legal assessment of the
extent of cover.

— Tests of details: We compared samples of claims case reserves to
appropriate documentation, such as reports from loss adjusters in order
to test the valuation of individual claims reserves, particularly where such
claims may be subject to recovery under reinsurance arrangements,
particularty the GVC contract. -We also inspected samples of policy
documents to verify completeness and accuracy of data in the modelling
of exposure to claims as a resuit of the FCA Test Case outcome and
considered the eligibility for recovery under the Companys reinsurance

. arrangements.

— Assessing transparency: We considered the adequacy of the |-
Company'’s disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of claims outstanding
to key assumptions. .

We performed the tests above over the valuation rather than seeking to rely on the
Company's controls because the nature of the balance is such that we would expect
to obtain audit evidence primarily through the detailed procedures described. -

Our results )
We found the valuation of claims outstanding to be acceptable (2019 result:
acceptable). '

| Vatuation of post-employment benefits and obligations
(2020: £8,839 million; 2019: £8,142 million)

Risk vs 2019 «»

Refer to pages 28-29 (accountrng policy) and pages 4145 (f' nanc:al disclosures)

The risk

Our response

Subjective valuation

Small changes in the assumptions and estimates used, in pamcular
the discount rate, inflation rate and mortality improvements, which
are highly sensitive to market and geographic circumstances, can
| have a significant -effect on the valuation of the Company’s post-
employment obligations and therefore the amount of the post-
employment beneﬁts and obllgatlons and the Company’s financial
position.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the valuation of post-employment benefits and
obligations has a high degree of estimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable outcomes greater than our matériality
for the financial statements as a whole and possibly many times that
amount. The financial statements (note 15) disclose the sensitivity
estimated by the Company. .

With the assistance of our own pensxon actuarial specialists, our procedures
included:

— Benchmarking assumptions and our experience: Comparing the key
assumptions such as discount rate, inflation rate and mortality
improvements against our independent models using extemal data and
information relating to the pension schemes’ liability and demographic
profile

— Assessing valuer's credentials: Evaluating the Compan)rs external

- valuer's competence, objectivity, capability and scope of work.

— Assessing transparency: Considering the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the defined pension obligation
to these assumptions. .

We performed the tests above rather than seeking to rely on any of the Company’s
“controls because the nature of the balance is such that we would expect to obtain

audit evidence primarily through the detailed procedures described.

Our results
We found the valuation of the post-employment beneﬁts and obhgattons to be
acceptable (2019 result: acceptable).

Valuation of deferred tax assets
(2020: £152 million; 2019: £153 million)

_Risk vs 2019 4>

Refer to page 28 (aoéounting policy) and pages 57-59 (financial disc/bsurés)

The risk

Our response

Forecast-based assessment
The recoverability of the recognised deferred tax asset is dependent

uncertainty involved in developing the operational plan upon which
forecast future taxable profits are based and further judgement in in
assessing to what extent the deferred tax assets can be recovered
against those forecast taxable profits. These forecasts determine the
extent to which deferred tax assets are or are not.recognised in the
financial statements.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk assessment, we

on the future profitability of the Company. There is inherent |

Our procedures included:

— Historical comparisons: Assessing the accuracy of the Company’s.

approved operating plan in relation to the forecasting process in the past.
- We considered whether projected margins are achievable with reference
to the business' recent performance and operating plans.

— Our experience: Assessing the appropriateness of the assumptions. in
the Company’s approved operatlng plan based on our own knowledge
and experience of the business. -

— Sensitivity .analysis: Sensitivity analysis of taxable profits to
assumptions such as expected weather losses, the development of
claims reserves, projected future expense levels, future investment.

determined that the recoverable amount of deferred tax assets has a

retums, and the projection period used for the forecast taxable profits.
12
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high degree of estimation uncertainty, with a potential range of — Our tax expertise: With the support of our own tax specialists and their

reasonable outcomes greater than our materiality for the financial : knowledge of tax legislation, we also assessed the extent to which

statements as a whole. The financial statements (note 28) disclose projected profits were taxable, in particular the Company’s assumptions
the sensrtnvnty estimated by the Company. . about how accumulated tax Iosses and other similar items can be utilized
by the Company.

—  Assessing transparency: Assessing the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures in respect of the assumptions applied in the calculation and
the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of
the valuation of the deferred tax asset to key assumptions.

We performed the tests above rather than seeking to rely on any of the Company’s
- controls because the nature of the balance is such that we would expect to obtain
audit evidence primarily through the detailed procedures described.

Having found the estimate to be at the high end of a reasonable range, we
- exercised judgement to determine the acceptability of the amount recognised, and
the clarity of the associated disclosure of the sensitivity of key assumptions.

Our results
As a result of our work we found the level of deferred tax assets recognised to be
acceptable (2019 result: acceptable).

We previously reported a key audit matter in relation to the Company’s IT systems and control environment, and.we continue to perform procedures over
this matter. Further to our identification of deficiencies in certain controls in the prior years, we have not sought to place significant refiance on the design
and operation of IT controls designed to mitigate the risk of failure to transfer data appropriately or the risk of inappropriate changes being made to data and
systems. We have addressed these risks through performing additional substantive testing over-and above that which would be required if reliance could be
placed on IT controls. As we do not seek to place reliance on these controls, we have not assessed IT controls as one of the areas of most sngnlﬁcance in
our curent year audit and, therefore, it is not separately identified as a key audit matter in our report this year.

We previously reported a key audit matter in relation to the valuation of shares in group undertakings and we continue to perform procedures over this
matter. Following the bid offer price received for the RSA Group in November 2020, management.has refined the methodology used to calculate the
valuation of the shares in group undertakings and there is a clear external market indicator to be used in that calculation. As a result, we have not assessed
the valuation of shares in group undertakings as one of the areas of most significance in our current year audit and, therefore, it is not separately identified as -
a key audit matter in our report this year.

3Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

. Matenality for the financial statements as a whole was set at £28m (2019: £28m), determined wrth reference to a benchmark of net eamed premiums (of
- which it represents 1.0% (2019: 0.9%)).

We continue to consider net eamed premiums to be the most appropriate benchmark and a fair reflection of revénue from the Company's operations as it is
not subject to the volatility arising from multi-year msurance contracts that net written premiums would be, and provides a more stable measure year on year
than profit before tax

" Performance materiality for the group was set at 65% (2019: 65%) of materiality for the financial statements as a whole, which equates to.£18.2m (2019:
£18.2m). We applied this percentage in our determination of performance materiality based on the Ievel of identified control deficiencies during the prior
" period and the number of areas of significant judgement in the audit. .

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £1.0m (2019: £1.0m), in addition to other
identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. .

Of the Company’s four reporting components, we subjected two to full scope audits and perfonned specrf ied risk focused audit procedures over the two
remaining components. .

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the percentages illustrated below:

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the following percentapes of the Cornpany's results:
Numiber of Net eamed Gross claims Profits and losses Total
" components premium outstanding before tax assets
Full scope audits 2 91% 86% 34% 97% -
Specified risk-focused audit procedures 2 9% 14% ' 66% 3%
Total 4 100% 100% 100% “100%

We mstructed component auditors as to the significant areas to be covered, including the relevant risks detailed above and the mformation to be reported
back. We approved the component materialities, which ranged from £3.6m to £23.8m, having regard to the mix of size and risk profile of the Group across
-the components. The audit procedures over the Canada and Ireland components were performed by component auditors. and we performed audit
procedures over the two UK components.

13
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- We visited no component locations during the year-due to travel restrictions as a result of the pandemlc and instead increased the virtual interactions with
component teams. Video and telephone conference meetings were held with the component auditors and local management since they were not physically
visited. At these meetings, the findings reported to the us were discussed in more ‘detail, and any further work we required was then performed by the
component auditor.

4 Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concem basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Company or to cease their
operations, and as they have. concluded that the Company's financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no
material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concem for at Ieast a year from the date of approval of
: the financial statements (“the going concemn period”). .

We used our knowledge of the Company, its industry, and the general economic environment to identify the inherent risks to its business model and
analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concem period. The Tisks that we
considered most likely to adversely affect the Company’s available financial resources over this period were:

¢ adverse insurance reserves development, potentially caused by impacts of thé COVID-19 pandemic;

. a deterioration in claims experience, potentially caused by market wide catastrophe event(s) including impacts of the COVID 19 pandemic;

o adeterioration in.the valuation of the Company’s investments arising from a significant change in the economic environment; and

. a decrease in the Company’s net pension surplus. .

‘We also considered less predictable but reallstlc second order impacts, such as the impact of non-completion of the proposed takeover bid received by the
uItlmate parent company. : . ‘ :

We considered whether these risks could plausibly affect the liquidity in the going concem period by assessing the Directors’ sensitivities over the leve! of
available financial resources indicated by the Companys financial forecasts taking account of severe, but plausible adverse effects that could anse from
these risks individually and collectively.

Our procedures also included:”

¢  Consideration of specific scenarios that could reasonably arise in refation to the Covid-19 pandemlc or |mpI|cat|ons of the proposed takeover
transaction, and assessing the assumptions applied by management in relation to these scenarios.

»  We considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 1 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate description of the directors’
assessment of going concemn, including the identified risks, dependencies, and related sensitivities. . .

Our conclusions based on this work:

«  we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financiat statements is appropriate;

e we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to events or condmons that
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period; and

o we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relatien to the Directors’ statement in note 1 to the financial statements on the use of the going
concem basis of accounting with no material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt over the Company’s use of that basis for the going concem -
period, and we found the gorng concem disclosure in note 1 to be acceptable.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
. were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Company wilt continue in operation.

§ Fraud and breaches.of laws and regulations ~ ability to detect
Identifying and résponding to risks of maten'al misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit

fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:

. Enquiring of directors, the audit committee, internal audit and management and inspection of policy documentatron as to the Company’s high-level
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal audit function, and the Company’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as
whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

e  Reading Board, Audit Committee and Risk Committee minutes. '

e  Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management and directors.

e  Using professionals with forensic knowledge to assist us in identifying fraud risks and designing appropriate procedures based on discussions of the
circumstances of the Company. ' .

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud throughout the audit. This included
communication to full scope component audit teams of relevant fraud risks identified at the Company level and request to full scope component audit teams -
to report to the company audit team any instances of fraud that could give rise to a material misstatement at Company level.

As required by auditing standards, -we perform procedures to address the. risk of management override of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue
recognition, in particutar the risk that estimated premium is valued incorrectly or recorded in the wrong period and the risk ‘that Company and component
management may be in a positicn to make inappropriate accounting entries, and the risk of bias in accounting estlmates and judgements such as premium
adjustments including premrum estimates.

We rdentmed fraud risks related to the valuation of claims outstanding, the valuation of deferred tax assets and the valuation of |ntang|ble assets, in response
to the level of estimation and judgement in these balances and possible pressures to meet profit targets. Further detail, where applicable, in respect of these
areas is set out in the key audit matter disclosures in section 2 of this report.

We performed procedures including:

o Identifying joumal entries to test for all full scope components, based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to supporung documentatlon
These included those posted by senior finance management and those posted to unusual accounts .

o  Assessing significant accounting estimates for-bias. .

Identifying and responding to risks of matenial misstatement due to non-compllance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our general -
. 14
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commercial and sector experience, -and through discussion with the directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from
inspection of the Company's regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures
regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

‘As the Company is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the control envrronment |nclud|ng the entity’s procedures for.
. complyrng with regulatory requirements. .

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit. This
included communication te full scope component audit teams of relevant laws and regulations identified at a Company level, and a request for full scope
component auditors to report to the oompany audit team any instances of non-compliance with Iaws and regulations that could give rise to a matenal
- misstatement at a Company level.

The potential effect of these Iam and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial reporting legislation (including related
companies legislation), distributable profits legislation, pension legislation and taxation legislation, and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws
and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items. .

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could have a material effect on amounts
or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company's licence to operate. We ,
identified the followmg areas as those most likely to have such an effect: regulatory capital and liquidity, conduct regulation and certain aspects of company

. legislation’recognising the financial and regulated nature of the Company’s activities. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulatlon

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material mlsstatements in the financial
statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws ‘and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected-in the financial statements, the less likely the mherently limited
procedures requ|red by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit there remained a higher risk of non-detection of imegularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal controls. Our procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not respon5|ble for preventing
non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

6 We have nothing to report on the strategic report and the directors’ report - '

. The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the ﬁnancral statements does not cover those reports and we
do not express an audit opinion thereon. .

Our responsrblllty is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on.our ﬁnancral statements audit work, the
information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:
-« we have not identified material misstatements in those reports;
- e inour opinion the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year is con5|stent with the ﬁnancral statements; and
. in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

7 We have nothing to report on the other matters ‘on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

»  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retumns adequate for or audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
« thefinancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
8 Respective responsibilities

Drrectors responsibilities ’

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 10,.the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements including being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such intemal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concem; and using the going concem basis of accountlng unless they erther intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor’s respons:brlmes

- - Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁnancnal statements as a whole are free' from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users' taken on the basis of the
financial statements. .

A fuller description of our responsibiltties is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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' 9 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities .
“This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report.and for no other

purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, -
as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the oplnlons we ‘have formed.

Salim Tharani (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

‘15 Canada Square .

London

E14 5GL -

25 February 2021
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Royal & Sun Alllance Insurance pIc

Profit and Loss Account
_ for the year ended 31 December 2020

Technical account - General business o o S 2020 2019

_ . . » . Notes £m £m
Gross premiums written ; . . Lo : 6 © 3,560 3,771 -
Outward reinsurance premiums ' ‘ . L . . . ’ -~ (841) (752)
Premiums written, net of reinsurance ) . . : 2,719 3,019
Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums . ‘ . 33 1 : . 58
Change in provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share oL ' ' .25 . .(19) - (13)
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance © ' T : ' : _ C 2,701 3.064
Other technical income, net of reinsurance - - : o ) 14 . 69 3 71

Claims paid _ : : o : —

- Gross amount AR : S ~ ' (2477)  (2.945)

Reinsurers' share - '+ o : . A » o ‘ 462 678 |
' B ' ' (1,715).  (2.267)

'Change in the provnsion for clalms ' . . _ .
Gross amount o ‘ . ' 4 .|, (74) 244

Reinsurers' share . C . , o o : 26 59 - (87)
' C ‘ - (5. 157
Claims incurred, net of,vreinsuu"ance o } ' ) L : : (1,730) (2',11'0)
Acquisition costs  ° ' I ' ‘ ) . - ' ) (511) (827)
Change in deferred acqutsmon costs ) ' : ) U C24) - 12
Administrative expenses - i : : . (287) . (262)
.Relnsurance commissions and prof' t partlcupanon Co ) o ' . .23 - 23
.Net operatmg expenses : . ) . (1,099) (1,054) .
- Balance on the technical account for general business . : : 6 ‘ (59) (29)

17



DocuSign Envelope ID: EAQF4EBZ-8EEB-4275-BD4B-.1 5é534~78467-1
Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance pic

Profit and Loss Account (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 -

Non-technical account . o ) - " - ) 2020 . 2019

‘ _ ' ‘ ‘ Notes gm - . fm

Balah‘c'e on the technical account for general business L : L ' . (59) ©(29)
Dividends from group undertakings - 9 1 2,955
Investment income : 9 148 169.
Realised (losses)/gains on investments 9 (1) 3
Unrealised losses on investments : - 9 (16) ) (19)
Investment expenses, charges and interest 9 (58) - (107)
-Impairment of group undenékings ) . . ) 9 - (2,408)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) ‘ : S : S s - (20)
- Operating profit . - I . . . : ' .19 . " 544
Loss on disposals e o ‘ B A @) (19)

Profit on ordinary activities before tax . : . . o 15 525

Tax on profit on ordinary activities - ) ‘ c v - 17 . (5) ()
- Profit for the financial year- i L T A v : . R 10 . 524

The-attached notes on pages 23 to 71 form an'integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
‘ for the year ended 31 Decembgr 2020

Profit for the ﬁnancial- year
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss when specific conditions are met:
Foreign exchange losses net of tax
Unrealised gains/(losses) on other financial instruments classified as-available for sale net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
.- Pension — remeasurement of net defined benefit liability net of tax
Movement in property revaluation su;plUs net of tax ‘ E . -

.Total other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The attached notes on pagés 23 to 71.form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2020 2019
Notes £m £m
10 524"
T (1) 1
9, 28 735 - (200)
734 (201)
15,28 (39) (85)
20 - 1
o (34) (84) -
32 700 (285)
710 239
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Called up share’  Share premium _ Revaluation Foreign currency - Profit and loss Shareholders

December-2020

capital . account - "reserve translation reserve account | - funds:
. £m _£m £m £m £m . £m
- Dalanceat 1 January 1215 295 2101 39 - 2,003 C 8312
Implementation of IFRS : - ) ) S . oy
16 - . - . . - - E 2 - ) (2)
Restated balance at 1 .y . - o
January 2019 ) 1,215 2,954 2,101 ) 39 ) 2,091 8,310
Profit for the Financial : ] o . ) _ j 524 ' 524
Year ) - ) .
Other comprehensive . } 196 ) . . . REy
income (note-32) ) - (199) o (89) (285)
" Total comprehensive ‘ ' v 4
income for the year ) AR (199) U 439 239
Dividends paid (note 18) S - - - - -(350) (350)
Dalance at 1 January T 1,218 2,954 1902 . 38 2,090 ° 8,199
" Profit for the Financial . L . . . i} 10 - 10
Year ) oo ’ . ) : :
Other comprehensive . : i . .
income (note 32) . 735 o . 34) 700
Total comprehensive ] i 735 : ('1) B (24) 710
income for the year . ) ' .
Dividends paid (note 18) - - . - S - - -
Balance at 31 C1,215 2954 263 . - 31 2,066 8,909

-The attached notes on pages 23 to 71 form an integral part of these ﬁnéncia! statements.
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2020

Assets - . ? L : 2020 2019
. ) . - , , ' Notes =~ £m ._Em
Inpangibléassets S R 'j o . S 19 - 275 © 226 .
Investments ] . o )
Land and buildings - : : : o 20 . 332 - 378

Investments in group undertakings and participating-intereéts .
Shares in group undertakings - . : . a 21 11,040 - 10,391 '

Other finéncial investments

Shares and other variable yiéld securities and units in unittrusts | J ‘ : : 409 - 373
- Debt securities and other. fixed income securities ’ . . 3,424 3,529
Other loans i - : o o o ' 257 195
, o . ) o, - ' 22 " . 4,000 4,007
Deposits with ceding undertakings - I . - 64 . 76
Total investments : - . © L 15,526 14,942

Reinsurers' share of technical provisions’

Provision for unearned premiums . o - o 25 | - - 660 679
Claims outstanding : e - ' .26 ~ 1,250 1,192
e ' : ‘ : o o 1,90 1,871
Debtors ‘
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operatibns_— pblicyholders i C ' 348 ’ 370
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations — intermediaries o . 1,168 : 1,693
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operatiohs : ’ . . ' 187 202
Amounts ovireg by group undertakings ' ' . ‘ N ‘ 1,146 1,113
Other debtors (including current taxation) ' . : - 37 - 528 . . .~ 452
) ‘ o : 33717 3230
Other assets ) .
Tangible assets o . p ‘ 29 | . 4 - 35
_ Deferred taxation - - 5 o I S . 28 152 153
Cash atbank and in hand . - ' o o : 140 . 123
. ‘ - © 326 3
Prepayments and accrued Income _ '
A_c.crued.interest and rent . ' T . o33 " 38
. Deferred acquisition costs - T30 © 407 " 429
Other prepayménts'and accrued income . . ' . ' N ' : : - 35 30
' ‘ : o C ’ o . 475 497
_Total assets o - A , , 21,889 21,077

The attached notes on pages 23 to 71 form an integral barl of these ﬁnanéial stateménts.v
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Balance Sheet (contmued)
as at 31 ‘December 2020

Liabilities. : . o - o . ' 2020 2019
- ' : Notes  fm - - £m

Capital and reserves . . .
Called up share capital . : ‘ L 31 _ 1,215 1,215

Share premium account o o ‘ . ' - 2,954 2,954
Revaluation reserve L S A o ‘ 2,637 1,902
Foreign currency translation reserve =~ - . ' ) ) o © o ay 38
Profit and loss account . ’ ) ' ' . : 2,066 _2,090

Shareholders’ funds - ) . . . ’ A ' 8,909 ‘- 8,199

Technical provisions

Provision for unearned premiums ‘ o ' . - 33 2,129 2,124

" Claims outstanding ' oo ; y . 34 4,432 . 4,327

o ' ‘ o ' ' 6561 ° 6,451

Provisions for other risks . S B 57 42
Creditors ' i ‘

Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations ) : - : ' ) : 45 45
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations . - ' B 732 . 738
Amounts owed to credit institutions R : ' ' 36 ’ 7 : 65
Amounts owed to group undertakings - | ) ) Lo 5045 4,987
Other creditors (including taxation and social security) h : ’ 38. : 332 338

) i ' ’ 6,161 6,173
: ‘Ac‘cruals and deferred income = ' . » . _ A .20 o212
Total liabilities - - L » . . 21,889 21,077

~The attached notes on pages 23 to71 form an mtegral part of these financial statements

" The fi nanCIaI statements were approved on 25 February 2021 by the Board of Dlrectors and are S|gned on its behalf by:

(larlstte domes
Charlotte Jdnee-
25 February 2021 .
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‘Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Notes to the accounts

1. Basis of preparation

- The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Royal Insurance Holdings Ltd and is incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The Company’s ultimate
parent company and controlling party is RSA insurance Group plc, which is registered in England and Wales and is the parent company of the
smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements. RSA Insurance Group plc has prepared its consolidated financial statements

-~ in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) in conformity with the requirements of the Companies. Act 2006 and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted pursuant to Regutation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union:

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 (FRS 101)
Reduced Disclosure Framework and in compliance with the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements are prepared on an historical cost basrs
Where other bases are applied, these are |dent|f ed in the relevant accounting polrcy

The Board has made an assessment of gorng concern coverlng a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these fi nancial
statements. The Board's assessment included the review of the Company’s strategic plans and updated forecasts, capital position, liquidity
including credit facilities and.investment portfolio, which are based on the Company continuing to operate on a standalone basis and reflects the
Company's assessment of the impact of the current challenging economic environment. The review included significant stress testing, including
extreme downside scenarios and a reverse stress test. Scenarios considered include significant deteriorations in market and credit conditions, and
severe claims events from catastrophe losses. In making their assessment, the Board have considered the impact of the recent UK Supreme Court
decision on business interruption losses, mcludmg the availability of reinsurance to recover incurred claims.

The assessment also considered the impact of the offer to buy the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking RSA Insurance Group Plc'should the
deal complete or fall away. If the deal completes the Board expects restructuring of the Group to occur, but consnders that the ablllty of the
Company to contmue as a going concern will not be adversely affected.

Based on this review no material uncertainties that would require disclosure have been identified in relation to the ability of the Company to remain
a going concern for at least the next twelve months, from both the date of the balance sheet and the approval of the financial statements.

The Company’s financial statements are presented in pounds sterlmg (£), and rounded to the nearest million (m) except where otherwise indicated.

" n preparing these financial statements the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (“Adopted IFRSs"), but makes amendments where necessary
in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS.101 disclosure exemptions has been taken.

The exemptions used by the Company are as follows: . .

Cash flow statement and related notes
The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs
Certain disclosures required by IFRS 16 Leases
Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel
" Disclosures in respect of transactions between two or more wholly owned subsidiaries of the group
Disclosures required by IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and-Discontinued Operations |n respect of the cash flows of dlscontmued
operations

As the consolidated financial statements of RSA Instirance Groub plc include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the
exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures:

. IFRS 2 Share Based Payments in respect of group settled share based payments

. Certain disclosures required by IAS 36 Impairment of Assets in respect of the impairment of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets
e  Certain disclosures required by IFRS 3 Business Combinations in respect of business combmatrons undertaken by the Company in the current'

: and prior periods including the comparative period reconciliation for goodwill

¢ Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement for non-financial instruments
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated
financial statements as it is a wholly-owned subsidiary of RSA Insurance Group plc, which prepares group financial statements. The Annual Report
and Accounts containing these consolldated financial statements can be found at www.rsagroup.com. .

2. Adoption of new and revised standards

There are a small number of narrow scope amendments to standards that are applicable to the Company for the first ttme in 2020, none of which
have had a significant impact on the financial statements.

3. Selection of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting pohcnes used in the preparation of these financial statements, as set out below, have been applred consistently to all
periods presented.

(i) Translation of foreign currencies

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Companys branches are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the branch operates (the functional currency).

The results and financial position of those Company branches whose functional currency is not Sterting are translated into Sterling as follows:
e Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at closing exchange rates at the end of the period

* Income. and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates during each period
»  Allresulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income within the foreign currency translation reserve

23



DocuSign Envelope ID: EA9F4FB2-8EEB-4275-BD4B-152534784671 -

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Notes to the accounts

When a branch or the business of the branch is sold, the cumulative exchange differences relating to that branch are recognised in the profit and
loss account as part of the gain or loss on sale. - .

‘Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company'’s business operations using the exchange rates prevailing
at the time of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year
_end exchange rates of monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recogmsed in the profit and loss account.

(i) Intangible assets

Internally developed and externally acquired software

The Company capitalises internal and external acquired software development costs where the software is separately identifiable; the Company
has control over the software; and where it can be demonstrated that they provide future economic benefits for the Company through facilitating
revenue, Teducing costs or improved processes. In respect of internally developed software, the costs capitalised include administrative and other
general overhead expenditure when they can be directly attributed to the software development and preparing it for use. Amortisation is calculated
on a straight line basis and commences when the asset is available for use in the manner intended by management. The useful economic life of
externally acquired and internally generated software is normally estimated to be between three and ten years, and is reviewed on an annual ba5|s
Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are valued at cost less accumulated amonisétion, and less any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets mainly comprise other acquired identifiable non-monetary assets without physical form. The useful economic lives are -
generally estimated to be bétween one and five years and are amortised on a straight-line basis across this period.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets not yet available to'use are subject to an impairmeht test on an annual basis o‘r'more frequently if there has been an indication of .

impairment. Other intangible assets, and internally developed and externally acquired software, are reviewed for indications of impairment on an’. .

annual basis and are subject to an impairment test only if there is an indication of impairment.

Intangible assets are allocated to cash generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of impairmerit tésting. When testing for impairment, the recoverable
amount of a CGU is determined based on value in use calculations. Further information on how value in use is calculated can be found in note 19.

Where the carrying amount is more than the recoverable amount,- impairment of intangible assets is recognised in the profit and loss account.
Impairment losses previously recognised on intangible assets may be reversed in subsequent periods provided that the revised carrying amount
.does not exceed the value that would have béen determined (net of amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised.

(i) Tangible assets

Tangible assets compnse fixtures, fittings and other equipment (including computer hardware and motor vehicles) and are mmally recognlsed at
cost. . .

Tangible assets afe stated at cost less accumulated dépreciation and accu:rnulated'impaihnent losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset only when it is probable that the expendlture will result
dlrectly infuture economic benefits to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably.

Tangible assets are deprec1ated to their resndual values on a straight line basis over the useful economic life of the asset; depreciation is charged to
the profit and loss account. . '

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Fixtures and fittings . 10 years ~
Equipment - 3-5years

The useful economic life and residual value are reviewed on an annual basis. Where the carrying value of an asset is deemed to be greater than its
recoverable amount, the asset is impaired. Impairment losses on non-revalued assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Impairment
-losses on revalued assets are recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent that-the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the
revaluation surplus for that same asset. Impairment losses may be subsequently reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the increased carrying amount of an asset shall
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determinéd had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account except for reversals of impairment losses on revalued assets which are recognised in other
comprehensive income similarly to the initially recorded impairment Ioss .

(iv) Leases -

‘The Company as Iessee

A lease liability and right-of-use asset’is recogmsed for all lease obligations the Company has as a lessee, except for the following recognition

exemptions that the Company has elected to use: lease contracts that at the commencement date have a lease term of 12 months or less and that
. do not contaln a purchase option; and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value. - .

The Iease liability is recognised at the inception of a lease as the present value of the fixed and certain variable léasé payments, plus any

guaranteed residual values, any termination penalties if the Iease term assumes termmanon options will be exerused and the purchase option
value if it is reasonably certain that it will be exercised. :
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Interest is accrued on the lease liability based on the discount rate at commencement of the lease, and is accounted for in investment expenses,
charges and ‘interest. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, except where this rate cannot be readrly detenmned in whtch case the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate-is used. Subsequent payments are deducted from the lease liability. .

The right-of-use asset is initially measured as the value of the lease Irabrlrty adjusted for any initial direct costs incurred to obtain the Iease
restoration provisions and any lease payments made before the commencement of the Iease

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. It is deprecrated over the shorter of
. the useful life or the period of the contract on a straight line basis. The Company applies I1AS 36 to determine whether a nght -of-use asset is
impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as descnbed in the ‘Tangible assets’ policy.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured when there are changes in lease term in the expectation regarding whether a purchase option would
be exercised or not, in any expected residual value guarantee or changes in vanable lease payments that are dependent upon an index or rate
(from the date that these take effect) . .

Remeasurements in the lease liability are reflected in the measurement of the corresponding right-of-use asset with reductions belng restncted to
the carrying value with any remaining remeasurement. being recognised in the profit and loss account.

, ‘ The Company as Iessor

Where the Company act asa lessor the lease will be classified as a finance lease if it transters-substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset, or otherwise classified as an operating lease (see ‘Investrment property’ accounting policy).

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables within Other debtors at the amount of the Company’s net investment
in the lease. Finance lease income is allocated to accountrng periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Finance lease income is calculated with reference to the gress carrying amount of the Iease receivables
(v) Land and buildings and rental income
Land and buildings comprise investment property and Company occupied property.
Investment property
Investment property |s stated at fair value. The fair value methodology is set out in more detail in note 20. Unrealised gains and unrealised losses
are recognised in the profit and loss account. Rental income from operatrng teases on investment property is recognised in the profit and loss
" account on a straight line basis over the length of the lease.
Company property
Company occupied property is stated at fair value, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. The fair value methodology is set out in note 20.
.. Increases in-the carrying amount arising on revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive income and credited to a separate revaluation
reserve within equity. Decreases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive income and reduce the
revaluation reserve, to the extent they offset previous revaluation increases; further decreases are charged to the profit and loss. account. Buildings
are depreciated to their residual value on a straight line basis over the useful economic life of the building; depreciation is charged to the profit and
loss account except where a building has been revalued upwards, in which case the amount of the depreciation relating to the difference between
- the building’s revalued amount and the original cost is transferred from revaluation reserve to retained earnings. Land is not depreciated.
. " The estimated useful lives of Company occupied property is normally 30 years.
(vi) Financial instruments
Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial I|ab|l|t|es
* The Company initially recognises ﬁnancral instruments at thetr fair value on the date at which they are purchased

At initial measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets and financial Ilabllrtles in one of the following categories:

Designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Available for salé (AFS)

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities ) ’ ,
Denvatrve assets/(liabilities) not desrgnated as hedging instruments

Transaction costs that are dlrectly attributable to the acquisition of fi nancral assets and financial liabilities that are not FVTPL are added to their fair
value in their initial measurement. .
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The table below summarises the classification and treatment of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities:

Category

Financial instrument

Description

S'ubsequent
measurement

Recognition of Change in fair value

Designated fair
value through
profit and loss
{FVTPL) on initial
recognition

Debt securities,
equity securities

Where the investment
return‘is managed on the
basis of the total return on
investment (including
unrealised investment
gains)

Fair value using prices at
the end of the period.

~

Profit & loss account — unrealised
gains/(losses); realised gains/(losses)
when derecognised

Available for sale
(AFS)

Debt securities,
equity securities

Where the investment
return on equity or debt
securities is managed on
the basis of the periodic
cash flows arising from the
investment

Fair value using prices at
the end of the period

Other comprehensive income -
unrealised gains/(losses)

Profit & loss account - realised '
gains/(losses) when derecognised;
Investment expenses, charges and

| interest when impaired

Shares in group
undertakings

Investments which provide
the Company with control of
the investee

Fair value using prices at
the end of the period

Other comprehensive income -
unrealised gains/(losses)

Profit & loss account — profit/(loss) on
disposal when derecognised;
Investment expenses, charges and

Cash at bahk and
| in hand

Cash and cash
equivalents

Consist of cash and highly
liquid investments that are
subject to insignificant
changes in value and are
readily convertible into
known amounts of cash

Carrying amounts at
amortised cost

.interest when impaired

Loans and
receivables

Loans, reinsurance

deposits, other deposits‘

and financial assets
arising from non-
investment activities,
and loans made for
investment purposes

Financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments
not quoted in an active
market .

" [.Amortised cost using the .

effective interest method

Profit & loss account - realised
gains/(losses) when derecognised;
Investment expenses, charges and -
interest when impaired

Financial liabilities.

Other borrowings

Financial liabilities with
fixed or determinable
payments

Amortised cost using the
effective interest method

.Profit & loss account — realised

gains/(losses) when derecognised

Derivative
-[assets/(liabilities)
not designated as
hedging instruments

Derivative
assets/(liabilities) not
designated as hedging

instruments

Acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in
the near term

Carried at fair value

Derivatives are carried as
assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative

Profit & loss account — unrealised

- | gains/(losses); realised

gains/(losses) when derecognised

Investment income

Dividends on equity investments are recognised as investment income in the profit and loss account on the date ‘at which the investment is, priced
‘ex dividend'. Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account using the effective interest rate method. .

Impairment of financial instruments .

The Company determines, at each reporting date, whether there is evidence that the value of a financial asset or a group of financial assets, other
than those measured as FVTPL or derivatives not designated as hedging instruments are impaired. A financial asset. is impaired if there is objective
evidence that indicates that an event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset that may have resulted in a loss of value as a result of -
having a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows generated by that asset which can be estimated reliably.

Financial assets are impaired according to either a debt equity, or Ioans and rece:vables lmpalrment model. The appropriate |mpa|rment model is
determined based on the characteristics of each instrument.

An impairment loss in respect of debt instruments is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument and is recognised in the profit and loss account.
Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised using the effective interest rate method.

An equity security is considered impaired if there is objective evidence that the cost may not be recovered. In addition to qualitative impairment
criteria, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered as indication of potential impairment. Impairment is considered to
have occurred when the decline in fair value relative to cost has been more than 30% for a continuous twelve-month period. Unless there is
evidence to the contrary, an equity security is also considered impaired when the decline in fair value relative to cost is more than 40% at the end of
the reporting period, or when it has been in an unrealised loss position for a continuous fifteen-month period. Where there is objective evidence that
impairment exists, the cumulative unrealised loss previously recognised in .other comprehensuve mcome is reclassnfed to the profit and loss
account. .
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If the fair value of a previously impaired debt security increases and the increase can be objectively ‘related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment Ioss is reversed and the reversal recognised in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses on
equity investments are not reversed..

" IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 has been issued to replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ (IAS 39) IFRS 4 permits an insurance company
that meets the criteria a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and to continue to apply IAS 39 for annual periods begnnmng before 1 January
2023. The exemption has been extended by two years to annual perrods beginning before 1 January 2023:

The Company meets the criteria and has elected to defer the application of IFRS 9 to the reporting penod beglnnlng on1 January 2023, alongsrde
IFRS 17. :

Information required by IFRS 4 when applying the ternporary‘exemption can be found in note 22 and note 5.
(vii) Insurance Contracts '
Product classification -

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk at the inception of the contract. Insurance risk is transferred when the
Company agrees to compensate a policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (other than a change in financial variable) adversely affects the
policyholder. Any contracts not meeting the definition of an insurance contract under IFRS are classified as investment contracts or derivative
contracts, as appropriate.

Premium income

Premium written is recognised in the period in which the Company is legally bound through a contract to provide insurance cover. it represents the
full amount of premiums receivable under the contract, including estimates where the amounts are not known at the date they are written. These
are deferred as a provision for unearned premiums until recognised as revenue principally computed on a monthly or daily pro-rata basis. Premiums
are shown before deduction of commission and exclude any sales based taxes or duties.

Insurance debtors

Premium debtors due from policyholders or intermediaries at the end of the reporting period are presented within debtors arising out of direct
insurance operations (policyholders) and debtors arising out of direct insurance operations (intermediaries) in the balance sheet. The amount
recoverable is reduced when there is an event arising after the initial recognition that provides objective evidence that the Company may not receive -
all amounts due under the insurance contract. Impairment losses for non-recoverable amounts are charged to administrative expenses in the profit -
and loss account and directly reduce the carrying amount of insurance debtors in the balance sheet.

Technical provisions

The provision for unearned premium represents the portion of the premiums written relatmg to the’ penods of insurance coverage subsequent to the
end of the reporting period after the deduction of related acquisition costs. .

Claims incurred represent the cost of agreeing and settling insurance claims on insurance contracts underwritten by the Company, net of
reinsurance recoveries. Gross claims outstanding are recognlsed at the estimated ultimate cost, net of expected’ salvage and subrogation
recoveries when a claim is incurred. . .

Gross claims outstanding and related reinsurance récoveries are discounted where there is a long period from incident to claims settlement or when
nominal interest rates are high and where there exists a suitable claims payment pattern from which to calculate the discount. In defining those
claims with a long period from incident to claims settlement, an average period settlement of six years or more has been used as a guide. The
discount rate used is based upon an investment return expected to be earned by financial assets which are appropriate in value and duration to
match the claims outstanding being discounted dunng the period expected before the final settlement of such claims.

Differences between the estimated cost and subsequent settlement -of claims or re- estlmated costs are recognised in the prof it and loss account in
the year in which they are settled or in which the claims outstanding are re-estimated. .

Acquisition costs comprise the direct and indirect costs of obtaining and proce'ssing new insurance business. Levies payable are treated as costs of
underwriting business. These costs are recognised as deferred acquisition costs (DAC). DAC is amortised on the _same basis as the related
unearned premiums are earned.

At the end of each reporting period liability tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the technical provisions by ‘considering the cash flows
associated with the provision for unearned premium net of related DAC. In performing these tests, best estimates of future contractual cash flows,
including loss adjustment and administrative expenses as well as investment income on financial assets backing such liabilities are used. Any
deficiency is charged to the technical account immediately- by establishing a provision for liability adequacy known as the unexpired risk provision.
The requirement for an unexpired risk provnsron is assessed in aggregate for busuness classes which, in the opinion of the directors, are managed
together. .

Reinsurance ceded

Outward reinsurance premiums payable are recognised in the period in which the reinsurance contract is entered into and include estimates where
the amounts are not finalised at the end of the reporting period. The ceded written premiums are recognised in the profit and loss account over the
period of the reinsurance contract, based on the expected earning pattern in relation to the underlying insurance contract(s).

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions includes the reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding and the provision for unearned premiums. The -
Company reports third party reinsurance balances in the balance sheet on a gross basis to present the exposure to credit risk related to third party
reinsurance. The amount recoverable is reduced when there is an event arising after the initial recognition that provides objective evidence that the
Company may not receive all amounts due under the reinsurance contract.
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Annuities purchased by the Company to make payments under structured settiement arrangements are accounted for as reinsurance ceded and a .
corresponding reinsurers’ share of technical provisions if the Company remains liable for the settlement in the event of default by the annuity
provider. Any gain or loss arising on the purchase of an annuity is recognised in the profit and loss account at the date of purchase.

(viii) Other technical income

. Other technlcal income is comprised principally of:

o Administration fee income: is received from policyholders in order for certain changes to their polrcy or policyholder details within their
period of cover and is recognised in full on the date that the change is made '

«  Premium policy instalment fee income: is received from policyholders as a finance charge on premiums paid in instalments and is -

: recognised over the period that the instalments are made on a straight line basis

» ‘Introductory commission ihcome is received from third parties for introducing business to them and-is recognised when the introduction is
made

. Service income refers to income recelved for operating a settlement function pnmarrly for the Company and lts Global Network Partners
which is recognised over the period in which the relevant business is earned

(ix) Taxation and deferred tax

Taxation and deferred tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Any exceptions permitted under IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes' are disclosed in the notes. To the
extent that deferred tax assets are recognised or derecognised in the period and it is not possible to attribute this directly to either the profit or loss
account or OCl, as is the case typically for brought forward tax losses, then these amounts are attributed between the profit and loss account and
OClI transactlons usrng a reasonable pro rata split based on- hrstoncal movements.

Taxatron is based.on profits and income for the year as determined in accordance with the relevant tax legislation, together with adjustments to prior
years.

Deferred tax is provided in full using the Ilablllty method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and the
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting, nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted-for. Deferred
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the related deferred tax liability is seftled.

" Deferred tax in respect of the unremitted earnings of overseas subS|d|anes and principal associated undertakings is recognised as an expense in
the year in which the profits arise, except where the remittance of earnings can be controlled and it is probable that remittance will not take place in
the foreseeable future in which case the tax charge is recognised on the dividends received. ’ .

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that |t is probable future taxable profits will be available against which unused tax losses and
temporary differences can be utilised.

IFRIC 23 is applied to the recognition and measurement of both current and deferred tax assets and liabilities. In cases where the applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation, the positions taken.in tax returns are recognised in full in the determination of the tax charge in the financial
statements, if the Company considers that it is probable that the taxation authority will accept those positions. Otherwise, provisions are established
based on management's estimate and judgement of the likely amount of the liability/recovery by. providing for the single best eéstimate of the most
likely outcome or the weighted average expected value where there are multiple outcomes.

(x) Employee benefits
Post-employment benefits and obligations
The Company operates both defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes.

A defined - contribution scheme is a pension scheme under which the Company pays fixed contributions and has no further payment ohligations
once the contributions have been paid. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged in the profit and loss account in the
period in which the underlylng employment services are provided to the Company. .

- A defi ned benef t scheme is a pension scheme that defines an amount of pensron benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary.

The value of the net defined benefit liability/ asset recognised in the balance sheet for each individual post—employment scheme is calculated as the
. difference between the present value of the defined benefit obligations of the scheme and the fair value of the scheme assets out of which the
obligations are to be settled

For those schemes in a net liability (deficit) position, the net liability is recognised in the balance sheet in provisions. For those schemes in a net
asset (surplus) position, the net asset is recognised in the balance sheet in other debtors and other assets only to the extent that the Company can
realise an economic benefit, in the form of a refund or a reduction in future contributions, at some point during the life of the scheme or when the
scheme liabilities are settled. . .

The amounts charged (or credited where relevant) in the profit and loss account relating to 'post-employment defined benefit schemes are as
follows: '

¢  The current service. cost this is the present value of additional benefits payable for employees’ services provrded during the repomng
period;

e  The past service costs and gains or losses on settlement: these are changes to the obligations already establlshed for. past service costs
that have arisen from an amendment to the terms of the scheme or a curtailment of the benefits payable by the scheme. These are
recognised at the earlier of when the terms of the scheme are amended or the curtarlment occurs or, Wnere applicable, when the
Company recognises related restructunng costs or termination benefits; '
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"« Net interest on thé net defined benefit liabjlity/asset: this is determined by applying the discount rate applied to the defined benefit
obligation for the period to the net defined benefit liability/asset, and results in a net interest expense/mcome '
«  The administration costs of operating the pension schemes.

" Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/ asset recognised in other comprehensive income _comprises actuarial gains and losses as a
result of changes in assumptions and experience adjustments in the calculation of the defined benefit obligation, and return on scheme assets
"excluding interest during the year. The most significant of these is the selection of the dlscount rate used to calculate the defined benefit obllganon
details of which are set-out in note 15. .

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when either employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. Termination benefit expenses are recognised in the profit and loss account
at the earlier of the date when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer and the date when any related restructuring costs are recognised.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Share based payments

The fair value of the employee share options and other equity settled share based payments is calculated at the grant date and recognised as an
expense over the vesting period. The vesting of share awards is dependent on service and performance conditions, as well as market conditions.
The assumption of the number of shares expected to vest is revised at the end of each reporting period, with the corresponding credit or charge
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Where an option is cancelled by an employee, the full value of the optlon (less any value
previously recognised) is recognised at the cancellation date.

(xi) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and where it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

(xii) Dividends to shareholders

Dividends payable on the Company’s ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared and authorised.

(xiii) Porifolio transfers

Premium portfolio transfers to other insurance entities are treated as premium cancellatiovns with an accompanying unwind of the provision for
uneamned premium through the profit and loss account to recognise that the Company is no longer legally on risk for providing cover in future
periods and therefore will not earn any future income in respect of the insurance contracts transferred.

Claims portfolio transfers to other insurance entities are treated as settlement of claims outstanding which recognises that the Company has
provided consideration under the terms of the transfer as a consequence of which it no longer has a legal obligation to settle claims in respect of the
insurance contracts transferred which are de-recognised.

(xiv) Current and non-current distinction

Assets are classified as current when expected to be realised within the Company’s normal operating cycle of one year. Liabilities are classified as
current when expected to be settled within the Company’s normal operating cycle of one year. All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current

The Companys balance sheet is not presented using current and non-current classifications. However, the following balances are generally
classified as current: cash at bank and in hand, debtors arising out of direct insurance operations (policyholders), debtors arising out of reinsurance
operations, deposits with ceding undertakings, creditors arising out of direct insurance operations, amounts owed to group undertakings, accruals
and deférred income, accrued interest and rent and amounts owed to credit institutions.

The following balances are generally classified as non-current: intangible assets, tangible assets, investments; shares in group undertakings, land
and buildings and deferred taxation.

The remaining balances are of a mixed nature. The non-current portions of such balances are set out in the respective notes, the risk management
section or note 43.

4. Critical judgements and major sources of estimation uncertainfy

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements in determining estimates in accordance with the Company's
accounting policies. Estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current circumstances and expectation of future events and actions,
which may subsequently differ from those used in determining the accounting estimates.

Estimates and their underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rewsnons to estimates are recognlsed prospectlvely In 2020, the.
Covid-19 global pandemic has had a significant impact on market conditions and our business. Where an estimate has been impacted by Covid-19,
additional disclosure has been provided in the relevant note or set out below.

The most significant estimates are described below.

(i) Valuation of claims outstanding

The Company makes judgements when determining the assumptions used in the estimation of the eventual outcome of the claim events that have
occurred but remain unsettled at the end of the reporting period. The methodology of measuring claims outstanding is described below. The results
of applying this methodology and assumptions applied are set out in note 34.
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Covid-19 has increased the level of estimation uncertainty with key assumptions impacted, such as frequency, severity and claims development
patterns. There is also increased uncertainty relating to the valuation of Covid-19 business interruption (BI) claims. The initial assessed impact of
the UK Supreme Court judgement on 15 January 2021 on Bl policy wording has been included in the actuarial indication of ultimate losses. The
ultimate liability could be materially different from the current estimate as legal interpretations and regulatory expectations develop and clarify the
criteria for eligible claims, further information becomes available with regard to the number of eligible claimants who meet the required claim criteria,
and the extent to which losses are recoverable under reinsurance contracts which depends upon the extent to which reinsurance responds in the
manner the Company expects.

Provisions for losses and loss adjustment expenses are subject to a robust reserving process by the Company and at Group. Corporate Centre as
detailed in the Risk Management note below.

There is considerable uncertainty with regard to the eventual outcome of the claims that have occurred but remain unsettled by the end of the
reporting period. This includes clarms that may have occurred but have not yet been notified to the Company and those that are not yet apparent to
the insured.

The provisions for losses ‘and loss adjustment expenses are estimated using relevant previous claims experience, historical payment trends, the
volume and nature of the insurance underwritten by the Company and current specific case reserves. Also considered are developing loss payment
trends, the potential longer term significance of large events, and the levels of unpaid claims, legislative changes judicial decisions and economic,
political and regulatory conditions. .

The Company uses a number of commonly accepted actuarial pro;ectron methodologies to determine the appropriate provision to recognise. These
include methods based upon the following:

. Historic claims development trends are assessed and used to inform extrapolation of the latest payments and reported claims cost for each
prior. period to their ultimate value :

Estimates based upon a projection of claims numbers and average cost

Notified claims development, where notified clarms to date for each year are extrapolated based upon observed development of earlier years

Expected loss ratios

The Bornhuetter- Ferguson method, which combines features of the above methods

Bespoke methods for specialist classes of business

In selecting the method and estimate appropriate to any one class of insurance business, the Company considers the appropriateness of the
methods and bases to the individual circumstances of the class and accident period or underwriting year. A key assumption that is common to
many classes of business is that historic experience is a good guide to what the Company can expect to see in the future. This depends on a
variety of things such as consistent claims handling practise and mix of business, which the Company test as part of its analytic process to ensure
assumptions are reasonable. '

Individually Iarge and significant claims are generally assessed separately, being measured either at the face value of the loss ad|usters estimates
or projected separately in order to allow for the future development of large claims. Direct Covid-19 claims have been estimated using bespoke
techniques that are primarily based upon granular exposure assessments,-assumptions on how Covid-19 impacted businesses and societal
behaviour, combined with early claims data and insight from the claims, underwriting and legal functions.

The level of provision carried by the Company targets the inclusion of a total margin of around 5% for the Company on top of the actuarial indication
outlined above. The appropriateness of the 5% target is subject to regular review as part of the reserving process by the Company.

Claims’ outstanding estimates are currently subject to heightened uncertainty relative to normal circumstances due to the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic. Materially different outcomes to those the Company assumes are possible. The main areas of heightened uncertainty include:

e  The impact which Covid-19 has had on claims experience will take time to develop. Some areas such as business interruption and wedding

have observed direct claims, whereas many other lines have seen material indirect changes in policyholder behaviour such as reduced motor

" frequency during lockdown. Changes in experience such as reduced claims frequency can result in a different mix or magnitude of claims and,

therefore, different claims and runoff characteristics compared to historic experience. There have been material changes in the external claims

environment in areas such as legal and medical activities which impact the speed of claims development. The distortions in data caused by the

various issues means identification of trends is more difficult than normal. Furthermore, it is possible that future economic conditions may give

rise to different claims experience than expected. The following assumptlons have been made in key areas in order to estimate the ultimate
cost of claims: .

. Frequency, based on different levels of reported claim counts observed during the year
e  Severity, based on different average claims costs observed during the year
¢ Claims development patterns, taking into account both internal operations and external impacts

e The ultimate cost of Covid-19 Bl claims. The estimated impact of the Supreme Court judgement on 15 January 2021 relating to BI policy
wording for Covid-19 is included in the actuarial indication of ultimate losses. This judgement comroborated the FCA policy wording review
conducted to provide clarity on the treatment of Covid-19 Bl claims for selected policy wording. The heightened level of uncertainty persists as
claims notifications are assessed and work continues to fully understand the various implications of this ruling. In addition, in estimating the
ultimate cost of Covid-19 Bl claims a number of key assumptions have been made in relation to:

e Public behaviour, mobility and interaction prior to lockdown
» Level of evidence required to demonstrate the existence of Covid-19 on or in the vicinity of the insured premises
e  Legal interpretations and regulatory expectations of the criteria for eligible claims

+ Reinsurance recovéries on both the catastrophe and group volatility covers (GVC) are dependent on the identification and timing of events
which trigger a reinsurance recovery claim, and for the GVC, the aggregation of all relevant claims against the retention level. The assessment
of impact will develop over time as claims notifications are fully understood. Key reinsurance assumptions made include how reinsurance
contracts respond to Covid-19 losses, the date of loss that will apply to Covid-19 claims, how losses are attributed by date, and how
aggregation applies across different businesses and RSA territories which share common reinsurance treaties. Failure to recover reinsurance
in line with our expectations could lead to a material increase in our reported net liability.
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{ii) Recogmtlon and valuatron of deferred tax assets

The Company makes assumptlons to support its judgement around the recognition and valuanon of deferred tax assets. This includes an
assessment of the availability of future taxable profits against which deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.
Forecast future taxable profits include the potential impact of Covid-19. The proposed takeover offer to buy RSA has increased the level of
uncertainty in forecast profits, however this has not been taken into account when valuing the deferred tax asset at 31 December 2020 as there is
no certainty over what actions or decisions the purchaser may take if the acquisition completes. Sensitivities have been used to assess the impact.

- of changes in the key assumptions supporting profit forecasts, and further specific downside scenarios have been modelled in the current year to
capture thé heightened estimation uncertainty in the established profit forecast due to the current economic envuronment Refer to note 28 for
additional information. .

{iil) Valuation of pension fund assets and liabilities

The Company exercises judgement in making assumptions when valuing pension and other post-employment benefits accrued by its current and
former employees. These assumptions include the estimation of the future mortality of its current and former employees, the value. of the benefits
that have been accrued and the appropnate discount rate used to value the obllgatlons These assumptlons and the sensmvnty of these
assumptions are disclosed in note 15.

. (iv) Valuatron of shares in group undertakmgs

The Company uses estlmatron techniques when valuing its shares in group undertakmgs which are accounted for as avallable for sale f nancial
assets and are included in the accounts at fair value.

Fair value is calculated by -applying ﬂvarious valuation models to the major operating companies. These valuation models apply factors that are

. widely used to value similar companies in the area of operation of the business. The values calculated are benchmarked against external valuations

- of the particular business where these are available and have been compared and adjusted based on the fair value of the Company, WhICh reflects
the bid for the RSA Group; taking into account the balance due to or from group undertakings.

For non-major operating subsidiaries, the net asset value of the subsidiary, calculated using the Company's accounting policies, is used, with
amounts due to or from the subsidiary presented separately in the balance sheet within amounts due to or from group undertakings.

Further information on the valuation of shares in group undertakings can be.found in note 21.
(v} Valuation of intangible assets
The -Company exercises judgement in making assumptions when valuing the recoverable amount and estimating the useful economic life of
intangible assets. The value in use calculation is based on management'’s latest operational plan which includes the expected future impact -of
Covid-19. The proposed takeover of RSA has increased the level of uncertainty in forecast profits although possible impacts have not been included
within value in use calculations as there is no certainty over what actions or decisions the purchaser may take if the acquisition completes. Due to
increased uncertamty caused by Covid-19 and the offer to buy RSA a range of downsnde scenarios to the plan have been consndered Refer to note
19 for addmonal information.
(vr) Valuatlon of level 3 financial assets and investment properties
Significant unobservable inputs are used by the Company in the valuation of level 3 financial assets and investment properties. The current ongoing
economic uncertainty means that asset valuation techniques that rer on unobservable inputs have a greater degree of estlmatlon uncertainty.
Refer to note 23 for additional information. .
5. Risk management
- Introduction
RSA Insurance Group plc, of which the Company is an important part, is managed along divisional lines. The Company transacts the majority of the
Group’s UK business. The-directors of the Company have considered whether the Group's approach to strategy, risk management, performance
_ review and custody of assets fully meets the needs of the Company as a separate regulated entity. They have concluded that it does. The following
discussion sets out the approach of the Group, and hence of the Company, to risk management.
- The Company is exposed to nsks arrsm_g from insurance contracts -as set out below:

e Underwriting risk
*  Reserving risk

Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk refers to the risk that claims arising are higher (or-lower) than assumed in pricing due to bad experience including catastrophes,
weaknéss in controls. over underwriting or portfolio management, or claims management issues or policy wording interpretation issues.

The majority of underwriting risk to which the Company is exposed is of a short-term nature, and generally does not exceed 12 months. The
Company's underwriting strategy aims to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified |n terms of the type, amount of risk, and geography
.in order to ensure that the Company minimises the volatmty of its insurance result.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria..and pricing with all of the Company’s undenNnters having specific
Ilcences that set clear parameters for the business they can underwrite, based on.their expertise.
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The Company has developed enhanced methods of recording exposures and concentrations of risk and has a centrally managed forum looking at
Company underwriting issues, reviewing and agreeing underwriting direction and setting policy and directives where appropriate. The Company has
a monthly portfolio ‘management process across all its business units where key risk indicators are tracked to monitor emerging trends,
opportunities and risks. This provides greater control of exposures in high risk areas as well as enabling a prompt response to adverse claims
development.

Pricing for the Company’s products is generally based upon historical claims frequencies and claims severity averages, adjusted for inflation and
modelled catastrophes, trended forward to recognise anticipated changes in claims patterns after making allowance for other costs incurred by the
Company, conditions in the insurance market and a profit loading that adequately covers the cost of capital.

Passing elements of our insurance risk to reinsurers is another key strategy employed in managing the Group's and the Company’s exposure to

~  insurance risk. The Group Board determines a maximum leve! of risk to be retained by the Group as a whole. The net retained risk is distributed
across the Group in accordance with Group and local risk appetite. The strategy is dependent on being able to secure reinsurance cover on
appropriate commercial and contractual terms and the nature of the programme presents risks in that recoveries are contingent on the particular
pattern of losses and aggregation across the Group.

The Company remains primarily liable as the direct insurer on all risks reinsured, although the reinsurer is liable to the Company to the extent of the
insurance nsk it has contractually accepted responsibility for.

Reserving risk
Reserving risk refers to the risk that the Company's estimates of future claim payments will be insufficient.

The Company establishes a provision for losses and loss adjustment expenses for the anticipated costs of all losses that have already occurred but
have not yet been paid. Such estimates are made for losses already reported to the Company as well as for the losses that have already occurred
but are not yet reported together with a provision for the future costs of handling and settling the outstanding claims.

There is a risk to the Company from the inherent uncertainty in estimating provnsnons at the end of the reporting period for the eventual outcome of
outstanding notified claims as well as estimating the number and value of claims that are still to be notified. There is also uncertainty in the leve! of
future costs of handling and settling the outstanding claims. This is especially true when there is a material change in circumstances near the end of
the reporting period such as the UK Supreme Court judgement on 15 January 2021.

The Company seeks to reduce its reserving risk through the use of experienced actuaries who estimate the actuarial indication of the required
reserves based on claims experience, business volume, anticipated change in the claims environment and claims cost. This information is used by
local reserving committees to recommend to the Group Reserving Committee the appropriate level of reserves for each region. This will include
adding a margin onto the actuarial Indication as a provision for unforeseen.developments such as future claims patterns differing from historical
experience, future legislative changes and the emergence of latent exposures. The Group Reserving Committee reviews these local submissions
and recommends the final level of reserves to be held by the Company. The Group Reserving Committee is chaired by the Group Chief Financial
Officer and includes the Group Chief Executive, Group Underwriting Director, Group Chief Actuary and Group Chief Risk Officer. A similar
committee has been established in each of the Group’s primary operating segments. The Group Reserving Committee monitors the decisions and
judgements made by the business units as to the level of reserves to be held. ’

In forming its collective judgement the Committee considers the following information:

« Emerging trends where Covid-19 has caused changes in experience along with analysis to demonstrate the impact on reserving
estimates. Some areas such as business interruption and wedding and events have observed direct claims, whereas many other lines
have seen material indirect changes in policyholder behaviour such as reduced motor frequency during lockdown. Changes in experience
such as reduced claims frequency can result in a different mix or magmtude of claims and, therefore, exhibit different claims and runoff
characteristics compared to historic experience

e« Material changes in the external claims environment in areas-such as legal and medical activities which impact the speed of claims
development have also been considered. The distortions in data caused by the various issues means identification. of trends is more
difficult than normal and results in increased uncertainty relating to actuarial indications of ultimate losses

¢ The estimated impact of the Supreme Court judgement on 15 January 2021 relating to Bl policy wording for Covid-19 is lncluded in the
actuarial indication of ultimate losses. Given the timing, the actuaria! indication is based on initial interpretations of the judgement and
modelling of expected numbers and value of eligible claims within the insured population. Work to fully understand the various
implications will continue in future months as claims profiles mature, and regulatory and legal interpretations develop.

e  The actuarial indication of ultimate losses together with an assessment of risks and possible favourable or adverse developments that
may not have been fully reflected in calculating these indications. At the end of 2020, these risks and developments include:. the
possibility of future legislative change having retrospective effect on open claims or changes in interpretation or regulatory application of
existing legislation; changes in claims settlement procedures potentially leading to future claims payment patterns differing from historical
experience; the possibility of new types of claim, such as disease claims, emerging from historical business; general uncertainty in the
claims environment; the emergence of latent exposures; the outcome of litigation on claims received; failure to recover reinsurance as we
expect and unanticipated changes in claims inflation -

+ The views of internal peer reviewers of the reserves and of other parties including actuaries, legal counsel, risk directors, underwriters
and claims managers

o  The outcome from independent assurance reviews performed by both external actuarial consultants and the Group actuarial function to
assess the reasonableness of actuarial indication estimates

»  How previous actuarial indications have developed '

The Company is also exposed to other risks not directly arising from insurance contracts as set out below:

Financial risk

Financial risk refers to the risk of financial loss predominantly arising from investment transactions entered into by the Company, and also to a
lesser extent arising from insurance contracts, and includes the following risks:

¢ Credit risk;
*  Market risk including price, interest rate and currency rate risks;
e Liquidity risk.
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The Company undertakes a number of strategies to manage these risks including the use of derivative financial instruments for the purpose of
reducing its ‘exposure to adverse fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and long term inflation. The Company does not use
derivatives to leverage its exposure to markets and does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. The policy on
use of derivatives is approved by the Board Risk Committee (BRC): .

Credit risk

Credit risk is .the risk of loss resulting from .the failure of a counterparty to honour its financial or contractual obligations to the Company. The
Company ensures that assets are closely matched in duration and currency with insurance liabilities to hedge volatility. The Company’s credit risk
exposure is largely concentrated in its fixed income investment portfolio favouring high quality fixed income bonds reducmg the risk of default. Also
to a lesser extent credit risk exists in its premlum recewables and reinsurance assets

Credit risk is managed at both a Group level and at a local level. Local operations are responsible for assessing and monitoring the creditworthiness
of their counterparties (e.g. brokers and policyholders). Local credit committees are responsible for ensuring that these exposures are within the risk
appetite of the local operations. Exposure monitoring and reporting for fixed income investments and premium receivables is embedded throughout
the organisation with. aggregate credit positions reported and monitored at Group and local level. In addition, the Group’s Credit Ratings Review
Committee reviews the credit ratings of investments with a focus on material exposures and unrated investments.

" The Company's credit risk appetite and credit risk policy are developed by the BRC and are reviewed and approved by the Board on an annual
basis, to ensure limits remain within its quantitative appetite. This is done through the setting of Group policies, procedures and limits. Covid-19 has
generated increased levels of market volatility increasing the risk of credit default and downgrade. The Group’s and Company's strategy continues
to be reviewed in light of Covid-19 developments and the frequency of engagement with the Company’s fund managers has been increased.

In defining its appetite for credit risk the Group looks at exposures at both an aggregate and business unit level distinguishing between credit risks
incurred as a result of offsetting insurance risks or operating in the insurance market (e.g. reinsurance credit risks and risks to receiving premiums
due from policyholders and intermediaries) and credit risks incurred for the purposes of generating a return (e.g. invested assets credit risk).

Limits are set at both a portfolio and counterparty level based on likelihood of default, derived from the rating of the counterparty, to ensure that the
Group’s overall credit profile and specific concentrations are managed and controlled within risk appetite.

The Company’s investment management strategy primarily focuses on debt instruments of high credit quality i |ssuers and seeks to limit the overall
credit exposure with respect to any one issuer.by ensuring limits have been based upon credit quality. Restrictions are placed on each of the
Companys mvestment managers as to the level of exposure to various rating categories including unrated securities.

The Company has offered payment relief to customers expenencnng financial difﬁculty as a result of Covid-19 and has increased credit risk
monitoring to proactively manage the financial risk from the current economic environment and the provision for bad debts is being assessed on a
regular basis. '

The Company is also exposed to credit risk from the use of reinsurance in the event that a reinsurer fails to settle its liability to the Company.

The Group Reinsurance Credit Committee oversees the management of credit risk arising from the reinsurer failing to settle its liability to the
Company. Group standards are set to manage this risk, such as reinsurers that have a financial strength rating of less than 'A-" with Standard &
Poor's, or a comparable rating, are rarely used and excluded from the Group’s list of approved reinsurers. The exceptions are. fronting
arrangements with captives, where some form of collateral is generally obtained, and some global network partners. At 31 December 2020 the
extent of collateral held by the Company against reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities was £21m (2019: £19m), which in the event of a
default would be called and recognised on the balance sheet.

-The Company’s use of reinsurance is sufficiently diversified that it is not concentrated on a single reinsurer, or any single reinsurance contract. The
Company regularly monitors its aggregate exposures by reinsurer group against predetermined reinsurer. Group limits, in accordance with the
methodology agreed by the BRC. The Company's largest reinsurance exposures to active reinsurance groups are Berkshire Hathaway Inc., Lloyd’s
of London and Talanx. At 31 December 2020 the reinsurance asset recoverable from these groups does not exceed 8.6% (2019: 7.8%) of the
Company'’s total financial assets. Stress tests are performed by reinsurer counterparty and the limits are set as such that in a catastrophic event,
the exposure to a single reinsurer is estimated to not exceed 6.3% (2019: 6.6%) of the Group's total financial assets at 31 December 2020.

The credit: profile of the Company's assets exposed to credit risk is shown below. The credit rating bands are provided by independent rating
agencies. The tables below set out the Company’s aggregated credit risk exposure for its financial and insurance assets:

Credit rating relating to financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Total financial

assets that

are neither

. ‘past due nor

. - AAA AA A - BBB <BBB Not rated impaired

As at 31 December 2020 ) ) £m - _Em £m £m £m £m : £m
Debt securities and other fixed income . ., :

1 securities 618 1,027 1,057 .705 17 ’ - 3,424
Other loans ' 3 - 59 77 18 - 257
Of which would qualify as solely for ) : . . ' :
payment of principal and interest (SPPI) :
under IFRS 9' - 621 1,008 1,048 753 31 - : 3,461
Reinsurers’ share of technical ’ .
provisions. ' - 468 1,384 . 24 T 29 ) 2 1,907
Insurance and reinsurance debtors? . - 3 942 - 28 35 653 - 1,661
Derivative assets . - 1 18 78 - - 97

Cash at bank and in hand ‘ - - - 140 - : - - 140
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Notes: ) :

1. The debt securities meeting solely for payment of prrncrpal and mterest (SPPI) criteria under IFRS 9 which are below mvestment grade are
stated under IAS 39 at fair value and where loans and receivables are measured using amomsed cost their carrying amounts are. considered to
be as approximate fair values.

2. The insurance and reinsurance debtors classified as not rated comprise personal polrcyholders and small corporate, customers that do not have
individual credit ratings. Credit risk of this balance is managed through close monrtonng of ageing profiles and cover can be cancelled if
payment isn't recelved in accordance with agreed credit terms.

" Credit rating relati'ng to financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired Total financial
i : - : assets
. ) that are
: : : ’ . neither past
- L : * due nor
co ) -AAA AA A . BBB <BBB Not rated . impaired
As at 31 December 2019 £m -~ fm £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securities and other fixed income - . )
securities . . 644 1,356 - 951 495 . - 83 . - . 3,529
Other loans ‘ "3 ‘ - .29 140 23 0 - 195
. Of which would qualrfy as SPPI under ) o ’
IFRS 9' . - 647 1,334 913 . 594 . 47 ] - . 3,635
Reinsurers’ share of techmcal provisions . - 452 . 1,326 - - 45 46 : 2 . 1,871
Insurance and reinsurance debtors?” : - 4 © . 944 . 25 34 621 1,628
Derivative assets . R 10 28 60 - . . 98
.Cash at bank and in hand . . 20 103 - . e - 123
Notes:

1. The debt securities meetmg 'SPPI criteria under IFRS 9 whrch are below investment grade are stated under IAS 39 at fair value ‘and where
- loans and receivables are measured using amortised cost their carrying amounts are considered to be as approximate fair values.

2. " The insurance and reinsurance debtors classified as not rated comprise personal policyholders and small corporate customers-that do not
have individual credit ratings. Credit risk of this balance is managed through close monitoring of ageing profiles and cover can be cancelled if
payment isn't recerved in accordance with agreed credit ten'ns . ,

With the exception of government debt securities, the Iargest aggregate credit exposure does not exceed 2% (2019:'3%) of the Company'’s total

financial assets. The following tables ‘provide information regarding the ageing of financial assets as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Financial assets that are past due but not

. impaired o ' Impairment
Financial ~ losses.
) . . ) : assets Balance charged to
Neither past : : T . Greater that have Sheet . Profit and
due nor . 0-3 36 - 6-12 than12 - been carrying Loss
: impaired months’ months . months  months impaired value  account
- As-at 31 December 2020 £m £m £m_ £m £m £m ~ £m £m
- Debt securities and other fixed v ' ’ ‘ . - I o
income securities 3,424 - - - L. - 3,424 -
 Other loans : o287 Co- - - - - 257" . -
Reinsurer’s share of techmcal : ' S ) . )
provisions . 1,907 - - . - - 3 1,910
Insurance and reinsurance debtors‘ , 1,661 20 4 - -3 . 2 .13 -~ 4,703 o 5
Derivative assets et - - R .97 ‘ .
. Cash at bank and in hand C 140 - L - - - 140 e

1 Debtors with similar credit risk characteristics are collectively assessed for impairment with provisions being made based on past expenence

Financial assets that are past due but not lmparred

Financial - Impairment

) ) : ) . . ‘assets Balance losses
Neither past : - " Greater that have Sheet  charged to
due nor 03 . 36 6-12 than 12 been carrying Profit and
R ) impaired months months . months months  impaired - value |os_'s account
As at 31 December 2019 Y £gm - fm £m_ Em - £m £m__._ E£m

Debt securities and other ﬂxed income S ) ’ : . ’ L

securities - . : 3,529 - - - - . 3,529 ] -
Other loans ' .. 195 - - - - R 195 -
Reinsurer’s share of technical provisions 1,871 - - -, - R R:74 -
Insurance and reinsurance debtors'z 1,628 . 15 9 3 1 o 9 1,665 R
" Derivative assets . : 98 .- - - o - - . 98 -
Cash atbankandinhand . - - 123 - - - - - 123 -

' Debtors with similar credit nsk characterrstrcs are collectively assessed for |mpa|rment with provisions berng made based on past expenence
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2Financial assets that have been impaired have been restated from £nil to £9m to reflect amounts that were impaired in 2019 but dlsclosed wrthrn
fi nancral assets that are past due but not impaired

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of adverse financial impact resulting, directly or |nd|rectly, from fluctuations from equity and property prices, interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates. Market risk arises in the Company's operations due to the possibility that fluctuations in the value of liabilities are
not offset by fiuctuations in the value of investments held. It also arises in relation to the investment in shares in group- undertakings with
international businesses through foreign currency risk. Market risk is subject to the BRC risk management framework, which is subject to review
and approval by the Board.

2020 has seen srgnlf icant market volatlllty and whilst financial markets have stabrhsed in the latter part of the year, longer term consequences
remaln unclear However, the Company continues to prove resilient. .

Market risk can be broken down into three key components:
(i) Equity and property risk

_ At 31 December 2020 the Company held investments classified as AFS equity securities of £409m (2019: £373m). These include interests in
structured entities (as disclosed in note 24) and other mvestments where the price risk arises from interest rate risk rather than from equity market
price risk. . .

In addition the Company holds investments in properties which are subject to property price risk. A decrease of 15% in property prices would result
in the recogmtlon of losses of £42m (2019: £45m) in the profit and loss accourit and £3m (2019: £3m) in other comprehensive income.

.This analysis assumes that there is no cofrelation between interest rate and property market rate risks. It also assumes that all other assets and
liabilities remain unchanged and that no management action is taken. This analysis does not represent management’s view of future market .
. change but reflects management's view of key sensitivities.. .

This analysis is presented gross of the corresponding tax credits/(charges).
(ii) Interest rate risk

- Interest rate risk arises'primarily from the Company's investments in long-term debt and fixed income securities and their movement relative to the
_ value placed on insurance liabilities. This impacts the fair value and amount of variable returns on exrstmg assets as well as the cost of acquiring
new fixed maturity investments. .
Given the composition of the Company's investments as at 31 December 2020, the table below illustrates the impact to the profit and loss account
and other comprehensive income of a hypothetical 100bps change in interest rates on fixed income securities that are subject to interest rate risk.

Increase in profit and Decrease in other
. loss account - comprehensive income
-'2020 - 2019 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m
Increase in interest rate markets:
Impact on fixed income securities of increase ininterest rates of 100bps ‘ - ’ - (130) . (135)

The Company principally manages mterest rate rlsk by holding mvestment assets (predominantly fixed lncome) that generate cash flows which
broadly match the duration of expected claim settlements and other associated costs.

The sensmvrty of the fixed interest securities of the Company has been modelled by reference to a reasonable approxifnation of.the average
interest rate sensitivity of the-investments held within each of the portfolios. The effect of movement in interest rates is reflected as a one time rise
of 100bps on 1 January 2021 and 1 January 2020 on the following year’s profit and loss account and other comprehensive income. The impact of

. an increase in interest rates on the fair value of fixed income securities that would be initially recognised in OCI will reduce over time as the maturity
date approaches. :

(iii) Currency risk
The.Company incurs exposure to currency risk in two ways:
e  Operational currency risk — by holding investments and other assets and by underwriting liabilities in currencies other than the currency of
the primary environment in which the business units operate, the Company is exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates that can

impact both its profitability and the reported value of such assets and liabilities;

& Structural currency risk — by investing in overseas group undertaklngs the Company is exposed to the risk that fluctuations |n foreign
exchange rates impact the net investment in these companies. .

Operational currency risk is principally managed within the Company s individual operations by broadly matchlng assets and liabilities by currency ‘
and liquidity. Operational currency risk is not significant.

Structural currency risk is managed through curroncy forward contracts, swaps and foreign exchangc options within the limits that have been set. In

managing structural currency risk, the needs of the Group's operations to maintain net assets in local currencies to satisfy Iocal regulatory solvency
and internal risk based capital requirements are taken into account.
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The table below illustrates the impact of a- hypothetical 10% change in Pounds Sterling against Danish Krone Euro, Canadian Dollar or United
States Dollar on shareholders’ funds as at 31 December: . .

Strengthening Weakening ‘Strengthening Weakening 'Strengthening Weakening  Strengthening  Weakening

against Danish’ against against Euro against against against against United against

Krone ~ Danish. Euro " Canadian Canadian States Dollar United

: Krone . ' ) - Dollar Dollar . States

. A . . . : Dollar
. _Em £m £m £m £m £m £m . “£m
. 2020 . {2) 2 15 . (19) : 5 . (6) (6) 8
2019 ‘ (25) 31 29 (36) (2) 2 (6) 7

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of/ loss to the Company as a result of assets not being available in a form that can immediately be converted into
cash, and therefore the consequence of not being able to pay its obligations when due. To help mitigate this risk, the BRC sets limits on assets held
by the Company designed to match the maturities of its assets to that of its liabilities.

A large proportion of investments are maintained in short-term (less than one year) highly liquid securities, which are used to manage the
Company'’s operational requirements based on actuarial assessment and allowing for contingencies. .

The Company maintdins additional liquidity facilities for contingency purposes. These facilities included uncommitted overdraft arrangements. as
well as the ability to enter repurchase agreements to cover short- term fluctuations-in cash and liquidity reqmrements

The following table summarises the contractual repricing or maturity dates, whrchever is earlier. Claims. outstandmg within technical provrsrons are -
also presented and are analysed by remaining estimated- duration until settlement.

Balance
) ' : Sheet
Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 o5+ carrying
1 Year Years Years Years Years Years Total value
As at 2020° L . £m £m £m £m £m . £m £m £m-
Technical provisions - claims: : ;
outstanding' : © 1,967 831 463 291 - 186 694 " 4,432 4,432
Creditors arising out of direct insurance Co o . )
operations . 45 - - - S - 45 45
Creditors arising out of reinsurance R : : A ,
" operations ) . -468 191 73 - - - 732 732
Amounts owed to credit institutions 7 . ) R . . ' T g ' 7
. Amounts owed to group undertakings 5 045 ; ’ ) R ; L 5.045 C 5.045
Qerlvatlve trading liabilities 19 . . ) o P 4 93 18 - - 118
Lease liabilities 9 T 9 8 7 17 61 . 55
Total ] . 7,560 1,033 - 545 301 197 804 10,440 10,434
* - .Balance
- - ) ) Sheet
Less than . -2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5+ : carrying
R 1 Year Years Years Years Years Years . Total - value:
Asat2019 :  fm. . Em £m £m . £m - £m £m £m
Technical provisions -claims outstanding . 1527 . .887 . 566 327 - 240 780 4,327 4,327
- Creditors arising out of direct insurance ’ . B i . . '
operations ' . T 44 1 - - - - 45 45
" Creditors arising out of rernsurance : '
operations : 474 192 72 - . - Co- 738 738
Amounts owed to credit institutions . - 65 . - - - - - 65 65
Amounts owed to group undertakings - . 4,987 - . - L - ' 4,987 4,987 '
Derivative trading liabilities o 6 14 . . . . 70 92 92
Lease liabilities ' 17 16 15 12 11 29 100 90
Total ) 7,117 1,099 667 339 253 879 10,354 10,344
The maturity ana|ysrs above is presented on a drscounted basrs for consistency with the balance sheet and supportmg notes with the exceptlon of
lease liabilities. .

Pension risk

The Company is exposed to risks through its obligation to fund a number of schemes. These risks include market risk (assets not performing as well
as expected), inflation risk and longevity risk over the lives of the members. The Company and trustees of the schemes work together to reduce
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these risks through agreement of investment policy including the use of mterest rate, rnﬂatron rate and mortality swaps. Funher mformatron on the
" Company's management of pension risk is included within note 15 ‘

Capital management

It is a key regulatory requirement that.the Company maintains sufficient capltal to support its exposure to risk. Accordlngly, the Group's and the
Company’s capital management strategy is closely linked to its monitoring and management of risk. The Group's capital objectives consist of
striking the right balance between the need to support claims liabilities and ensure the confidence of policyholders, exposure to other risks, support
competitive pricing strategres meet regulatory capital requrrements and providing adequate returns for its shareholders. .

The Company’s overall capital position is primarily comprised of shareholders’ equrty and subordinated Ioan capital and aims to maximise
shareholder value, while maintaining financial strength and adequate regulatory capital. In addition the Group and the Company also aims to hold
sufficient capital so as to maintain its single ‘A’ (Standard & Poor's) credit rating: .

The Company holds an appropriate leve! of capital to satisfy all applicable regulations. Cornpliance with regulatory requirements is embedded within
the BRC mandate, for the protection of the Company's policyholders and the continuation of the Company’s ability to underwrite.

Regulatory solvency position during 2020 )

The Group has a Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) approved Solvency |l Internal Model which torms the basis of the primary Solvency I
solvency capital ratio (SCR) measure. RSA operates a programme of continuous development in relatron to the internal model and a Group-level
regulatory approval was recerved in 2020 for the latest set of enhancements.

‘The internal model is used to support. inform and improve the Company’'s decision making. It is used to inform the Group’s and Company’s
optimum capital structure, its investment strategy, its reinsurance programme and pricing and target returns for each portfolio.

At 31 December 2020, the Company's estimated SCR and corresponding Eligible Own Funds were as follows: CoL
: Unaudited Unaudited

2020 2019

v . . £bn £bn

Eligible Own Funds : : : . 35 33
SCR ' , ‘ = : 1.7 1.7
Coverage (unrounded) ‘ ' — . 202% 189%

The Solvency and Financial Condition Réport of the Group,'which covers information on the solvency and financial condition of the Company, as
required by Solvency |l for the year ended 31 December 2020 will be publioly available in April 2021.

_ Shareholders’ funds

The Company uses a variety of metrics to monitor its capltal position mcludrng Shareholders’ funds which are £8,909m as at 31 December 2020
(2019: £8,199m).

Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)

The Solvency I directive introduced a requirement for undertakings to conduct an ORSA. RSA received approval in April-2019 from the PRA to
produce a single ORSA report covering the UK entities, mcludrng the Company. The approval is now in place until 2023 and it replaces the original
approval received in 2016. . .

The Group defines its ORSA as a series of interrelated activities by which it establishes:

e - The quantity and quality of the risks whrch it seeks to assume or to which it is exposed;
o The level of capital required to support those risks;
«  The actions it will take to achieve and maintain the desired levels of risk and capital.

- The assessment considers both the current position and the positions that may arise during the planning horizon of the Company (typically the next
. three years). it looks at both the expected outcome and the outcome arising when the plan assumptions do not materialise as expected. -

The assessments of how much risk to assume and how much capital to hold are inextricably linked. In some’situations, it may be desirable to

increase the amount of risk assumed or retained in order to make the most efficient use of capital available or else to return excess capital to capital

providers. In other situations, where the risks assumed give rise to a capital requirement that is greater than the capital immediately available to
. support those risks, it will be necessary either to reduce the risk assumed or to obtain additional capital.

The assessment of risk and solvency needs is in principle carried out continuously. In practice, the assessment consists' of a range of specific
activities and decisions carried out at different times of the year as part of an annual cycle, supplemented as necessary by ad hoc assessments of
the impact of external events and developments and of internal business proposals

Papers are presented to the Board throughout the year dealing with mdrvrdual elements that make up the ORSA. The information contained in those
papers and the associated decisions taken are summarised in an annual ORSA repon which is submitted to the Company s regulators as part of
the normal supervrsory process. The ORSA is approved by the BRC.

There were two ORSA's during 2020. An ad hoc ORSA was triggered in response to Covid-19 events. This considered the UK business interruption
court case together with Covid-19 impacts across all key risk categories — Market risk, Underwriting risk, Reserving risk and Credit risk. This also
considered a refresh of the Group Recovery plan together with a Reverse Stress Test event. As a follow on from the July process an updated
ORSA report was presented to the BRC in January 2021. This considered the year end 2020 position, refreshed stress scenario testing and aligned
to the latest 3 year capltal projections. The ORSA process during this cycle continues to demonstrate ongoing balance sheet strength and balance
sheet resilience.
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6. Segmental information by business class and geographical area

a) By business class

Marine - )
Fire & Aviation & Third Party . Re-

: L . Motor property Transport Liability Assistance Other’ insurance Total
2020 - ) £m .__Em ) £m £m £m £m £m- £m
Gross premiums written - 752 - 1,071 125 298 _ 21 267 1,026 3,560

" Gross premiums earned 768 - 1,055 - 126 279 a3 281 1,019 3,561
Gross claims incurred - (499) - (637) . - (48) (205). (16)  (179) (672)  (2,251)
(Operating expenses' {119) (416) (47) © (87 7y (98) - (256) {1,030)
Gross technical result 150 ) 2 3 I (13) : 10 . -9 91 280
Reinsurance result (174) (71) '(30) . (41) ~ .. -7 3 (26) '(339)
Net technical resuit S (24) (69) 1 : (54) B 10 ' 42 65 (59)

1For the purpose of the segmental information disclosed in this note, operating expenses is shown net-of other operating income

Marine

Fire & ' Aviation & Third Parfy l ' - Re- .~

: . Motor property " Transport .Liability Assistance . Other? insurance Total

2019 - : £m £m £m - Efm £m gm_ £m £m

. Gross premiums written 823 1,007 99 ‘ 256 .37 285 1,264 3771
Gross premiums earned . 809 1062 - 164 271 . 42 296 1,185 3,829
Gross claims incurred . (783) (547) (88) (231 (20) (191) (841)  (2,701)
Operating expenses' - 117) - (404) . 520 .~ o - 7) -.(100) . (226) (983)
" Gross technical result CIN i 112 24 (38) 15 5 118 = 145
Reinsurance result . 6 (115) (51) 23 ’ - 2 (35) ) (174)
Net technical result . . (85) (3) VYA (15) 15 . 3 : 83. (29)

'For the purpose of the segmental information disclosed in this note, operating expenses is shown net of other operating income
2amounts reported as accident & health in the Company’s 2019 Annual Report and Accounts have been re-presented as other in the table above..
In addition, amounts reported as operating expenses have been re-presented to be shown net.of other operating income which is offset by a re-
presentation of the reinsurance result. There is no impact on the total net technical result reported .

~ Al of the business.above relates to general insurance which is considered to be the only business segment.

b) By geographical segment

_ . 2020 . 2019

Gross premiums written for direct business by origin: ) . ) £m : £m
UK o . ) 4 : ' ’ . 2,491 2,587
Other EEA - , o . o , : ' - (136)
Other - * o ' : : ‘ 43 56

‘ S ' ‘ S 2,534 . 2507

- Gross premrums are dlsclosed by origin. There is no material difference between the amounts shown and those by reference to destmatron (i.e.
location of rlsk) .

" Other EEA gross premrums were cancelled during 2019 as a result of a portfolio transfer Further mformatron can be found in note 40.

Total commissions for direct insurance business accounted for by the Company durrng the year excluding payments to. employees amounted to
£444m (2019: £465m). .

'7 Loss on disposal of business
In 2020, the loss of £4m relates to the sale of the Company's 57.1% holding in British Avratlon Insurance Company Limited.
ln 2019, the Company mcurred a £19m loss relating to the drsposal of the UK Legacy busmess consisting of a £15m addmonal contnbutron to

Enstar Group Limited and £4m costs of disposal. The legal transfer of the UK Legacy liabilities was completed on 1 July 2019 after the transaction
mrtrally took the form of a reinsurance arrangement, effective from 31 December 2016.
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8. Exchange rates

The rates of exchange used in these accounts in r_espe'ct of the major overseas currency are: '

2020 2020 2019 2019
Cumulative Endof  Cumulative End of
. . ) ‘ average period average period
United States Dollar - : ' . : . ) 1.28 1.37 1.28 1.32
Euro ' : B 143 142 114 118
‘Canadian Dollar ' o 172 174 . 170 172
Danish Krone . : . 8.39 8.31 8.52 ) 8.82

Other. comprehensive income contams net losses of £(1)m (2019: £(1)m net losses) on the retranslation of forelgn currency items. The profi t and
loss account contains net gains of £4m (2019: £(20)m net Iosses) on the retranslation of foreign currency items.

9. Investment i mcome, expenses and charges )
: ’ Investment ’ Net realised Net unrealised Total investment

income ~ gains/(losses) gains/(losses) return
2020 2019 2020 - 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
: ) £m £m £m £m £m .  fm - Em £m -’
Investment property ’ . ’ 17 18 o3 . . (8) (10) 12 8
Shares and other variable yueld securmes and units )
in unit trusts . ' .
Available for sale : s 7 1 3 - - 6 10
Debt securities and other fixed income secuntles . .
Available for sale . S © 14 90 1 S . B 73 90 -
Other investments ] ' -
Other loans i ) : 51 54 p . . . 51 54
Deposnts cash at bank and ll'l hand ' 1 2 _ - . s 1 2 -
Derlvatives ' o - (2) ) - (8) @ - (12 . (1
Total net investment return . 148 . 169 () 3 (16) ~ (19) T 431 153.
AShares in group undertakings 1 2,955 .o . e 1 . 2,955
149 3,124 (1) 3 (16) (19) 132 3,108
I}ivestment expenses, charges and interest ) ‘
Interest on loans from group unqertakings 4 o (38) (91)
Other interest charges » . : v ' . : 9) S @
Investment management expenses ‘ . ) ' (N %)
Impairment of shares and other variable - ’
yield securities and units in unit trusts i . (4) -
: ' (58) (107)
Impairment of group undertakings _ . (2.408)
Net investment return o : ’ . ' - 74 593

" The net investment return on derivatives represents the investment return on fi nancial assets that the Company is required to classify as held for
trading investments. The derivatives are used to provnde a protectlon hedge for fair value changes of assets held within the mvestment portfolio and
foreign currency cash flows. .

Direct operating expenses (including repéirs and maintenance) afisingj from investment properties were not maierial in 2020 or 2019.
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Unrealised gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income for available for sale assets are as follows:

Net realised (gains)/losses Net movement recognised

Net unrealised transferred to profit and  in other comprehensive
) . gains/(losses) loss account income

! N 4 ) : 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

. . ' £m £m - £m £m £m £m
Equity securities ' U (6) 4) 4 {3) (2) )
Debt securities . ’ : 66 - 69 (k)] - 65 T 69
Subsidiary undertakings . ‘ ' 660 (263)' ' - - - 660 (263)'
Total . o 720 (198) 3 (3) 723 . (201)

10. Auditor’s remuneration

Fees, payable to KPMG LLP for the audit of the Company's accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020 were £1,960,000 (31 December 2019:
£1,300,550). Fees payable to KPMG.LLP for the provision of non-audit services* for the year ended 31 December 2020 were £237,000 (31-
December 2019: £285,000). Audit fees of £272,000 (2019: £251,450) were also paid by Royal & Sun Alllance Insurance plc on behalf of certain
subsidiary undertakings. .

* Non-audit services fee |ncludes £127, 000 (2019: £250,000) in relatlon to assurance work in respect of RSA Insurance Group plc Solvency I
reporting. .

11. Directors’ emoluments

2020 2019
The aggregate emoluments of the directors, mcludlng amounts pald for services to the Group, were as. ) ’
follows: - . ) ) » ' £000 £000
Salaries and bonuses : : : 6,254 4,102
Allowances, beneﬁts and other awards : o 506 1,179 -

" 6,760 - 5,281

The criteria formaking bonus awards is based on targeted levels of business sector profit and specific bustness objectives.

2020 2019
The emoluments of the highest paid director were: : o . : £000 ) £000
Salary, bonus, allowances, benefits and other awards ' : . 3,047 1,449

No amounts were paid to a pension scheme in respect of the highest paid directors’ qualifying services during 2020 (2019: £3,479).

During 2020, no retirement benefits Vaccroed under defined benefit schemes for directors (2019: none). During 2020, contributions of £4,813 (2019:
£11,542) were made to Group defined contribution schemes during the year in respect of one director (2019: two directors).

During 2020, no directors exercised share options (2019: no dnrectors) and three directors (2019: four dlrectors) had shares awards vesting under -
long term incentive schemes in respect of ordinary shares of the Company s ultimate parent company
12. Employees and Staff costs -

: 2020 2019

‘ . : ) ‘ £m £m
Wages and salaries - - : . 226 219
Social security costs ‘ . ' S Y A 27
Other pension costs ' : . . ) . 3 30 23
Share based payments (note 16) : ] - 14 7

Total staff costs . ‘ S T . - 297 . 276

Other pension costs include only those items included within operating costs.
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" The average monthly number of employees (including executive directoré) of the Company during the year is as' follows: .
: 2020 2019

) . Number ' Number
UK & Ireland ,' A - L o .. . 5236 -~ 5207
Other ' - B B : : 14 - 12.

Total average numberof employees durmg the year o o T 5,250 5,309

UK & Ireland includes staff empioyed in Group Corporate Centre.

Further information on pensnon obhgatlons of the Company can be found in note 15. Further mformatron on employee share schemes can be found
in note 16 :

13. Leases

The Company leases land and buildings and other tanglble assets such as vehtcles IT equipment, servers and malnframes to operate its busmess'
The remaining lease ten'ns for the maln office premises range from 1.to 14 years (2019: 1 to 15 years).

The Company also Ieases office equipment, such as Iaptops and pnnters for which certaln leases are short term (1 year or Iess) and/or low value
|tems The Company has’ elected to apply recognltron exemptions as permitted by IFRS 16 for these leases (see note 3 for accounting policy).

- Lease liabilities of £55m (2019: £90m) are included within other creditors in the balance sheet. The maturity anaIysns of lease liabilities can be found .
“in note 5.

A reconciliation of lease liabilities is presented below:’

2020 : 2019
_ A _ £m . . fm
- Balance at 1 January - o E L : : o 90 94
" Lease payments. ' , o AR . ' T (19) - an
" Additions to lease liabilities o - : ‘ ry 12
Interest on lease liabilities - o S 2 3
Remeasurements : ' ' ' : o (22) . 2
‘Balance at 31 December : , o o . 55 90
Amounts recognised in profit or loss .
. B R . . . . 2020 2019
_Leases under IFRS 16 - - : : S £m’ £m
Interest on lease liabilities 4 » ' : ' : ) : 2 3
Administrative expenses relating to short term leases ’ ’ ' - : 2
Administrative expenses relating to leases of low-value assets . : ' o . 1 . 1
Administrative ekpenses retating to variable lease payments - " ’ . 4 -
14. Other technical income A . .
' 2020 . 2019
. £fm . £m
" Administration fees income T ' o ) : ' ' . "1 o 3
Instalment policy fee income : - - ' T} B 19
Introductory commissions o ' : . A 1 o 1
Service.income : ‘ a ' : ) ©7 7
* Other fees L S . . a "

. Total othertechnical income . ) ’ . - : . ) 69 ) 71

Information on the income types within the table above is disclosed within the other techriical income accounting policy in note 3.
15. Post-employment benefits and obligations

Defined contribution pensron schemes A
Costs of £32m (2019: £31m) were recognised in respect of defined contnbutlon schemes by the Company
- Defined beneﬁt pension schcmcs and othcr post-omployment benefits

The amounts recognised in the financial statements are as fo!lows:
: o : 4
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2020 T 2019

) £m £m

Present value of funded obligations - ' - . o ' (8,832) (8.135)
Present value of unfunded obligations : ' : : ) (7 7
Fair value of plan assets . ' 9,342 8,537
Other net 'surplus remeasurements - . ' ' (179) (141)
Net surplus in schemes - L : ) : ‘ 324 254
Defined benefit pension schemes ' . : ) » . 324 254

" Schemes in surplus . 331 261
Schemes in deficit S : - ‘ " )

Independent actuaries calculate the value of the defined benefit obligations for the larger schemes by applying the projected unit credit method. The
future expected cash outflows (calculated based on-assumptions that include inflation and mortality) are discounted to present value, using a
discount rate determined at the end of each reporting period by reference to current market yields on high quality corporate bonds (‘AA’ rated)
identified to match the currency and term structure of the obligations. '

The actuarial valuation ‘involves making assumptions about discount rates, future .inflation, the employees’ ége upon termination and retirement,
mortality rates, future pension increases, disability incidence and.health and dental care cost trends.

If actual experience differs from the assumptions used, the expected obligation could increase or decrease in future years. Due to the complexity of
the valuation and its long-term nature, the defined benefit obligation is highly-sensitive to changes in the assumptions. Assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date. As such, the IAS 19 valuation of the liability is highly sensitive to changes in bond rates and will also be impacted by changes -
in equity markets.

The assets of these schemes are mainly held in séparate trustee administered funds. The defined benefit schemes were effectively closed to new
entrants in 2002 and subsequently closed to future accruals with effect from 31 March 2017. The schemes in surplus have been reduced for the
35% tax cost of an authorised return of surplus, classified as ‘Other net surplus remeasurements’. Our opinion is that the authorised refund tax
charge is not an income tax within the meaning of IAS 12 and so the surplus is recognised net of thls tax charge rather than the tax charge being
included w1th|n deferred taxation.

The profile of the members of the two main defined benefit schemes at 30 September 2020 (the latest date at which fuII information is available) is

as follows:

) ) . ' Number
Deferred members - members no longer accruing and not yet receiving benefits ’ ' ) 22,710
Pensioners - members and dependants receiving benefits o - ] 18,840
Total members at 30 September 2020 Co ) o 41,550

Accrued benefits are revalued up to retirement in accordance with government indices for inflation. A cap of 2.5% per annum applies to the
revaluation of benefits accrued post.March 2010 (a cap of 5% per annum applies for benefits which accrued prior to this date).

After retirement, pensions in payment are increased each year based on the increases in the government indices for inflation. A cap of 2.5% applies
to benefits accrued post 31 December 2005 (a cap of 5% applies to benefits in excess of Guaranteed Minimum Pension prior to this date).

The schemes are managed through trusts with independent trustees responsible for safeguarding the interests of all members. The trustees meet
regularly with management to discuss the funding position and any proposed changes to the schemes. The schemes are regulated by The
Pensions Regulator. . .

The Company is exposed to risks through its obligation to fund the schemes. These risks include market risk {assets not performing as well as
expected), inflation risk and longevity risk over the lives of the members. The Company and the trustees-of the schemes work together to reduce
these risks through agreement of investment policy including the use of interest rate, inflation rate and longevity swaps.

During 2009 the Company entered into an arrangement that provides coverage against longevity risk for 55% of the retirement obligations relating
to pensions’ in payment of the two largest schemes at that time (c.35% coverage based on current. pensioner population). The arrangement
provides for reimbursement of the covered pension obligations in return for the contractual return receivable on a portfolio of assets (made up of
quoted government debt and swaps) held by the pension funds at the inception of the arrangement and which have continued to be held by the
schemes. The swaps held are accounted for as a longevity swap, measured at fair value under IFRS (and in accordance with FRS 101) by
discounting all expected future cash flows using a discount rate consistent with the term of the relevant cash flow. The discount rate used is subject
to a degree of judgement, due to the unique characteristics of the swap, and the rate is selected to most closely reflect the economic matching
nature of the arrangement within a range of acceptable values obtained from external sources. The total value of the arrangement, ‘including

 government debt measured at prices quoted in an active market, at 31 December 2020 is £1,596m (2019: £1,560m). Management do not believe
that there is a significant risk of a material change to the balance in the balance sheet net of the assocnated pension liabilities subject to the
arrangement within the next financial year.

In November 2020 the High Coun issued a follow-up ruling to the Lloyds Banking Group 2018 case in respect of the equalisation of benefits due to

" unequal Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs) for male and female scheme members. The update states that where pension schemes have paid
out lump sum transfers in respect of individual members leaving the scheme, these payments should also have been adjusted to allow for GMP
equalisation and must therefore be revisited retrospectively. The impact of this on the defined benefit schemes has been estimated with an
expected cost of c£1m recognised in 2020 (c£8m recognised in 2018 in respect of the original judgement)
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Each scheme is subject to triennial valuations, which are used to determine the future funding of the schemes by the Company including funding to
repair any funding deficit. The funding valuations, which determine the level of cash contributions payable into the schemes and which must be
‘agreed between the Trustees and the Company, are typically based on a prudent assessment of future experience with the discount rate reflecting
a prudent expectation of returns based on actual investment strategy. This differs from I1AS 19, which requires that future benefit cash flows are
projected on the basis of best-estimate assumptionis and discounted in line with high-quality corporate bond yields. The Trustees’ funding
assumptions are updated only every three years, foIIowmg completion of the triennial fundlng valuations. The effective date of the most recent
valuatlons of the main funds is 31 March 2018.

At the most recent funding valuatlons the main funds had an aggregate fundlng deficit of £468m, equivalent to a funding Ievel of 95%. The
Company and the Trustees have agreed funding plans to eliminate the funding deficits by 2026. Details of the deficit contributions paid in 2020 and
that are due to be paid in 2021 under these plans are disclosed below The fundmg plans will be reviewed again following the next triennial
valuatlons which W|II have an effective date of 31 March 2021.

For the two mam defined benefit schemes, the level of contributions in 2020 was £84m (2019: £96m) of whlch £75m (2019: £86m) were additional
contributions to reduce funding deficits. Expected contributions to the'two schemes for the year ending 31 December 2021 are approxnmately £84m
- including £75m of additional contrlbutlons to reduce the deficit. :
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The weighted average duration of the defi ned benefit obligation of the two main schemes at the.end of the reporting period is 17.5 years (2019 17
years).

The estimated discounted present values of the accumulated obligations are calculated in accordance with the advice of lndependent qualified

actuaries.
' Movement during the year: A ' : : A 2020 ,
‘ Present value of - Fair value of plan  Other net surplus .~ Total
obligation - assets . remeasurements. :
- ‘£m £m . - £m - £m
At 1 January . . S (8,142) o 8,537 (141) - © . 254
Past service costs ) ‘ - 1) : : - - 1)
Interest (expense)fincome . "7 (164) 73 . 9
. Administration costs : -. (6) C. )
‘Total (expense)/income recognised in profit and : . . ’ .
loss account . (165) - 167 ‘ - 2
‘Retum on scheme assets Iess amounts included in net ' S
. interest cost - - 906 - . 906
Effect of changes in financial assumptions o . (962) - g .- . (962)
) Effect of changes in demographic assumptions . 17 ’ s - : : 17
Experience gains and losses ) : 70 . : ' - .70
Investment expenses : ’ - (10) - (10)
Other net surplus remeasurements ' ) - - (38) (38)
Remeasurement recogmsed in othér comprehensive ) '
income . T (875) . 896 (38) (17)
~ Employer contribution . S . - 85 . ' 85
Benefit payments ' . ' 343 (343) . - o -
At 31 December o ’ ' (8,839) © 09,342 . ~(179) 324
Deferred tax . . ’ ) 1
' Net surplus, net of deferred tax ) ) S . : . ) : 325
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2019
Present value of Fair value of pian Other net surplus Total
obligation assets - remeasurements
4 £m £m ‘ £m - £m
At 1 January (7.467) 7,827 .(129) 231
Past service costs (1)' - - )]
Interest (experise)/income- (205) 219 - 14
Administration costs . o . - (5) - .5
- Total (expense)/mcome recognised in prof it and .
loss account (206) 214 - 8
Return on scheme assets less amounts mcluded innet o
interest cost - 730 - 730
Effect of changes in financial assumptions (840) - - (840)
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions . A1 - - 31
Experience ‘gains and losses .. ' R 4 - - 17-
Investment expenses ; : - 8 - - (8)
. Other net surplus remeasurements » ' - - (12) (12
Remeasurement recogmsed in other comprehenswe .
_income - (792) 722 (12) (82)
Employer contribution - o ' S 97. - 97
" . Benefit payments 323 (323) - -
At 31 December (8,142) 8,537 (141) 254
Deferred tax ) 1
Net surplus, net of deferred tax 255
. 2020 , 2019
The value of scheme assets are as follows: Quoted  Unquoted Total Quoted - Unquoted Total
£m £m £m _£m £m £m
Equities . 436 . ' 106 542 518 183 701
Government debt 6,514 - 6,514 5,454 465 5,919
Non-government debt 1,926 1,566 3,492 1,648 1,056 2,704,
Derivatives . ] 1 . - 1,061 - 1,061 - 827 827
Property - : o I - 635 635 - 645 645
Cash . : : o | 1s0 - 190 82 - 82
Other § : h . 355 355 - 450 . 450
Investments ' ’ " 9,066 - 3,723 12,789 7,702 3,626 11,328
Value of asset and longevity swaps h - - (3,447) . (3,447) - (2,791) (2,791)
Total assets in the schemes 9,066 276 7,702 835 8,537

9,342

The scheme assets are’ analysed by those that have a quoted market price in active markets and unquoted

Where assets are classified as unquoted the valuatlons are:

. Taken from the underlymg managers in the case of non-developed market equnty non-UK sovereign debt, pooled non-government debt :
- and other pooled funds — these funds themselves will be subject to annual (or more frequent) audit

«  Provided by an independent surveyor (in the case of direct property)

. Taken at the mark to market valuation used for collateral purposes in the case of derivative contracts

The welghted average principal actuana| assumptlons used are:

Assumptidns used in calculation of retirement benefit obligatiori
ljiscount rate . )
Annual rate of inflation (RPI)

Annual rate of inflation (CPI)
Annua| rate in‘inc':reas_ein pensions'

' Assumptlons used in calculation of pensuon net interest costs for the year:
Discount rate ’
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. 2019

2020

% %
1.38 - 2.05
2.92 . 2.96
2.26 1.96
279 2.82
2.05

2.83
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‘The annual rate of increase in pensions, shown is the rate that applies to pensuons that increase at RPI subject to a cap of 5%

During the year a change was made to the actuarial provider of our IAS 19 discount rate. The underlying principles of this assumption remain ~
unchanged and, while the impact will vary slightly at different dates, it is expected to remaln broadly neutral (1bp at 31 December 2019, WhICh is
equivalent to less than a £5m decrease in net IAS 19 surplus).

- Mortality rate

The mortality assumptions are 'set.following investigations of the main schemes’ recent experience c‘arried out by independent actuaries as part of
the most recent funding valuations. The core mortality rates assumed for the main schemes follow industry-standard tables with percentage
adJustments to reflect the schemes’ recent expenence compared with that expected under these tables )

Reductions in future mortality rates are allowed for by usnng the CMI 2019 tables (2019 CMI 2018 fables) wuth a long term |mprovement of 1.25%
(2019: 1.25%). The weighted average’ assumptlons imply that a ‘current pensioner aged 60 has an expected future lifetime of 27.0 (2019: 27.0)
years for males and 28.5 (2019: 28.5) years for females and a future pensioner aged 60 in 15 years' time has a future expected lifetime from age 60 .
of 28.0 (2019: 28.0) years for males and 29.7 (2019: 29.7) years for females.

Sensitivity analysis
Sensmvmes for the defined benef t obligations of the two main schemes are shown below:

- Changes in assumption 2020 2019
Discount rate ) : Increase by 0.25% ) (369) (334)
) ' . Decrease by 0.25% ) - 1:7 357

RPI/ CPI! Increase by 0.25% S I 233 211
‘ Decrease by 0.25% ' S (221). - (205)
Core mortality rates? Decrease by 12% 4 . 376 - . 328
. . Increase by 12% . S ’ (377) 3 (371)
Long-term future improvementé to monality rates Increase by 0.25% } ‘ ) . 84 73
Decrease by 0.25% - : ’ ' (83) (@72

! The impact shown is for the appropriate increase in the revaluation of deferred pensnons and the increases to pensions in.payment resulting from
the specific increase in RPI and CPI.

2Reducing the core mortality rates by 12% is the equnvalent ofi mcreasmg the life expectancy ofa male aged 60 years by 1 year.

16. Share based. payments

The total employment cost recorded in the profit and loss account for all plans is £14m in 2020 (2019: £7m).

Analysis of share scheme costs {per profit and loss account):

2020 2019

) . . £m - £m

Performance share plan (PSP) : A . T 12 6

Save as you earn (SAYE) : T ' ' 2 . 1

Total - . Co o 1“7
Analysis of new awards costs: . ’ A . ) ‘ '
. o ‘ 2020 ‘ 2019

Charge for Total Charge for " Total

year value . year value

. - £m - #m . " _Em £m

PSP — S o ' 5 9 3 9

SAYE o . . - 2 -
Total ’ o . ' . s 1 - -3 10

The balance of the value of the awards will be charged to the profit and loss account during the remaining vesting period_s'.j L

Performance Share Plan '

This plan is the Group’s current Long-Term Incentive Plan. Awards of performance shares to executive directors and other selected executives and
senior managers are subject to performance conditions. These consist of the Group's underlying return on tangible equity; relative total shareholder
return; and business scorecard targets over a three year performance.period. Typically awards vest on the third anniversary of the date of grantto -
the extent that the performance conditions have been met, with a two-year retention period in the case of Executive Directors’ Performance Shares.

The Remuneratlon Committee may also make conditional awards of restncted shares to other executnves and senior managers, which are not
subject to performance condmons

" Additionally, the Remuneratlon Committee may defer a portion of an individual's gross bonus mto an award over shares referred to for the purpose,
- of the plan as deferred bonus shares, which are also not subject to performance conditions.
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if an employee resigns from the Company, then performance shares and restricted shares lapse at the date of leaving the Company. Deferred
Bonus Shares awards are generally retained by the employee to whom the award was granted if they léave the Company, unless the employee is
dismissed for cause. Awards fetained will vest on the normal vesting date.

However, the Remuneration Committee has the discretion to modify the treatment of leavers’ share awards that have yet to be released, based on
the leaving circumstances, where this is appropnate and i |n shareholders’ interests.

17. Taxation :

‘ The charge/(credit) for taxation in the profit and loss account comprises: ) :
‘ : ' . 2020 . 2019

- £m _ Em
Current tax _
UK corporation tax ) 4 0
Overseas taxation - i 4 '3
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 1 (1
Total current tax 9 (5)
Deferred tax . . ]
Temporary differénces - origination and reversal ' Co : - T 12 6‘
Adjustments in respect of prior periods ' - ‘ o A 1 .
Adjustment for change in tax rates ' ) - {(17) . -
Total deferred tax (see note 28) ‘ . . : T (4 - 6
Total tax charge for the year = - ' : ' ' -5,
The UK corporation tax for the current year«is based on a rate of 19.0% (2019: 19.0%). -

-Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge for the year is more than 19.0% (2019: less than 19. 0%) due to the items set out in the reconcrlratron below
A 2020 ©2019
. o ) £m - © fm
Profit on ordinary activities before tax : ' . o 15 525
Tax at 19.0% (2019: 19.0%) . : o S ' - T3 " 100

. Factors affectirrg charge: .

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes' . - ' ' o ' 1 ‘ 459
Income/gains not taxable? - : . S . S ‘ . . - 3) . © (566)
Fiscal adjustments . : ' o - o ’ o (1) @)
Increase/(release) of tax provided in respect of prevrous periods . ) A ’ 2 » (1)
Effect of change in tax rates/rate differences® - o : (17) -

) Group relief received without payment : ’ ' S ) 1 4
Unrelieved foreign tax credits : S ' — ' 4 3
Deferred tax assets not recognised . - : . - o 15 6 .
Total tax charge for the year . - " ' 5 1,

'Expenses not deductible for tax purposes in 2019 malnly comprised |mpa|rment of subsndlanes of £2,408m. Tax impact £455m.
2Income/gains not taxable in 2019 mamly comprised dividends from subsndlanes of £2,955m. Tax impact £561m
*The effect of change in tax rates relates to the impact of the change in the UK deferred tax rate (17 0% to 19.0% from April- 2020) on the UK _

deferred tax asset. This resulted in a £17m deferred tax credit to the profit and loss account, which has been largely offset by deferred tax assets
not recognlsed (£15m charge to the proﬁt and Ioss account).

18. Dividends
' 2020 . 2019.
. £m £m
No interim dividends were pard during the year (2019: 7.20p per ordinary share) ' o ' - L 350

The directors: do not recommend payment of a f nal dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019 £nr|)
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19. Intangible assets

, ) . ) S Externally Internally
! ' ) o o Goodwill on acquired generated : ‘
S o acquisition software  software Other . Total
Cost . . : . - . - £m. . Em’ £m £m - £m
At 1 January 2020 o a - 72 43¢ 24 - 530
Additions E : o - - , 79 oo 79
Disposals . : ' - E - ). (14) (15)
At 31 December 2020 ; ) . - 72 512 - 10 - 594
Accumutated Amortisation o : ' ‘ ' )
At 1 January, 2020 , _ - T2 208 24 304
Disposals : ' ' o - , - .- . (14) (14)
" Charge for the year o ) . - - ot 29 . - .29
At 31 December 2020 . . . 4 ‘ - 72 - 2371 . 10 319
Accumulated Impairment ' ' '
At 1 January 2020 S 4 . - ‘ - - ‘ -
At 31 December 2020 : . S - -
Net Book Value - - _ ' ‘
At 31 December 2020 ' S - . 275 . 275
. . Externally Internally
Goodwill on acquired generated . )
o : acquisition - sqftware_ software Other . . Total
Cost 4 " : ~ Em. “£m £m £m ‘£m
At 1 January 2019 ’ - _ , 9 72 349 24 . 454
- Additions ' - ‘ : - - 85 . - © 85
Disposals ’ . ' A (9) ) - . - - (9)
. At 31 December 2019 ) . . ' - - 72 434 24 530
" Accumulated Amortisation ‘ o o ' ‘
At 1 January 2019 . - 72 185 23 280
Charge for the year E ’ : - - : 23 A 24
At 31 December 2019 ) : . . . - 72 208 24 - 304
- Accumulated Impairment ) v ) ‘
At 1 January 2019 I : . 9 - . - - 9
Disposals . o (9) . - - ©)

At 31 December 2019 : S - - - - -
Net Book Value : ) -
At 31 December 2019 o ' - - 226. - 22

The carrying value-of mtangnble assets not yet available to use at 31 December 2020 is £129m (2019: £121m). This pnmanly relates to the
implementation of strategic software assets, reported wnthm internally generated software .

Amortisation

Amortisation expense qf £29m (2019: £24m) has been charged to administrative expenses within the profit and loss account.
The Cbmpany continues to invest in strategic software assets such as policy administration and claims management systems. These are
fundamental to the ongoing insurance operations and will remain in.use for a period of at least ten years. In 2019, the useful economic life -of .
strategic software assets was extended from seven to ten years based on management's best-estimate. This did not have a material impact in the
perlod St .

- Impairments -

During'2020, no impairment charge was recognised for intangible assets (2019: £nil).

When testing intangible assets for impairment (including those not available for use), the carrying value of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) which
includes the intangible assets is compared to the recoverable amount as determined by a value in use calculation. Where the value in use is less .
than the current carrying value of the CGU in the balance sheet, the |ntang|b|e asset is |mpa|red in order to ensure that the CGU carrying value is
not greater than its future value to the Company.

The value in use calculation uses cash flow projections based on the operational plan approved by management covering a three year period. The
operational plan uses the best estimates of future premlums operating expenses and taxes using historical trends, general market conditions,
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" industry trends and forecasts and other available |nformatron These plans reflect the.Company's asséssment of the |mpact of the current
challenging-economic environment and assume that the Company continues to operate ona standalone basis. .

Cash flows beyond the operatronal plan period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates which management deem appropriate for the
. CGU. Future cash flow projection years are not extrapolated beyond the asset's useful economic life. The cash flow forecasts- are adjusted by :
- appropriate discount rates. . .

" The pre-tax discount rate used for the intangible assets impairment testing, which reflects specific risks relating to the CGU at the date of -
evaluation, and the growth rate are shown below. In determining a cost of capital, data over a period of time is utilised to avoid short term market.
volatility. The growth rate includes improvements in trade performance, where these are forecast in the three year operational plan for the CGU.

S _ 2020 . 2019
Pre-tax discount rate’ : o _ C 145% = 126%

Growthrate? : ' A . ' 4.8% 0.5%

' The basis of the growth rate assumptron used for the value in use calculation has been reassessed in 2020. The change in basis has had no
matena! impact on the outcome of the testlng :

2The d:scount rate drsclosed in the Company s 2019 Annual Report and Accounts was 8. 5%, which was the post-tai discount rate. The 2019
comparative above has been updated to reﬂect the pre-tax rate used, there is no resulting impact on the 2019 value in use calculation or
conclusions drawn

There is increased uncertainty within the operational plans due to the impact of Covid-19 and the offer to buy RSA therefore a range of downside
scenarios to the plan have been considered, none of which would result in an impairment. The level of headroom is not matena|ly sensitive to
reasonable changes in the key assumptions used or the downside scenario modelllng performed

20. Land and b'uildings

'

Land and buildings is split between land and buildings owned and right-of-use assets as follows:

2020 2019
i . .  £m £m
Land and buildings owned . . o ' 0 . 319
Right-of-use assets ' N ' S - e 32 59
Total land and buildings o ' - ' o . 332 . 378
‘Land and buildings owned
- 2020 2019
. £m £m .
Land and buildings , , '
Freehold land and buildings - ' ] 290 305
Long leasehold I ' . 10 - 14
Total land and buildings t ' Co . 300 319
Of which Company occupied : ' . : ’ 19 197
The movement.in the carrying value of land and buildings owned is detailed below; : ' o L B
N ' 2020 2019
- . : ) . T £m £m
Land and buildings at 1 January . I . 319 328
Purchases o ‘ ‘ ' ' _ : : 19 10
Sales - , ' . . , (32) @
Fair value losses taken to prof it and loss account ,‘ : . . o ' . (5 (10)
Fair value gains taken to other comprehensive income . - - o1
Depreciation taken to the profit and loss account ' T ) ' ) - B (1) ) (1)
Land and buildings at 31 December ) ' g : . ) 300 319

) 'Tne historical cost of property at 31 December 2020 is £297rn (2019: £298m). -
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The movement in the company occupied property reserve is shown below:

2020 2019

o . . ) £m £m

Property reserve at 1 January : . ' ’ ' 15 14
Fair value gains ) 3 . ) ‘ - 1

. Property reserve at 31 December v ) 15 15

" Investment properties (classified as land and buildings) are included in the Company's investment portfolio to provide investment returns over the
longer term in accordance with the Company’s investment strategy. Investment properties are managed by external managers. .

These Iease agreements are normally drawn up in line with local practlce and the Company has no sugnlf icant exposure to Ieases that include
contingent rents.

The Company leases out its investment propeny and has classified these leases as operating leases because they do not transfer substantially all .
of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets.

During 2020, the Company recognised £17m of rental income within its investment income (2019: £18m).

The foIIowmg table sets out a maturity analysis of lease recelvables showmg the undlscounted lease payments to be received after the repomng

date. /
2020 . 2019
, . £m £m
Less than one year - : ' : T 17
One to two years } . o : 15 - . 16
Two to three years - ' . : : 14 " 15
Three to four years ) : . 11 14
" Four to five years . : . " 10 11
More than five years : A ‘ LY i 51
Total o o B 106 124
Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets relate to leased properties.
2020 2019
. ) . . £m ) £m
Balance at 1 January : . o _ 59 . 60
Depreciation'charge for the year . : (9) (10)
Additions to right-of-use assets . ' 4 12
Remeasurements ) ' . : (15) 3)
Impairments . ' A ‘ - {7) .-

Balance at 31 December ) : : 32 59

Impairment assessment . ’ ,

In response to Covid-19, substantially all of the Company's employees temporarily moved from office to home working and a large proportion of the
Company's leased office space is still not currently being fully utilised. Further to the success of home working and in conjunction with the UK
restructuring programme, a review of the future working locations of employees and required office space usage has been undertaken. These
“factors were considered to be impairment indicators and therefore an impairment assessment of land and buildings and tangible assets, including
right-of-use assets, has been carried out. Subsequently, impairments of £(7)m above and £(4)m in tangible assets (note 29) have been recognised
in administrative expenses within the profit and loss account:mainly relating to office floor space which is not expected to be utilised in the future.

The key judgements and assumptions considered in the impairment assessment were as follows:

¢  Office space was distinguished between:
e  Office space that is temporarily underutilised and has not been impaired on the basis that the space will be utilised again in the
future when office working resumes
¢  Office space that will remain vacant and no longer be utlhsed as a result of the reduced need for worklng space for the reasons
mentioned above .

¢ The likelihood of activating future break clauses on remaining leases where office space is stlll utilised have been assessed and assets re-
measured (together with associated Iease liabilities) where it is likely that clauses will be mvoked

o The recoverable amount of the right-of-use assets relating to permanently vacant-off ice space was based on their value in use and included
several key assumptions. These include:
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The ability to sublet and the t:mmg of agreements, if consudered possmle

The level of rent charged

The discount rate which is assumed to be the weighted average cost of capital

Identification of other relevant cash flows to include such as future servrce charges and i insurance

The key judgements and assumptlons used in measunng the recoverable amounts of the impaired right-of-use assets are not deemed matenally
sensitive. An adverse extreme change in all key judgements and assumptions lncluded in the calculation of the recoverable amount would result in
additional impairment of £4m. . .

21. Shares in group undertakings

The Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 46. The companies are principally all engaged in the transaction of insurance
or related business. The countries shown are those of incorporation and principal operation. Subsidiaries in the balance sheet comprise:

2020 ©. 2019
, . __Em £m
Fair value at 1 January . : o 10,391 -13,001
Additions / Acquisitions - o . . . - 64
Disposals _ ] . 3)
Revaluation =~ - o . . 660  (263) -
Impairments , L S , . - {2.408)
Total fair value of shares in group undertaklngs at 31 December - i o 11,040 10,391

The hlstorlc cost of investments in subsidiaries is £13,407m (2019: £13 423m)
. Additions

There have been no additions during 2020. Additions in 2019 of £64m comprised a contribution-in-kind of £52m and a capltal injection of £12m in
RSA Luxembourg SA.

Dlsposals
The Company disposed of its holdmg of British Aviation Insurance Company Limited during 2020, the carrying value of the holdmgs was £11m.

The Company completed the disposal of Noble Marine (Insurance Brokers) Limited and Noble Marine (Underwriting Agencies) Limited during 2019,
the total carrying value of the holdings was £3m. These holdings were classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2018.

.Loss on disposal of subsidiaries comprises the following: ] ‘ . : .
' ’ \ . ) ) o . 2020 2019

£m £m
Proceeds ' v o - , 7 3
Less: Carrying Value ) A _ . 1) ' 3)-
Add: Unrealised gains released from revaluation reserve - : ) - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries S . : , . ' @ -
Imnairments

There have_been no imbairments during 2020. .

Impairments of £2,408m in 2019 mainly related to rhe Company’s holdings in RSA Finance (£1,898m), Sun Alliance and London Insurance Limited }
(£472m), Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance (Global) Lirnited (£31m), RSA Insurance Ireland DAC (£4m) and Westgate Properties Limited (£3m).

Sensitivities
'The offer to buy RSA has been reflected within thé valuation of shares in groUp undenakmgs at 31 December 2020. This results in an uplift to the.
value of the major operating entities compared to the internal valuation methodology that would be applied if the offer had not been received. There
~ is no difference in valuation on enther basis for the non- major operatlng entities. .

_Given that the offer will reﬂect the fair value of the major operating entmes plus the additional benefits the consortium can derive, the impact of
these shocks has been calculated from an internal valuation perspective. The sensitivities below are shown relative to the final bid valuation for the
major operating entities. .

Decrease in fair value

through OCI
. 2020 2019
. Assumption - R
._Subsidiary type . Assumption type used Alternative assumption £m £m
Major operating ’ Cost of capital ' 8.50% . Increase by 1% ) (186) (189)
Maijor operating . Net asset value ' 100% Decrease by 5% . (106) ~ (165)

Non-major operating " Net asset value © 0 100% . Decrease by 5% ) © (245) (242)
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12019 sensitivities have been restated using the alternative 'as_sumptions included in the table above. Sensitivities reported in the 2019 Annual
Report and Accounts used alternative assumptions of an increase by 0.5% for cost of capital and a decrease by 1% for net asset value.

22. Financial Assets
The followmg table analyses ‘the Companys fi nancnal assets by classrf catron .
: : 2020 2019

. ) . £m £m
~ Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts ° i C ) o ' 409 . 373
Debt securities and other fixed income securities - . - 'A ) . 3424 ' 3,529
Financial assets measured at fair value . - : _ 3,833 3,902
" Other loans ' o S - o 257 195

Total financial assets o S - L 4,090 - 4,007

Collateral c C ’ ’ ~

At 31 December 2020, the Company had pledged £396m (2019: £450m) of financial assets as collateral for liabilities or contingent liabilities,
consisting of government debt securities of £166m (2019: £426m), non-government debt securities: of £192m (2019: £nil) and cash at bank and in
hand of £38m (2019: £24m). . The debt securities pledged of £358m (2019: £426m) are included in the balance sheet as available for sale debt
securities and other fixed income 'securities and the Company's right to recover the cash pledged of £38m (2019: £24m) is included in other debtors -
of.. The terms and conditions of the collateral pledged are market standard in relatron to letter of credlt facilities, derivative transactions and
repurchase agreements.

At 31 December 2020, the'Company had accepted £466m (2019: £323m) in collateral, consisting of government debt securities of £464m (2019:
£302m), which the Company is permitted to sell or repledge in the event of default by the owner, and cash at bank and in hand of £2m (2019:
£21m). The obligation to repay the cash is included in the balance sheet in other creditors and the corresponding cash received is recognised as an
asset. The fair value of the collateral accepted is £466m (2019: £323m). The terms and conditions of the collateral held are market standard The * -
assets held as collateral are readily convemble |nto cash. .

IFRS 9 'Fmanclal Instruments’

The Company qualifies for temporary exemiption from applying IFRS 9 ‘Flnancual Instruments’ on the grounds that it has not prevnously applied any
version of IFRS 9 and ats activities are predomlnantly connected with insurance.

The fair value at 31 December 2020 and change during the year of debt securities that are held to collect cash flows on specified dates that are

solely for payment of principal and interest (SPPI) and are not held for trading as defined under IFRS 9, nor are managed or evaluated on a fair
value basis, is set out below, together with the same information for all other financial assets

As at 31 December 2020

SPPI Other . )

-financial financial Total

assets assets
: - ) £m £m £m
Shares and other variable yield sécurities and units in unit trusts . S S 409 409
Debt securities and other fixed income securiies - ' o B ' 3,204 . 220 3,424
Other loans . : . : 257 - 257
Derivative financial assets L Co ) ‘ : - .97 97
Fair value at 31 December 2020 ) ' S 3,461 726 4,187

" As at 31 December 2019 - -

: : SPPI Other

financial financial Total
assets assets .

. ' £m tm £m
Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trUsts A ' . ' . . - 373 373
'Debt securities and other fixed income securities ‘ . . . 3,340 189 - -3,529
Otherloans - . R o . 195 ... 195
Derivative financial assets o , o ‘ A - 98 98

Fair value at 31 December 2019 , _ : o -353 - 660 . = 4,195

The fair value gains/losses of SPPI financial assets and other financial assets during the year are £64m gains (2019 £66m galns) and £13m Iosses
(2019: £10m losses) respectlvely

When IFRS 9 is adopted by the Company (currentty expected to be 2023) an expected credit loss provision will be recognised replacing the
incuned credil loss provision under I1AS 39, (lie ||||pacl uf wlucln WI|| be detennined by the financlal instruments lield al that tlme

. .‘Informatlon on credit ratings relatrng to SPPI debt securities and other loans can be found in note 5.

\
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Derivatives

The following table presents the fair value and notional amount of derivatives by term to matl_]rity and nature of risk.

Notional amount

As at 31 December 2020 Fair Value
Less than 1-5 More than
1 year Years 5Years  Total Asset Liability
gm  tm £m £m £m £m
" Currency risk - ' ' 14719 1 I 1,480 17 5
Inflation risk ' - 60 . S 120 . 180 78 81
Cross currency interest swaps - : 38 A 54 85. 177 2 -~ 32
‘ ) ' ' 97 118
As at 31 December 2019 ) Notional amount Fair Value
. Less than 1 1-5  Morethan 5 ' :
year Years Years Total .- Asset Liability
_ £m £m- . £m- ' £m £m £m
Currency risk o S - 1,691 . 1 Co- 1,692 - a0 ) 6
Inflation risk : : S 60 120 - 180 58 62
Cross-currency interest swaps o - ' 49 h 108 157 - 24
: ’ 98 92

The Company is party to a series of swap contracts which collectively provide limited cover against a sharp increase in long term inflation. In. total
the swap contracts provide inflation cover over a nominal value of £180m (2019: £180m) and are split over different contract terms. :

At 31 December. 2020 the Compa'ny holds cu}rency forward contracts and foreign exchange options to reduce structural foreign exchange risk. -

The Company enters into derivative transactions under International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master netting arrangements. In general, -
.under such agreements the amounts owned by each counterparty on a single day in respect of all transactions outstanding in the same currency are
‘aggregated into a single net amount that is payable by one counterparty to the other. In certain circumstances, such as a credit defautt, all outstanding
transactions under the agreement are terminated, the termmatlon value is assessed and only a snngle net amount is payable in settlement of all transactions.

The ISDA agreements do not meet the- criteria for offsetting in the balance sheet. This is because the Company does not have any currently legally
enforceable right to offset recognised amounts, because the nght to offset is erforceable only on the occurrence of future events. The tables below provide

information on the impact of the netting arrangements.

" Amounts subject to enforceable nettingv arrangements

‘ Net

Effect of offsetting in statement of o i
. financial position Related items not offset - amount
" Amounts not  reported
. Net . - . - : subject to in
: Gross Amounts - amounts Financial Financial - Net netting balance
As at 31 December 2020 amounts offset reported _ instruments  collateral amount arrangements sheet
' ‘ _£m £m £m £m _Efm £m £m £m
Denvatlve financial assets . 94 . 94 : (86) (2) 6 3 97
Total assets 94 - 94 - - 86) . (2 - 6 3 97
Derivative financial - : ' . .o o :
liabilities 17 - 117 (86) . (31) - 1 118
Total liabilities R & ¥ 4 ) - » 117 (86) - (31) - 1 118
Amounts subject to-enforceable netting arrangements
Effect of offsetting in statement of . »
financial position . Related items not offset o Net
-Amounts not amount
Net : ) subject to reported
. . Gross  -Amounts amounts Financial Financial Net netting in balance
As at 31 December 2019 - amounts - offset reported instruments collateral amount  arrangements - sheet
B - ) £m £m £m ' £m . _fm £m £m - £m
Derivative financial.assets 95 - 95 (71) 21y 3 3 .98
Total assets . 95 : - - 95 s (21) - 3 3 98
Derivative financial - : : N .
._liabilities 89 - - 89 - (71) (18 - 92
92

Total liabilities 89 - 89 1) (18) T -
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At 31 December 2020, the Company had not taken out any borrowings from credit institutions under repurchase agreements (2019 £45m). Where
repurchase agreements are taken out, the Company continues to recognise debt securities in the balance sheet as the Company remains exposed
to the risks and rewards of ownership. Repurchase arrangements are settled * dellvery versus principal” and so are disclosed net of associated debt
securities.

23. Fair Value measurement

" Fair value is used to value a number of assets witnin the balance sheet and represents their market value at the reporting date.
Cash at bank and in hand loans and receivables 4

" For cash, loans and receivables, commercial paper, other assets, liabilities and accruals, their carrylng amounts are considered to be as
approxrmate fair values.

Investment property and company occupied property

Investment properties are valued, at least annually, at their highest and best use. Company occupied properties are valued annually on a vacant
possession basis using third party valuers

The fair value of property has been determlned by external independent valuers having appropriate recognised- professronat qualifications and
recent expenence in the location and category of the property being valued.

/ B
The valuations of investment properties and company occupied property (classified as land and buildings) are based on the comparative method of
valuation with reference.to sales of other vacant buildings. Fair value is then determined based on the locational qualities and physical building
characteristics (principally condition, size, specrf ication and layout) together with factoring in the occupatlonal lease terms and tenant covenant
strength as appropnate

' _Derivative financial instruments

Derivative fi nanCIaI instruments are financial contracts whose fair value is determlned on a market basrs by reference to underlying interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equity or commodlty instrument or indices.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value for all assets and liabilities which are either measured or disclosed is determined based on available information and categorised
according to a three-level fair value hierarchy as detailed below: .

« Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from data other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

« Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that mclude significant inputs for the asset or Ilablllty that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). .

A financial instrument is regarded as.quoted in an active market (Ievel 1) if quoted prices for that financial instrument are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, prlcrng servrce or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. :

For level 1 and level 2 investments, the Company uses prices received from external providers who calculate these prices from quotes available at
the reporting date for the particular investment being valued. For investments that are actively traded the Company determines whether the prices
meet the criteria for classification as a level 1 valuation. The price provided is classified as a level 1 valuation when it represents the price at which
the investment traded at the reporting date taking into account the frequency and volume of trading of the individual investment together with.the
spread of prices that are quoted at the reporting date for such trades. Typically investments in frequently traded government debt would meet the
criteria for classification in the level 1 category. Where the pnces provrded do not meet the criteria for classification in the Ievel 1 category, the
prices are classified in the leve! 2 category.

In certain circumstances, the Company does not receive pricing information fifom an external. provider -for its financial investments. In.such
circumstances the Company calculates fair value which may be based on input parameters that are not based on observable market data.
Unobservable inputs are based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactlons for the same
instrument nor based on available market data. In these cases, judgement is required to establish fair values.

The principal assets classified as Level 3, and the valuation techniques applied to them, are described below.
Investment property

" Investment property valuations are carried out in accordance with the latest edition of the Valuation Standards published by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS), and are undertaken by independent RICS registered valuers. Valuations are based on the comparative method with
reference to sales of other comparable buildings and. take into account the nature, location and condition of the specific ‘property together with
factoring in the occupational lease terms and tenant covenant strength as appropriate. The valuations also include an income approach using
discounted future cash flows, which uses unobservable inputs, such as discount rates, rental values, rental growth rates, vacancy rates and void or
-rent free periods expected after the end of each lease. The valuations at 31 December 2020 reflect equivalent yield ranges between 4.15% (2019:
4.25%) and.15.41% (2019: 12.30%).
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Private fund stru'ctures

Loan funds are pnncrpally valued at the proportion of the Company's holding of the Net Asset Value (NAV) reported by the rnvestment vehicle.
Several prucedues are employed lo assess the reasonableness of lhe NAV 1epuiled by the fund, including obtaining and reviewing periodic and
audited financial statements and estimating fair value based on a discounted cash flow model that adds spreads for.credit and illiquidity to a risk-
free discount rate. Discount rates employed in the model at 31 December 2020 range from 0.2% (2019: 0.6%) to 4.0% (2019: 6.0%). If necessary
the Company will adjust the fund's reported NAV to the discounted cash flow valuation where this more approprlately represents the fair value of its
interest in the investment. .

Given the current ongoing economic uncertainty, the asset valuationtechniques described above that rely on unobservable inputs are less certain,
and additional sensitivity has been-applied to the valuation of level 3 assets in this note on page 55.

Covid-19 has impacted financial markets with price volatility and changes in trading: volumes. A review of the assets’ fair value and their
classification on the fair value hierarchy has been performed. There were no transfers into or out of fair value hierarchies as a result of this review.

The following table provides an analysis of financial inst‘mments that are measured subéequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. The table does not include financial assets and liabilities not measured at
: farr value if the carryrng value is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair value hrerarchy

As at 31 December 2020 o ) ' © Level1 Level 2 ~ Level 3 Total
' Co o . ) . : . : "£m £m “fm - €m
investment properties — land and buildings - *© _ ' B - - 281 281

Company occupied property- fand and buildings ' - . . : - - 19 19

Available for sale financial assets: . : .
"Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts 299 1 -fo9 - 409

Debt securities and other fixed income securities : E ) . 879 2,298 - . 247 3,424

. . o o 1,478 - 2,299 © 356 3,833
Dérivative assets at farr value through the profit and loss account ’ : . : . 97 i - 97 .

Total assets measured at fair value : o ' _ ' 1,178 2,396 656 4,230

Derivative liabilities at fair value through the prof it and loss account L p - : 118 . ' - . 118

Total derrvatrves measured at fair value . . - t. 118 . ’ 118

Fair value hierarchy
re-presented’

" As at'31 December 2019 - - L .. Levelt - Level2 - Level3 Total
. ,' . : : £m, £m £m . £Em
Investment properties — land and buildings o ) L. o 300 300

- Company occupied property — land and buildings - - - - 19 . 19

_ Available for sale financial assets:.

Shares and other variable yield securities and unrts in unit trusts ) ' _ ) 251 : - : 122 373
.Debt securities and other fixed income securrtres . . . : 1,225 2,060 244 3,529
A , 1,476 2060 - 366 3,902

Derivative assets at fair value through the profit and Ioss account : - - .08 - 08
Total assets measured at fair value - K 1476 2,158 685 4,319
Derivative liabilities at fair value through the,proﬂt and loss account - 92 ' - 92
Total derivatives measured at fair value ’ : - - - 92

o Following a reassessment of the evidence of activity in bond markets required to meet the criteria for classifi cation in the level 1 category, the
2019 fair value hierarchy has been re-presented to reclassify certain government debt securities from level 2 to Ievel 1 with an |mpact of an mcrease
to level 1 of £175m and an decrease to level 2 of the same amount. . .

A reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of ﬁnancial assets is shown in the table below.
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Shares and - )
other variable ~ ‘Debt
~ yield ' securities
securities and and other .
_units in unit fixed income Land and
trusts securities buildings Total
. . Em £m ' £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2019 : . : ’ . ) 184 387 .. 328 899
Total gains or losses recognisedin: ' , .
Profit and loss account . ‘ 3 2 oy (6)
Other comprehensi\re income : ' o (D) (11) 1 o (17)
Purchases ' . N 10 .22 10 - - 42
. Disposals . : N - (68) . (156) (9) (233)
Balance at 31 December 2019 ) . 122 , T 244 319 685
Total gains or losses recognised in: _ ' ]
Profit and loss account ; 2 - 2) B ) B (10)
Other comprehensive income C ) (5) - - (5)
Purchases : ‘ ' © 10 17 19 146
‘Disposals . o ’ ) (16) (112) (32) (160) -
Balance at 31 December 2020 . ) ' 109 247 300 656

The following table shows the level 3 available for sale financial assets, investment properties and company occupied probeny carried at fair value |
as at the balance sheet date, the main assumptions used in the valuation of these instruments and reasonably possible decreases in fair value
based on reasonably possible alternatlve assumptions. -

' Reasonably possible alternative assumptions

- 2020 2019 restated -

Current fair  Decrease in Current fair  Decrease in

) . . value - fair value value fair value

Available for sale financial assets and property . Main assumptions £m . £m £m £m
Corhpany occupied property - land and buildings' - " Property valuation . 19 . 2 19 (1) .
Investment properties — land and buildings'. . Cash flows; discount rate 281 - (25) : 300 - (13).

Leve! 3 available for sale financial assets: ) . _

Equity securities? . . Cash flows; discount rate B - 109 : 1) . 122 1

Debt securities? : - _ Cash flows; discount rate - 247 . {4) ' 244 (2)

Total . : - ] ) - 656 "~ {32) 685 (17)

' The Company's property portfolio (including the company occupied property) is focated in the UK. Reasonably possible alternative valuations have
been determined using an increase of 50bps in the discount rate used in the valuation. This increase has been considered in light of the current
“level of uncertainty and a change -of 50bps is considered a reasonably possible scenario. The 31 December 2019 sensitivity has been restated
using a change of 25bps, which is considered a reasonably possible scenario at the time. The 2019 serisrtrvrty reported in the 2019 Annual Report
and Accounts used a change of 100bps, which, with hindsight, was more severe than market conditions at that time warranted.
2 The Company’s investment in financial assets classified at level 3 in the hierarchy are primarily investments in various private fund structures
investing in debt instruments where the valuation includes estimates of the credit spreads on the underlying holdings. The estimates of the credit -
spread are based upon market observable credit spreads for what are considered to be assets with similar credit risk. Reasonably possible -
alternative valuations have been determined-using an increase of 50bps .in the credit spread used in thé valuation. This increase -has been
considered in light of the current level of uncertainty and a change of 50bps is considered a reasonably possible scenario. The 31 December 2019
sensitivity has been restated using a change of 25bps, which is considered a reasonably possible scenario at the time. The 2019 sensitivity
reported in the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts used a change of 100bps which, with hindsight, was more severe than market conditions at that
time warranted. .

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the period. There are no f nancial liabilities measured at fair value using LeveI 3 falr value
measurements. -
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24. Interests in structured entities (

" A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity,
such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contr’actual arrangements.

The Company does not securitise any of its investments in fi nancnal instruments and does fot create, promote or administer structured entltles on -
behalf of third pany -investors. The Company therefore considers that it does not act as a sponsor for any structured entity.

However, the Company invests in entities created by and managed by external specuallst mvestment managers where investments are pooled
within an investment vehicle to provide a diversified exposure to particular classes of underlylng investments. The use of these products allows the
Company to broaden the dwersuf cation of its investment portfolio in a cost-efficient manner. '

The Company is exposed to the risks of the underlying investment of the investment vehicles. The investment return from the structured entities is
expected to reflect the returns from the underlying mvestments of the entlty .

In addition, the Company has commitments for future undrawn subscnpuons limited to the amounts set out in the subscription agreements. The
Company has no obligations to’ provide any other additional funding or financial support to these entities. The Company has determined that its
maximum exposure to structured entities is the sum of the carrying value and the undrawn commitments. These exposures at 31 December 2020
and 2019 are summarised in the tables below

At 31 December 2020 .
' ' Nature of the underlymg investments of the . Carrying - Undrawn

Class-of investments ' vehicle . ) value commitments Exposure
- ‘ ' : £m £m -~ £m
o Mainlyoonsists of domestic mortgage backed 50 B . 60
Mortgage backed securities securities . )
Collateralised debt obligations Structured debt security backed by bonds 228 17 . 242
Cash money market funds ~Short term cash deposits 4 299 -. -299
Other B . Mainly consist of property funds . 142 - .17 - 159
s . 726 ] 34 ) 760
. The line items in the balance sheet in which the items above are included are.as follows:
. : £m -
Investments - financial assets - equity securities o ‘ 407
" Investments - financial assets - debt securities » : : o . 319
' ' : ' ' ' : - 726
At 31 December 2019 ) _ )
) : Nature of the underlying investments of the ' ACarrying ) Undrawn .
Class of investments © vehicle - . value commitments - Exposure
' : L £m - fm £m
: - e 4 Mainly consists of commercial mortgage backed . 58 ) 58 -
“Mortgage backed securities securities : . )
Collateralised debt obligations - - Structured debt security backed by bonds Ce2f2 S0 262
Cash money market funds - Short term cash deposits : 251 - 251,
Other ____Mainly consist of property funds : - 165 - 25 190
o : 686 » 75, 761
The line items in the balance sheet in which the items above are included are as follows:
o ' ' " £m
Investments - financial assets - equity securities o ' 372
Investments - financial assets - debt securities - . . ’ : : - 314
: C 686
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25. Rernsurers share of provision. for unearned premiums

The foIIowrng changes have occurred in the rernsurers share of provision for unearned premlums dunng the year .
) : 2020 . 2019

£m . £m
Reinsurers’ share of provrsrons for uneamned premrums at 1 January . ' .' o A 679 694
" Premiums ceded to reinsurers : . o ) . 840 804
Reinsurers’ share of portfolio transfers : . . ‘ . 1 ) (52)
L  Outward reinsurance premiums - : o . -7 " 752
Insurer's share of premiums earned ' 4 . S o ) - . : - (860) (765)
Change in provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share ’ . ' - ) ) " (19) " (13)
Exchange adjustment . ) ; - o ) : - - =~ (2
Reinsurers’ share qf provision for unearned premiums at 31 December - ) : 660 679
26. Reinsurers’ share of. prowswn for outstanding clalms
The foIIowrng changes have occurred in the reinsurers’ share of provrsron for outstanding claims durrng the year:
2020 2019
: Em- £m
Reinsurers’ share of provrsrons for losses and loss adjustmient expenses at1 January - . N '1,192 - 1,828
Total reinsurance recoveries received .o ) . o ’ : 1 - (464) - (5086)
Reinsurers’ share of portfolio transfers R P o I ' o : 2 (172) ;
‘Reinsurers' share of claims paid . , S = o L (462) (678)
7 .Reinsurers’ share of total claims incurred o . o ' . R ___ 521 - 591
Change in the provision for claims, reinsurers’ share . S . - 59 ,‘(87)
Disposal of UK Legacy . : ' : : ‘ - (551)

. Unwind of discount .~ ° ‘ AR o 4 : 4 ' 13
Exchange adjustment S ' o 4 o ) (5) . a1 -
Reinsurers’ share of provisions for losses and loss adjustment expenses at'31 December o 1,250 1,192
27. Current Tax
Thé current tax position of the Company as at 31 December is as follows:

. ’ Co : Asset : Liability
2020 2019 2020 2019
, , £m . fm £m £m
To be settled within 12 months B L S 6 2 .
To be settled after 12 months - . ' ' o, . - - 1. 1
Net current tax posrtron at 31 December . : g . ] 1 16 3 : 1
28. Deferred Tax -
, Deferred tax for the current year |s based on a rate of 19.0% (2019: 17 0%)
“The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recogmsed by the Company and their movements
dunng the year: . L
2020 - 2019 -
Lo . £m ) £m.
Net unrealised gains on investments - : . . : ) {41) (26)
Tax losses and unused tax credits ' : ' ' o : 59 61
Accrued costs deductible when settled o o - : o 73 65
Retirement benefit obligations ) . . o 1 1
Provisions and other temporary differences o ] Co ' 60 .- 52
Net deferred tax asset at 31 December : 'A . _' ) . ] o 152 153

Provisions and other temporary differences arise predominately in respect of capital expenditure; £58m (2019: £53m)."
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2020 2019
‘ _ £m £m
Net deferred tax position at 1 January - - C . ’ ' 153 164
Amounts charged — Profit and.loss account . ’ ‘ (13) 6)

~ Amounts charged - Other comprehensive income i ' k) - (5)

. Effect of change in tax rates - Profit and loss account - . i } 17 -
Deferred tax asset at 31 December ' ‘. ‘ ) . 152 - 153
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following unrecognised-tax assets and liabilities:

2020 - .. 2019
Gross antount; Tax effect Gross amount Tax effect
- : £m £m fm £m
Trading tax losses C 1,068 - 203 930 158
Capital tax losses . ~ ' ] 1,236 234 . 1,236 210
Deductible temporary differences . o , ' 151 ° 29 157 - 27
Unrecognised tax assets at 31 December : S ' 2455 466 2,323 395

At the end of the reperting period, the Company has unused tax losses of £2,617m (2019: £2,523m). The Company's unused tax losses are made
up of ‘capital' losses of £1,236m (2019: £1,236m) and other ‘income’ losses of £1,381m (2019: £1,287m). A deferred tax asset of £69m (2019:
£61m) has been recognised in respect of ‘income’ losses at 31 December 2020. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses-
of £2,304m (2019: £2,167m) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. It is unlikely-that a deferred tax asset will ever be recognised in
respect of the £1,236m (2019: £1,236m) capital losses due to UK exemptions. None of the income tax losses are time-barred (2019: none). Other -
tax losses (including capital tax.losses and unused credits) may be carried forward indefinitely. .

Net deferred tax assets of £152m (2019: £153m), that relate to tax jurisdictions in which the Company' has-suffered a Ioss in either the current or
preceding period, have been recognised on the basis that future taxable profits will be available against which these can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised on the basis that management consider it probable that future taxable profits wrl| be available against
which these deferred tax assets can be utilised. Key assumptions in the forecast are subject to sensitivity testing which, together with additional
modelling and analysis, support management's judgement that the carrying value of deferred tax assets continues to be supportable.

The evidence for the future taxable profits is a seven-year forecast based on the three year operational plans prepared by the relevant businesses
and a further four years of extrapolation, which are subject to internal review and challenge, including by the Board. The four years of extrapolation .
assumes UK premium growth of 5% per annum and overseas premium growth of 3% to 5% where relevant to UK profit prolectrons The forecasts

: mclude the impact of Covid-19 on future taxable prof its and a contingency allowance of £25m per annum.

The value of the: deferred tax asset is sensrtrve to assumptions in respect of forecast profits. The |mpact ‘of downward movements in key
assumptrons on the value of the deferred tax asset is summarised below: . .

2020 - 2019

£m’ £m
1% increase in combined operating ratio across all 7 years T LU (15)
1 year reduction in the forecast modelling period o A v (18) (23)
50 basis points decrease in bond yields . : o (6) Y
1% decrease in annual premium growth : _ L . - (1) Q)]

The relationship between the deferred tax asset and these sensitivities is not always linear. Therefore, the cumulative impact on the deferred tax
asset of combined sensitivities or longer extrapolatrons based on the above numbers will be indicative only.

In addition to the impact on the UK deferred tax asset of downwards movements in the key assumptions set out above, further specific downside
scenarios have been modelled at 31 December 2020: ’

. Mrld and severe UK downside scenarios each reflecting a reduction in premiums for each business due to wider economic uncertainty; an
earlier implementation of the FCA thematic review on pricing than the current assumption; an increase in bad debts following the removal
of government financial support; some worsening of other key assumptions such as weather and large losses; iower prior year
development and higher claims inflation due to Brexit. These downside scenarios also include a proportion of the Canada, Ireland and,
Europe downside scenario outcomes (due to intra-group reinsurance transactions).

» The impact of a significant single catastrophe event in the UK on forecast future profits (after the impact of existing reinsurance

" arrangements).

» Theimpact of using a five year forecast period for modelling future UK profits rather than seven.

* . A downside scenario for “uncommitted savings” which excludes the benef t of cost savings in the operatlonal plan where they are not fully
commrtted including any costs of achieving those savings. .

The-impact of these scenarios on forecast UK profits and the deferred tax asset is summarised below:
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Profits DTA

A - : _ . ~ £m £m

Mild downside scenario ) ) ' T ’ (106) (10)
Severe downside scenario . . X L ' (172) ~ {18)
Significant catastrophe event : ‘ . _ _ (19) @
2 year reduction in the forecast period A - S (315) (36)
Uncommitted savings - o o S . - S (3)

The proposed takeover of the RSA Group poses a material risk to the UK deferred tax asset as there is incréased uncertainty in the profit forecasts,
particularly in relation to certain intra-group transactions which form a material part of the UK forecast profits. It is not appropriate to take the
transaction into account for DTA purposes at 31 December 2020 as there is no certainty over what actions or decisions the purchaser may take if
the acquisition completes. Any impact of the acquisition-on the UK deferred tax asset will be reflected once the transaction is complete and more
detailed information is available. .

The current tax and deferred income tax credited/(charged) to each compénent of other comprehensive income is as follows:

- Current Tax Deferred Tax Total
2020 2019 - 2020 2019 2020 2019
. : - £m £m £m £m - £m £m
. Unrealised gains/(losses) on other financial instruments classified as available for sale -3 12 (2) 12 1
* Remeasurement of net defined benefit pension liability - : : . - (4D @) (a7 3)
Total credit/(charge) to other comprehensive income o . - ‘3 (5) (5) (5 .2 '
29, Tangible assets .
. Téngible assels is split between tangible assets owned and righi-df—use.assets as follows: )
: 2020 - 2019
) ] £m £m
Tangible assets owned - ) ' S 34 .25
Right-of-use assets . . ' - 10
Total tangible assets ” - ‘ : o 34 35

Tangible assets owned
: Fixtures and

fittings,
Equipment .
. ) v and Other . Total . .
Cost o ' ‘ : £m ' £€m
At 1 January 2020 : ' ‘ : . 5 75
Additions : _ ' S ‘ : 2 . 20
Disposals , . : ' (6) (6)
At 31 December 2020 ~ - k o . ~ 89 89
_Depreciation’ A _ : _ . o
" At 1January 2020 . : : : . . : , 50 50
Depreciation on disposals : : ' ' ' 3) (3)
" Charge for the year , A 4 4
At 31 December 2020 : 51 51
Impairment ‘ .
At 1 January 2020 - . o . .
Charge for the year : . - L {4) (4)
At 31 December 2020 . ' . ‘ (4) 4)
Net carrying amount ) ] o a .
At 31 December 2020 o : , » ' 34 34
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Fixiures, and

_ fittings,

Equipment
and Other Total
Cost ’ ‘ ' ' E £m £m
At 1 January 2019 ' o S , B 75
Additions ’ ‘ . . . o . ) Ty -
_ Disposals ' . : : ' - ' 1) 0
At 31 December 2019 : ‘ . , ' » - 75 75

Depreciation ) , .

At 1January 2019~ _ , 4 o 46 46
~ Charge for the year A : o - o ) 4 4
At 31 December 2019 - : ' o I , S - 50 50
Net carrying-amount o . ' . ' ' '
At 31 December 2019 ' : . . . . 25 . 25

Depreciation expense of £4m (2019:»;€4m) has been charged to administrative expenses within the profit and loss account.

Impairments of £4m (2019: £nil) have been charged to administrative expenses within the profit and loss aceount relating to tangible assets not
expected to be utilised further due to the exiting of leased office space. Further information on the impairment assessment can be found in note 20.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of—use assets relate to other eduipment. .
’ © 2020 -2019

‘ , £m " Fm .
Balance at 1 January L - ' ‘ o - 10 13
Depreciation charge for the year . N : ‘ o : @ )|
. Remeasurements . : » A o ()] : -
Balance at 31 December. o , ' . ‘ . - 10
30. Deferred Acquisition Costs
2020 2019'
. ‘ ] £m ~ £m
Balance at 1 January ' : C : ' . : 429 " 439
Acquisition eoets during the year R N - ,‘ ) ’ 787 - 839
Amortisation charge during the year ‘ : . ' S . . . . (811) (827
" Changes in deferred acquisition costs _ ) ‘ ' (29) 12
Portfolio transfers » . - (19)
Exchange adjustment o : - 2 (3)°
Balance at 31 December ' ' ' o S a0 429

12019 comparatlves for acqunsmon costs dunng the year (£839m) and amortisation charge during the year (£(827)m) have been re-| presented
There is no net |mpact on changes in deferred acquisition costs (£12m) as a result of this re- presentahon

31. Share Caprtal
' 2020 . ~ 2019
£m £m

Allotted, issued and fully pald : ) -
4,859,811,537 ordinary A shares at 25p each (2019 4,859,811,537 ordmary A shares at 25p each) ' ) 1215 1,215
1 ordinary B share at US$1 each (2019: 1 ordinary B share at US$1 each) : . ' - - -

»

The Company has two classes of shares, ordinary Class A shares of 25p each and ordinary Class B share of US$1. Each ordinary Class A share
carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company, the right to receive dividend payments in accordance with the number of shares
held and the right to participate in any distribution of capital of the Company including on a winding-up. Each ordinary Class B share carries no
voting rights and no right to a dividend, but carries the right on winding-up of the Company to a distribution in priority to the Class A shares
equivalent to the US$/E exchange rate gain as set out in the Articles of Association, payable in Pounds Sterling or US Dollars.
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32. Total Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign currency : . "Total
Revaluation translation ° Profit and loss shareholders’
: reserve ‘reserve account . funds
Year ended 31 December.2020 “Em ~ Em £m £m
Foreign exchange losses, net of tax o ' ) - 1
Fair value gains, net of tax 735 ' .- - . 735
Pension — remeasurement of net defi ned benefit liability, net of tax - - “{34) (34)
Movement in property revaluation; het of tax - - - -
Total other comprehensive expense for the year 7§5 . 1) (34) " 700
. Foreign 'currency . Total

Revaluation translation Profit and loss shareholders’
reserves reserve account funds
Year ended 31 December 2019 . £m ~ £m Em " £m

' Foreign exchange gains, net of tax - ) - ()

- Fair value losses, net of tax ] (200) o - - (200)
Pension - remeasurement of net defined benefit liability, net of tak - - . (85) (85)
Movement in property revaluation, net of tax 1 S - - 1
Total other comprehensive inc_cme for the year (199) 1) ' (85) (285) ‘
33. Provision for-unearned premiums

2020 2019 °
. __Em £m
Provnsrons for unearned premiums at 1 January 2,124 2,199
Premiums written 3,555 3,907 | -
Portfolio transfers 5 (136)
Gross premiums written 3,560 ‘ 3,771
Premiums _earned " (3,561) (3,829)
Changes in provision for unearned premiurns () (68)
Exchange adjustment - 6 (17)

* Provision for unearned premiums at 31 December . 2,129 2,124

34. Claims Outstanding
'_ The following changes have occurred in the technical provisions - claims outstanding:

o : : 2020 2019

) £m £m
Provisions for losses and loss adjustment expenses >at 1 January 4,327 5,165
Total claims payments made in the year net of salvage and other recovenes (2,189) 4 (2,500)
Gross portfolio transfers 12 (445)
Claims paid ) (2,177) {2,945)
Gross claims incurred and loss adjustment expenses 2,251 ' 2,701
Change in the provision for claims - 74 (244)
Disposal of UK Legacy- . (551)
Unwind of discount. 10 19
Exchange adjustment ) 21 (62)
Provrslons for losses and |oss adjustment expenses at 31 December 4,432 4,327

Claims outstandmg include claims on-certain classes of business which have been dlscounted The total value of outstandmg claims provisions less .
related reinsurance recoveries before discounting amounted to £3, 438m (2019 £3,370m). The total value of gross outstandlng claims provisions

before discounting amounted to £4,932m (2019: £4,775m).
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Discount assumptions

Claims on certain classes of business have been discounted as follows:

Average period to settlement in

Discount rate 3 years
) . . 2020 2019 T 2020 2019
_Category - - 'r % %
Asbestos and environmental . o 400 '4.00 12 12
Periodic paym'ent orders _ 4.00 4.00 ] . 19 19

In determining the average number of years to ultlmate claims settlement, estimates have been made based on the underlylng claims settlement
patterns.

* As at 31 December 2020, the value of the discount on net outstanding claims reserves is £13m (2019: £16m) excludrng annuities and periodic
payment orders. All other factors remaining constant, a decrease of 1% in the discount rates would . reduce the value of the discount by
approximately £5m (2019: £6m). . .

As’at 31 December 2020, the value of the discount on UK annuities is £246m (2019: £226m) A decrease of 1% in the real discount rate would
reduce the value of-the discount by approximately £30m (2019: £30m). The sensitivity calculatron has taken into consrderatron the undiscounted
reserves for each class of business and the respectrve average settlement penod ' .

Sensitivities
Sensitivities in the table below show the impact on the net outstanding claims reserves of -changes to key assumptions in relation to reserving risk

and underwriting and claims risk:. Whilst the range on the sensitivities was wider in the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts, the new set of metncs
" . shown below are more tailored to the increased uncertainties and more aligned to the key risks as described in note 5. .

. 2020 2019
Impact on net outstandmg clarms reserves . : £m - fm
Current year claims loss ratios frequency or seventy assumptrons +5% - . . 85-95 - 100 - 110
inflation being 1% higher than expected for the next 2 years : s . 45 - 55 . A 45 - 55

Net outstanding claims reserves for Bl losses are not expected to bé’ sensitive to changes in assumptions to the estimates underlying the gross
claims reserves, including the number of eligible claimants and Iegal interpretations of eligibility, provided reinsurance contracts respond as
expected .

Claims development tables

The tables below present changes in the historical provisions for losses and loss adjustment expenses that were established in 2010 and-the
provisions for losses and loss adjustmerit expenses arising in each subsequent accident year.: The tables are presented at current year average -
exchange rates on an undiscounted basrs and have been adjusted for operatrons that have been disposed of.

The top tnangle of the tables presents the estimated provrsrons for ultimate incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses for each accrdent year as
at the end of each reportlng period.

The lower triangle- of the tables presents the amounts pard agamst those provisions in each subsequent accounting penod

The estimated provisions for ultimate incurred losses change as more |nformat|on becomes known about the actual losses for. which the initial
provisions were set up and as the rates of exchange change
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2010 and . o : ' : : : :
prior 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 - 2016 - 2017 2018 2019. 2020 . Total
. ‘£m fm fm fm £m  £m £m  Em €m - €m £m - £m
Estimate of cumulative claims . ' L ‘ , o
- Atend of accident year - 3545 1,001 1,156 1,112 1127 1,382 1,266 1555 1433 1,645 1,320 -
One year later’ . 3594 1,036 1,123 1,188 1,517 1316. 1,279 1,454 1472 1616
Two years later . o .3537 1,022 1,147 1,163 1,477 1,260 1,246 1455 1475
Three years later . T 3536 1,013 1,134 1,128 1454 1,196 - 1,247 1,471
Four years later ' 3519 991 1,112 1,432 1401 1202 1245 '
Five years later ’ 3,410 981 1,123 1,110 1,381 1,205
. Six years later . . 3,528 986 1,110 1,104 1,387
. Seven years later 3470 975 1,107 1,088
Eight years later - ‘ ) 3,438 .978 1,105
Nine years later - 3449 - 978
Ten years'later - , 3,434’ - . o
2020 movement L 15 - 2 16 (6) (3 2 (18) 3) 29 36
Claims paid ] ‘ , ' , o
One year later o 1139 421 571 543 569 614 541 664 634 565
Two.years later - - 768 205 205 178 203 224 198 277 230
Threeyearsiater -~ . 520 . {20 102 92 137 109 117 150
Four years later © 407 -98 . 74 78 145 82 81
Five years later = . 149 41 65 54 104 77
Six years later . C 89, 25 22 3 61 :
Seven years later . 171 12 217 . 03
Eight years later , I 1, 6 10
Nine years later : 38 . 11
Ten years latér ‘ . 12 ,
Cumulative claims paid - 3,294 948 1,066 1,007 1,219 1,106 . 937 1,091 864 565
Reconciliation to the balance sheet ‘ 4 ' '
Current year provision before . : . . )
discounting ‘ 140 30 39 81 168 99 . 308 380 - 611 1051 1,320 4227
Exchange adjustment to closing ra_teé : ‘ ' ’ - (20)
- Discounting . : ‘ @2)
Annuities i . . 247
Present value recognised in the o
balance sheet 4,432
-
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Claims development table net of reinsurance

2010 and

prior 2011 2012 2013 = 2014 2015 - 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
£rn " Em Em . £m . £m £m- fm  £m  £m £m £m £m

‘Estimate of cumulative.claims - R o - _ :
At end of accident year . 2927 83 1029 1,109 958 1,056 . 920 1,207 1,052 1033 879
‘Oneyearlater . 72950 860 1,009 1,198 1296 984 . .927 1,197° 1,096 1,041
Twoyearslater - - 2,852 837 1,032 “1,176 1,293 972 913 .1175 1,103

Three years later ‘ 2,83 813 1005 1,145 1262 920" 915 1182

Four years later a . 2816 803 989 1,125 1231 . 916 917 ;

Fiveyears later . 2748 800 992 1,120 1218 919 .

Sixyears later 3011~ 795 985 1,415 1,222

Seven years later o . 2974 - 793 984 1,113 '

Eight years later ~ ~ ' :2,977 793 983

Nine years later . 2978 792

Ten years later . 2,983 :
2020 movement = . (5) 1 1 2 4 @ - (@2 ) 7 (8 (32) -
Claims paid _ , ) L ‘ . ’

‘One year later .- 1027 317 510 604 486 --531 410 558 466 < 409
" Twoyears later . . 503 153 178 162 181 110 148 204 150

Three years later . 461 117 91 93 125 90 80 122

Four years later - = © 363 89 80 70 130 76 74

Five years later : 115 44 57 52 94 . 56

Six years later B : 8 16 22 29 48

/ Seven years later L 168 15 12 21 A

Eight years later g , . 9 6 s

Nine years later - . 21 0 11 R N

Ten years later’ 42 ) ) )
" Cumulative claims paid © 2,765 - 768 959 1,031 1,064 863 712 884 - 616 409 - .
Reconciliation to the balance sheet ' o

Current year provnsmn before . . . _ . .

discounting . 218 24 24 82 158 . 56. 205 298 487 632 879 3,063
. Exchange adjustment to cIosmg rates . ) T ’ - - . ®)
. Discounting Ce ‘ o oo . ‘ : o 4 ‘ (13)
Annuities ‘ e o o o L 140.
Present value recogmsed in the : B ‘ o . B .

balance sheet E - ) : L - : 3,182
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35. Provisions for other risks

2020 2019

. £m £m

Provision for pensions and similar o‘bligetions 7 7
Reorganisation provisions 24 10

" Other provisions 26 25
Total-prbvisions,at 31 December 57 42

Of the above £15m (2019: £17m) is due to be settled outside of 12 months.

‘Royal & Sun Alllance lnsurance plc

Notes to the accounts

Reorganlsatlon provisions include £19m (2019: £9m) relatrng to redundancy costs for plans which were announced to employees before 31

December 2020 and are expected to be settied before 31 December 2021.

Other. provrsrons includes £12m (2019: £13m) held relating to dilapidations and refurbrshments the costs relatlng to which will be borne across the

period over which the leases expire, which is up to 20 years.

" The ‘ba:lance consists of a number of provisions none‘of which are individuelly significant.

See note 15 for further information regarding the pension and-post-employment benefit obligations.

Movements in other provisions

- 2019

‘2020

) £m £m

Provisions at 1 January .35 37

- Charged to profit and loss account 71 31
Utilised (53) (30)
Released (3). (3) .
Provisions at 31 December 50 35

36. Borrowings

: 2020 2019

) £m £m

' Amounts owed to credit institutions - . ' - . : 7 . 65

Borrowings during the year comprised secured loans from credit instifutions and bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand.

- 37. Other debtors

Other ‘debtors includes £331m (2019 £261m) in respect of defined benefi t pensron schemes in surplus and £1m (2019: £16m) in respect of

corporalron tax recoverable.
38. Other creditors
Other creditors includes £3m (2019: £1my) in respect of corporation tax payable.

39. Finance leases as alessor

" Prior to 2019, the Company had sub-let office floor space for which the head leases have been presented as part of the land and buildings right-of-.
use assets upon IFRS 16 transition. The sub-leases have been classified as finance leases because the sub-lease is for the wholé remaining term

of the head lease. The net investments in the sub-leases have been reported within other debtors.

Durlng 2020, the Company recognrsed mterest income on lease recelvables of £1m (2019: £1m)

" The followmg table sets out a maturity analysrs of Iease recelvables showrng the undiscounted lease- paymenls to be received after the reporllng

date.

. - Land and buildings
2020 o 2019
 £m - €m

Less than one year 2 2

One to two years 2 2

Two to three years 2 ‘2

Three to four years 2 2

Four to five years 2 2

More than.five years- , 0 . 2

Total undiscounted lease receivable o o A ' ' 10 12

Unearned finance income o - ’ ' (1) (1)

"

Net investment in the lease " ' B _ : 9
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. ~ Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Notes to 'the accounts

40. Portfolio transfers '_

- On 1 January 2019, the Company portfolio transferred its European insurance business to its subsidiary RSA Luxembourg S.A. (RSAL) under a
Part VIl legal arrangement. As a result of thrs transfer RSAL became the insurer for risks previously underwritten through the Company's European
branch network. .

Consequently, £136m of gross premiums written were cancelled representrng the value of the unearned premiums at the date of transfer and
associated £(52)m outward reinsurance premiums and £(19)m of deferred acqursrtlon costs were reimbursed by RSAL. The gross claims
outstanding reserve of £445m and the corresponding reinsurers’ share of £(172)m in respect of the transferred European business were de-
recognised and treated as settled at the date of the transfer. The overall impact on the profit and loss account was £nil. -

Further information can be found in the portfolio transfers accounting policy in note 3.

41. Capital commitments

The estimated amount of capital commitments contracted but not provided for in these financial statements is £49m (2019: £9m).

The Company's signiﬁcant capital commitments in respect of investment property, tangible assets and intangible assets are detailed as follows: -

2020 2019

. £m £m
Investment property : ' . o : 23 -
Tangible assets : ’ ‘ o ' 8 1
Intangible assets ' o _ : 18 8
Total ‘ ‘ ‘ A A : 49 9

Funding commltments to structured entities
The future commitments to structured entities are dlsclosed in note 24.
42. Contingent Liabilities

The Company receives liability claims and rnay also become involved in actual or threatened litigation, during the ordinary course of its business
operations. The Company reviews and, in the opinion of the directors, marntarns sufficient provrsrons capital and reserves in respect of such claims.

In" addition, the Company has given guarantees indemnities and warranties in relation to the dlsposals of its businesses and business interests to
external parties. These are kept under revrew and, in the oplmon of the directors, no material loss will arlse in respect ‘of these guarantees,
indemnities and warranties. .
Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc has guaranteed on behalf of RSA Insurance Group plc the following:

o the US $9m 8.95% subordinated guaranteed bonds due 15 October 2029; and

¢ the issue of £400m 5.125% fixed rate reset guaranteed subordinated notes. There is an option to repay the notes on specrf‘ c dates from -

10 October 2025.

43. Assets expected to be settled after more than 12 months

As disclosed in note 3, the Company has certain line items in the balance sheet with expected settlement periods across both less than 12 months
and more than 12 months.

Amounts expected to be settled aﬂer more than 12 months for these asset ling items are detailed as follows:

2020 - . 2019

£m £m
Shares and other variable yield secuntres and unrts in unit trusts . ' . . 110 1122
Debt securities and other fixed income securities ' ' . 2,974 - 2,796
Loans and deposits with credit institutions ' ' : .M - 178
Reinsurers' share of claims outstanding ' _ - : ' 808 931
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations — intermediaries . S : . 212 . 296
Amounts owed by Group undertakings ’ ' , - 731 834

Other debtors _ : : . o ‘ o - 319
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Royal & Sun Alllance Insurance pIc~
Notes to the accounts

44. Parent companies

The Companys immediate parent company is. Royal Insurance Holdmgs Ltd, a company ‘incorporated m England and Wales Royal Insurance
Holdmgs Ltd's registered office address is St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1XL.

The Company's ultimate parent.company and controlling party is RSA Insurance Group plc, whlch is regastered in England and Wales and is the
parent company of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements A copy of that companys accounts can be obtalned
from 17" Floor, 20 Fenchurch Street London, EC3M 3AU. . .

Royal & Sun Alllance Insurance plc'does not prepare consolidated financial statements.on the basrs that its results and those of |ts subsidiaries are
consolidated within the aforementioned financial statements.

© 45. Post Balance Sheet events
.On18 January 2021 the Group's shareholders voted to approve a takeover proposall received from a consortium of two'companies “Intact Financial

Corporation and Tryg. Further steps are required to complete the transaction and the Group, and the Company, continue to operate on an.
independent basis until the sale is complete. a
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Notes to the accounts

46. Subsidiaries

_ The Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

208-4940 No. 3 Road, Richmond BC V6X 3A5, Canada

68

Percentage

: ; ; . : Class of shares
Name and country of |acorporat|on Registered offlce addresses held Holding
Bahrain - ' ) .
- . T Impact House, Building, office no. 21, 2nd floor, Building no. 662,
Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance (Middle o246 2811, Block no. 428, Al Seef, Manama, Kingdom of Ordinary 50.00
East) BSC (c) L
) Bahrain .
Brazil _
Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc - Avenida Major Sylvio de Magalhaes Padilha, 5200, America
Escritério de Representagao no Brasil Business Park, Ed. Dallas, Conj. 31, Sala 02, Jardim Morumbi, Ordinary 100.00
Ltda. ' ~ 05693-000, City of Sao Paulo, State of Sao Paulo, Brazil
Canada . ] : . ' . :
10122033 Canada Inc. - 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Common 100.00
10122033 Canada Inc. * 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class A Preferred 100.00
10622923 Canada Limited 18 York Street Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 278, Canada Common ©100.00
10622923 Canada Limited 3 18 York Street, Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 2T8, Canada Preferred 100.00
2029974 Ontario Inc. © 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class A Common 100.00
. 2029974 Ontario Inc. © 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill'ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class B Common -100.00
2029974 Ontario-Inc. 3 - 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class C Speeial . 100.00
2029974 Ontario Inc. * 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class D Special " 100.00
2029974 Ontario Inc. 3 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class E Special 100:00
2029974 Ontario Inc. 2 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class NA'SpeciaI 100.00
2029974 Ontario Inc. 3 95 Nural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class S Special 100.00
2029974 Ontario Inc. ¢ 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class V Special 100.00 .
3342484 Canada Limited * 18 York Street, Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 2T8 Canada Common 100.00
8301140 Canada Limited 18 York Street, Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 2T8, Canada ] Commen 100.00
8301140 Canada Limited * 18 York Street, Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 2T8, Canada Preferred 100.00
Ascentus Insurance Ltd. 18.York Street Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 2T8, Canada = Common 100.00
Canadian Northern Shield Insurance 555 West Hastmgs Street; Suite 1900, Vancouver BC V6B 4N6, ' .
Company ' Canada ‘ Common 100.00
Coast Underwriters Limited * 208-4940 No. 3 Road, Richmond BC V6X 3A5, Canada Class 1 Preferred 100,00
Coast Underwriters Limited ° 208-4940 No. 3 Road, Richmond BC V6X 3A5, Canada Class 2 Preferred. - 100.00
Coast Underwriters Limited 208-4940 No. 3 Road, Rlchmond BC V6X 3A5, Canada - Class A 85.42
Coast Underwriters Limited 3 208-4940 No. 3.Road, Richmond BC V6X 3A5, Canada Class B1 100.00
Coast Underwriters Limited 208-4940 No. 3 Road, Richmond BC V6X 3A5, Canada Class B2 100.00
Coast Underwriters Limited 3 208-4940 No. 3. Road, Richmond BC V6X 3A5, Canada ] Class B3 100.00
D.L. Deeks Insurance Services Inc. 95 Mural Street, Suite 400; Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Qfanada Ordinary 100.00
Deeks Investments Inc. * 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class A Preference 100.00
Deeks Investments Inc. 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, ARichmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class B Preference 100.00
Deeks Investments Inc. 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Class C Preference = 100.00
Deeks Investments Inc. 3 95 Mural Street, Suite 400, Richmond Hill ON L4B 3G2, Canada Common 100.00
“Johnson Inc. Ec;rr:a\é\glham Building, 10 Factory Lane, St John's NL A1C 6HS, Series A Common 100.00
\
Johnson Inc. Fort William Buudmg, 10 Factory Lane, St. “John's NL A1C 6H5 Series B Common 100.00 -
) Canada 3 .
MRM Solutions Limited Class A Common 100.00
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Notes to the accounts -

Name and country of incorporation ' Registered office addresses Class of shares  Percentage

. _ . hetd " Holding

MRM Solutions Limited ? ' 208-4940 No. 3 Road, Richmond BC VGX 3A5, Canada Clese B:Common 100.00
Quebec .Assurance Company 2475 Laurier Blvd., Quebec City, Québec, G1T 1C4, Canada v Common Snares 100.00
Roins Financial Services Limited 18 York Street, Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 2T8, Canada - Common ©100.00
Roins Financial Services Limited 3 18 \I(ork Street, Suite‘ 800, Toronto O_N M5J 278, Cana"da Preference 100.00
Roins Holding Limited 18 York Stre'et, Suite 800, Toronto-ON IVtSJ 278, Canada Common 1'00.00
gg‘,’na",:‘nf un Saiance jnsurance 18 York Street, Suite 800, Toronto ON M5, 2T8, Canada ' Class A Prefered  100.00 .
ggﬁé:‘n%’f‘ Sliance Insurance ' 18 York Street, Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 2T8, Canada  Common. - 99.99
RSA Travel Insurance Inc. . 18 York Street, Suite 800, Toronto ON M5J 278, Canada ‘ Common 100.00
Shaw Sabey & Associates Ltd 2 - . 1800 - 401 West Georgia Street, Vancouver BC V68 5A1, Canada  Common Unlimited 25.00
.The' Johnson Corporat;ion ggrrt]a\(/j\glham Building, 10 Factory Lane, St. John's NL A1C 6H5 Common 100.00
'Untfund Assurance Company . Egr;a\é\gllram Building, 10 Factory Lane, St. John's NL A1C 6HS5, Commion ’ 100.00
Unifund Assurance Company” Ec;ga\é\glham Building, 10 Factory Lane, ‘St. John's NL A1C 6HS, ' Preferred v 100_06
Unifund Claims Inc. rc-':grr:a\gglliam Building, 10 Factory Lane, St. John's NL A1C 6HS, Common " 100.00
'Western Assurance Company ' ‘ 18 York Street, Suite 800, Teronto ON M5J 278, Canada Common 100.00
Denmarlt : . ! -

Codan AIS ’ ggg?nnahnlis Gammel Kongevej 60, DK-1790 Kobenhavn V, Ordinary 100.00
Codan Forsikring A/S gggrannahrllis Gammel Kongevej 60, DK-1790 Kobenhavn V, on dinary ' 1 0000
Forsikringsselskabet Privatsikring A/S gggfn":;s Gammel Kongeve] 60, DK- 1790 Kobenhavn V., Ordinary . .100.00 .
Guernsey ‘ _ v l
:rstlsat:]r::cLe nﬁgg?ratmn of the Channel Eg:{:art House Srr William Place, St. Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 Ordinary " 400.00
Ln;t:{:gce Corporation Service Company Eg\r{:art House, Sir William Place St.'Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 Ordinary © 100.00
India ' .

grt:z::e&usr:;e%ll:ance IT Solutions (India) :?]Iglzr House, Plot N0.136, Sector 44, Gurgaon Haryana 122002, Ordinary | 100.00
RSA,ActuariaI Services (India) Private First Floor, Building 10 C, Cyber City Complex DLF Phase I, Ordinary 100.00 -
Limited ' ~ Gurgaon , Haryana 122002, India' -

Ireland 4

123 Money Limited ® :T:/:nl;ouse Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road Dublln 16 : B1 Ordinary 100.90
12? Money Limited 3 IF::;\nﬂouse, Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublin 16, B2 Ordinary ' . 100.00
123 Money Limiteel 3 IF:;;\nt;oqse Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford'Road Dublin 16, Ba Ordinary C 400.00
123 Money Limited 3 :?S;:nl;;ouse Dundrum Town Centre Sandyford Road Dublin 16, B4 Ordinary' 100.00
123 Money Limited® ﬁg:n;ioqse Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublrn 16, B5 Ordinary 100,00
123 Money Limited ® :?;:nl;ouse Dundrum Town Centre Sandyford Road, Dublin 16, C Ordinary 1 00'00
123 Money Limited ﬁgg\nl(-jlouse Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublin 16 Ordinan/ 100.00
123 Money Limited ﬁ;/:ngouee, Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublin 16, ] €1 rt:}i;:r:t;m 100.00 :
Benchmark Underwriting Limited :'\:Zla\nlt-jlouse Dundrum Town Centre Sandyford Road, Dublin 16, Ordinary 100.00
EGI Holdings Limited 1 :Rr’g;\ngouse Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublin 16, Ordihary ‘ 100.00
RSA Insurance Ireland DAC * :'\;Z;\nzlouse Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublin 16, Ordinary 100.00

i
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Name and country of incorporation -

RSA Qverseas Holdings (No 1)
Unlimited Company

RSA Overseas Holdings (No 2)
Unlimited Company

RSA Reinsurance Ireland Limited *

RSA Broker Motor Insurance Limited
(Prevrously Sertus Underwrltlng Limited)

Isle of Man

Royal Insurance Service Company (Isle
of Man) Limited

RSA Isle of Man No.1 Limited *
Tower Insurance Cdmpany Limited
Luxembourg

RSA Luxembourg S.A. !

Netherlands

GDII - Global Direct Insurance
Investment V.O.F -

IDIP Direct Insurance B.V.

Intouch In'surance Group B.V.!
Royal Insurance Global B.V. '

RSA O\rerseas (Netherlands) B.V.
RéA Overseas Holdings B.V.

Oman v

Al Ahlia Insurance Company SAOG *°

Saudl Arabia

Al Alamiya for Cooperative Insurance
Company °

Sweden

CAB Group AB 2
Holmia Livforsakring AB
United Kingdom ]

Alliance Assurance Company Limited

Centrium Management Company
Limited ' 2

Eurotempest Limited '2

Hempton Court Manco Limited * 24

National Vulcan Engineering Insurance
Group Limited

Non-Destructive Testers Limited

Polaris U.K. Limited '2
Punchbow! Park Management Limited '2
4 .

R&SA Global Network Limited !

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance (Global)
Limited '

" Royal & Sun Alliance Property Services
. Limited !

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Notes to the accounts

Registered office addresses

RSA House, Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublin 16,
Ireland '

RSA House, Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublin 16
Ireland -

RSA House; Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dublin 16,
Ireland

- RSA House, Dundrum Town Centre, Sandyford Road, Dundrum ,
Dublin 16, Ireland

Jubilee Buildings, 1 Victoria Street, Douglas, IM99 1BF, Isle of Man
33-37 Athol ‘Street, Douglas, Isle of Man, IM1 1LB, Isle of Man

Jubilee Buildings, 1 Victoria Sireet, Douglas, IM99 1BF, Isle of Man

40 rue du Cure, L-1368 Luxembourg

N

Wilhelrninakeade 97-99, 3072 AP Rotterdam, Netherlands
20 Fenchurch Street, London, England, EC3M 3AU, United
Kingdom

20 Fenchurch Street, London England, EC3M 3AU, United
Kingdom

Wilhelminakeade 97-99, 3072 AP Rotterdam Netherlands
20 Fenchurch Street, London, England, EC3M 3AU, United
Kingdom

20 Fenchurch Street London, England, EC3M 3AU, United
Kingdom

PO Box 1463, PC112, Ruwi, Oman

N\

Office N0.203, 2nd Floor, Home Centre Building, Tahlia Street,
Suleymaniyah, Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Saudi Arabia

Stortorget 11, S- 702 11 Orebro, Sweden

" clo Trygg-Hansa Fdrsakrlng Filial, Fleminggatan 18, 10626

Stockholm, Sweden

" St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham West Sussex, RH12 1XL,

United Kingdom

" 5th Floor, United Kingdom House 180 Oxford Street, London,

England, W1D 1NN, United Kingdom

¢/o UCL Business Plc, The Network Building 97, Tottenham Courl
Road, London, England, W1T 4TP, United Kingdom

7 Seymour Street, London, WiH 7JW
St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 XL,

United Kingdom

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom )

New London House, 6 London Street, London England, EC3R
7LP, United Kingdom

10 Buckingham Gate, London, England, SW1E 6LA, United
Kingdom

St Mark’s Court, Chart Way, Horsham West Sussex, RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham West Sussex, RH12:1XL,
United Kingdom

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom
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Class of shares
held

Common
Common
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

‘Ordinary

Ordinary

" Partnership interest

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordrnary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

' Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

AOrdinary

Percentage
Holding

100.00 -
100.00
100.00

100.00

100.00
100.00

100.00

100.00 -

100.00
100.00
© 100.00
100.00

100.00
52.50
50.07

27.27

© 100.00

100.00
31.45
33.33

‘ 66.66"
100.00
100.00
25.38
65.09
64.00
100.00

100.00 -
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Name and country of incorporation’

Royal & Sun Alliance Reinsurance
Limited '

" Royal Insurance (U.K.) Limited *

‘Royal International Insurance Holdings
Limited '

. Royal international Insurance Holdlngs
,errted !

Roysun Ltmited
RSA Finance '- -
RSA Law Limited '

RSA Northern Ireland Insurance Limited
Sun Alliance and London Insurance
Limited '

Sun Alliance Insurance Overseas
Limited '

Sun Insurance Ofﬁce Limited

The Globe Insurance Company Limited

The London Assurance

The Marine Insurance Company -Limited
1 : .- :

The Sea Insurance Company Limited

Westgate Properties Limited !

United States,of Arnerica

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance Agency

Royal & Sun Alllance Insurance plc

Registered office addresses

- St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1XL,

United Kingdom
St Mark's Court; Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1XL,

.United Kingdom

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

'St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 XL,

United Kingdom
St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham West Sussex, RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1XL, ‘

United Kingdom
St Mark's Court, Chart Way. Horsham West Sussex RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

‘Law Society House, 90 106 Vlctorla Street Belfast Northern

Ireland, BT1 3GN

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham West Sussex, RH12 1XL;
United Kingdom

St Mark’s Court, Chart Way, Horsham West Sussex RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

St-Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham West Sussex, RH12 1XL,
United Kingdom

St Mark’s Court, Chart Way Horsham West Sussex, RH12 1XL,.

United Kingdom
St Mark's Court, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1XL,
United Klngdom

Wall Street Plaza, 88 Pine Street New York NY 10005, United
States

N

Indicates-that the holding represents an Investment or is an Associate d|rectly or indirectly of the company

Inc.
"1. Directly owned

2.

3. Indicates ownership of non-voting shares
4,

5.

Notes to the accounts’

. Class of shares  Percentage
held Holding
Ordinary 100.00
- Ordinary 100 00'
£1.00Ordinary  100.00
US$1._00'O_rdinary 100.00
Ordinary 100.00
Ordinary " 100.00 -
Ordinary A 90.00
" Ordinary 100.00
Ordinary 100.00 °
Ordinary 100.00
Ordinary . 100.00
Ordinary 100.00
Ordinary 100.00
Ordinary ' 106.00
Ordinary - ‘100.004'
Ordinary I190.00
Common_

100.00

There is no subsidiary where the parent holds less than 50% of the votmg nghts There are no entltres where the Company holds more than 50%
of the voting rights which are not subsidiaries other than Punchbow! Park Management Limited and Hempton Court Manco Limited. -
In relation to Al Ahlia Insurance Company SAOG (listed on the Muscat Securities Market, Oman Stock | Exchange) and Al Alamiya for Cooperative -

Insurance Company (listed on the Tadawul, Saudi Stock Exchange), the percentage held relates to the actual percentage of the share capital

held and not the effective percentage held (which is 26.25% and 25.04% respectively). '

"6. Johnson Inc. holds all of the voting shares in 2029974 Ontario Inc. through the followmg share classes: Class A Common (0. 0016% votrng) Class
.B Common (0 0033% voting), Class V Specral (99.9950% voting). .

As at 31 December 2020 the company had Branches in Argentlna Belglum Chma DIFC (Dubal) France, Germany, Greece Ireland, Netherlands

and Norway.
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